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Vision

Cyberport aspires to be the hub for digital technology,
creating a key economic driver for Hong Kong

BEBEBNEDIBRENERR - NEBEEHEFIN

C yberport is an innovative digital community with over 1,800 start-ups and technology
companies. It is managed by Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited,
which is wholly owned by the Hong Kong SAR Government. With a vision to be the hub
for digital technology thereby creating a new economic driver for Hong Kong, Cyberport
is committed to nurturing a vibrant tech ecosystem by cultivating talent; promoting
entrepreneurship among the youth; supporting start-ups on their growth journeys;
fostering industry development by promoting collaborations with local and international
partners; and integrating new and traditional economies by accelerating digital adoption
in the public and private sectors.

Cyberport is focused on facilitating the growth of major technology trends such
as FinTech, Smart Living, Digital Entertainment and Esports, as well as emerging
technologies of Artificial Intelligence/Big Data, Blockchain and Cybersecurity, to foster

the transformation of Hong Kong into a smart city.
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ANNUAL SUMMARY
FEMR
From seed funding to mentorship and incubation, from support for business expansion to connection with global networks of investors

and partners, Cyberport provides holistic backing to help entrepreneurs innovate and succeed. In the past year, Cyberport has made
further progress in advancing the digital technology ecosystem, setting the stage for Cyberport start-ups to shine all over the world.
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CUPP - Cyberport University Partnership Programme
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CCMF - Cyberport Creative Micro Fund
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CIP - Cyberport Incubation Programme
HIBEERITY

CASP - Cyberport Accelerator Support Programme
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MDSS - Overseas/ Mainland Market Development Support Scheme
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CMF - Cyberport Macro Fund
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
TEE

Looking ahead to the prospects of economic
revitalisation and increased demands for smarter
ways of living, Cyberport will continue to support
and champion our I&T community by leveraging our
unique position as Hong Kong’s digital technology hub,
resource and network.

RERK  BEELFES ML EZLEFTNFREM
WD B B E AN BB BB R XA VIR B - RIRM
ML - SREREDENOR eI B AR
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We see unprecedented opportunities for Cyberport to take an integrated
approach to enhance Hong Kong’'s Innovation and Technology (1&T)
competitiveness.

This is especially timely with recent national developments, including the
T4th Five-Year Plan’s support for Hong Kong to establish the “four emerging
centres” (including an international I&T centre] and strategies relating to the
Greater Bay Area (GBA] development. In addition, the Plan for Comprehensive
Deepening Reform and Opening Up of the Qianhai Shenzhen-Hong Kong
Modern Service Industry Cooperation Zone underscored the promotion of
institutional innovation. Further, the Northern Metropolis Development Strategy
and the concept of “Twin Cities and Three Circles” for Hong Kong's integration
into the GBA also inject new impetus into the collaboration related to the
development of I&T. As Hong Kong's digital technology flagship, Cyberport will
continue to leverage Hong Kong's status as an international centre in various
arenas to contribute to the development of the GBA into an international I&T
hub.

Extending New Frontiers through Partnerships

Cyberport recognises the importance of international opportunities and
collaboration. In the context of the GBA development, we fostered strong
bonds within the GBA through close collaborations with the Qianhai Authority
and the GBA Business School to promote the development of a more diverse
and sustainable shared technology ecosystem. We also collaborated with
the Chinese University of Hong Kong to nurture young talents for future
contribution in the GBA. Furthermore, Cyberport signed a Memorandum
of Understanding (MoU] with Hang Seng Bank to help community start-
ups and companies secure and enhance their presence in the GBA through
various forms of initiatives to unlock opportunities in banking and financial
services, FinTech, venture capital access and more. We further concluded a
collaboration framework with the MTR Corporation Limited (MTRCL), where
both the Corporation and Cyberport will co-invest in high potential start-ups in
areas, including railway technology and smart city which cater for the MTRCL's
development needs.

Bi5E
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Cyberport and MTRCL signed a MoU for joint investment in digital technology start-ups.
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In addition to new partnerships, considering the larger picture of our
international outreach, at the 6th Belt and Road Summit, Cyberport co-
hosted a fireside chat with industry leaders and community start-ups in the
“Embracing Digital Technology in the GBA for the Post-pandemic Era” session.
The "Empowering Smart City Transformation across GBA in the Post-pandemic
Era” and "How Digital Technologies are Enabling Innovation for the New
Normal” panels organised by Cyberport also received positive feedback from
the audience. We also co-organised the Scaling Hong Kong to the Nordics
programme to drive mutual exchange of gaming industry know-hows between
community enterprises and Scandinavian business partners.

.

o
W GAMES &
unmenL

Resomecr  Innolomes !3_051

BT AERRIN  EENRE— - BegL
R BB ERER R T ARE XA A
BTAB - B2DT —HEES B FBEHBLR
ML R R KRS SR o BATIRD RIS "
FRERRMRREXESHT " & "R R A K
MEFES THF AR FHITITIE - RISV EE[E
W o tesh - JAVRE T BB EBIR R R R
BT HY RITR" - HEShAE B b olb S4b B b Ik ERE
XA & 1ER

Delegates of “Scaling Hong Kong to the Nordics” participated in Sweden’s Nordic Game, a major annual event for the global game industry.
“HEIR R RO R AR T Y Rt Min R ES 5 —F - EAEMRES Nordic Game ¢

Unleashing Capital for Entrepreneurship and Innovation

Cyberport saw the proud addition of two unicorns in the past year, namely
Animoca Brands and ZA International. From Blockchain to FinTech, the
success of these two community start-ups gives a glimpse to the diversity of
Cyberport’s portfolio and the underlying driver of technology. Furthermore,
we were encouraged by the successful listing of GOGOX, the first Cyberport-
incubated unicorn, on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (HKEX] in June 2022.

An important part of Cyberport’s practical work is supporting start-ups and
connecting them to funding. Our community start-ups raised HK$18.2 billion
worth of funding during the year, and accumulated funds exceeding HK$33.9
billion. Further to connecting our start-ups to investors, Cyberport also co-
invests in promising start-ups. Our self-owned fund, the Cyberport Macro Fund
(CMF) achieved record performance this year, where the co-investment ratio
increased to 1:8, despite challenges posed by the pandemic. To support the
development of the I&T sector, Cyberport has further injected HK$200 million
into the CMF.

8 Cyberport 2021/22 Annual Report
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@atulations on your
ate fundraising!

Riding on New Prospects for Emerging Technology Sectors

Under the 14th Five-Year Plan, we continue to play a leading role in enhancing
Hong Kong's status as an international financial, trade and cultural centre in
the region.

The FinTech Proof-of-Concept Subsidy Scheme fuels the growth of novel
FinTech solutions by encouraging collaborations between financial institutions
and FinTech start-ups. In addition, Cyberport FinTech InnoCon 2021 combined
brilliant minds from the I&T sector to steer FinTech forward.

We have also observed significant strides in Smart Living, which is the largest
application cluster at Cyberport. With the pandemic’s ripple effects, we
have seen growing demands for ways to effectively adapt to the pandemic’s
challenges and to assume a more human-centred lifestyle. Smart Living start-
ups and companies have mounted to over 700 at Cyberport.

As public awareness and concern for health grow, the demand for health care
services also increases. Over 100 Cyberport companies are now providing wide-
ranging HealthTech solutions, from health monitoring to telemedicine and
rehabilitation. Cyberport is also committed to nurturing more community start-
ups to engage in Environmental Technology with a view to combating climate
change, where ventures range from recycling to Electric Vehicle (EV) charging.

Under Educational Technology (EdTech), Cyberport now has over 170
community companies. We organised STEAM Week, which showcased
cutting-edge solutions from EdTech start-ups in the Cyberport community
to meet different needs within the education sector. We also collaborated
with Esperanza to co-organise the Edventures Global Business Acceleration
Summit, which saw international EdTech experts share their wisdom on solving
educational issues and present possibilities of morphing Hong Kong into an
educational innovation hub in the GBA.

In the area of Digital Entertainment and Esports, Cyberport hosted the Digital
Entertainment Leadership Forum 2021 (DELF 2021), with over 600,000 online
views. Echoing Hong Kong's positioning of an East-meets-West Cultural
Exchange Centre, we hosted an Arts x Tech Meetup, where over 300 members
from the arts and culture sector and 11 start-ups from the Cyberport community
came together to exchange ideas and explore opportunities for collaboration.

Opening up New Pathways for Young Innovators

We continue to actively cultivate talents, nurture start-ups and foster
innovation and entrepreneurship through our comprehensive entrepreneurship

programmes.

Cyberport recognised the outstanding
achievements of successful fundraising
by its community start-ups at the HKEX's
Market Closing Ceremony.
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As an innovation hub, Cyberport actively leverages our resources and
strategic networks, such as the Cyberport Enterprise Network (CEN),
Cyberport Investors Network (CIN), Cyberport Technology Network (CTN)
and Cyberport Professional Services Network (CPN) to develop partnerships
and collaborations across the innovation ecosystem to support our start-ups
in building sustainable business models for expansion into the GBA, Asia and
beyond.

Cyberport Academy, which includes various mentorship programmes
and technology trainings, has expanded Cyberport's capacity for youth
entrepreneurship and co-creation, enhanced digital upskilling for industry
practitioners and equipped entrepreneurs for success. We also continue to host
the annual Cyberport Career Fair to inspire aspiring youth to engage in I&T
careers and provide job opportunities.

EmEEER
Career Fair

Unleash Your Potential

Career Fair of I&T Sector in Hong Kong

Heralding a More Sustainable Future

We recognise the importance of taking action on sustainability for a better
future. Cyberport's target for carbon neutrality by 2050 is in line with that of the
Government, through our commitment to the 4T Partnership initiated by the
then Environment Bureau (currently known as the Environment and Ecology
Bureau).

Cyberport continues to align our communal strengths with Environmental,
Social and Governance (ESG). In terms of the environmental aspects, we
leveraged technology in our climate change response through our start-ups’
products and services. As for the social aspects, we served and brought positive
impact to the community through technological enhancement, for example
through the “Braving the Epidemic” campaign.

Looking forward to Cyberport’s expansion, we have considered how to
incorporate sustainability in our growth. Our Cyberport Expansion Project has
included sustainable features, such as green building designs, application
of construction technologies and smart property management that minimise
waste.

Looking Forward to the Next Milestone

We believe that seizing opportunities in the new era calls for a proactive
approach to ride on developments at multiple levels. Cyberport will continue
its efforts to strengthen existing support programmes and networks, as well
as spur the growth of cluster development through the advancement and
application of technology. Further, the Cyberport 5 expansion will help drive
digital technology development and entrepreneurship by accommodating more
start-ups and creating a space for the application and demonstration of more
solutions.

10 Cyberport 2021/22 Annual Report
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Mr Simon Chan, Cyberport Chairman, looks forward
to the fruitful results of the Cyberport Career Fair to
bring in new blood for the I&T industry, and provide
opportunities for young people interested in the
sector to seize the golden age of I&T development in
Hong Kong.
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In Hong Kong, we will continue to leverage smart urbanisation and the
development of the Northern Metropolis. We look forward to continued
synergies through integration into the GBA following the Twin Cities and
Three Circles blueprint and integration into national development plans with
positioning of the “eight centres” underpinned by T4th Five-Year Plan. In the
GBA, we will bolster inter-city collaboration in strategic application clusters,
including FinTech and Smart Living, and especially smart logistics, smart
mobility and e-commerce. These collaborations will contribute to developing
the Qianhai Shenzhen-Hong Kong Modern Service Industry Cooperation Zone
[Qianhai Co-operation Zone) and building the GBA into an international hub for
technological innovation.

Looking beyond Hong Kong and the GBA, digital transformation will play an even
more significant role in sustainable development and regional growth as the
Belt and Road Initiative, as well as Green Finance and IP trading, gain traction
in the Asia-Pacific region. Considering the global arena, Cyberport will continue
to serve as a springboard for local start-ups to fast-track their overseas
expansion, while attracting international investors and entrepreneurs to scale
up their businesses in Hong Kong and the GBA. We look forward to leveraging
our strengths to capitalise on the national development of “dual circulation”,
enhancing Hong Kong's role as an engine in the post-pandemic economic
revival.
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Professor Sun Dong, the Secretary for Innovation, Technology and Industry, accompanied by Mr Simon Chan,
Cyberport Chairman, met with Cyberport entrepreneurs to learn about their digital technology solutions.
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Message of Gratitude

I would like to thank our Board of Directors, especially former Chairman, Dr
George Lam, and retired Board Members, Hon Duncan Chiu and Ms Annie
Choi Suk-han, for their leadership and guidance. Thank you to our Cyberport
colleagues, partners and stakeholders for their excellent contributions and
unfaltering collaborations that have culminated in a burgeoning I&T industry.
Let us all celebrate our achievements and transform them to a bright future

ahead.

Simon Chan, BBS, JP
Chairman

TRAGATA MBI AF TR o

RO R

BN BFERNEFERREROBE - FAI2H
IEMFILEL MERENEERRATBRYA
IARESRIAZ = B AT S AR - BaS - &
WA HIBENRE - A EKHFMFOEMELNE
BREMBRENENE ) EROLFSES LR - N
BAVRSSIAE IR - RS TR LRHRTR ©

E353
¥R4R93, BBS, JP

WL 2021/22 F1k 1"



CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S REPORT
TTEBEIRE

Innovation and Technology (I&T) has enabled forward thinking
and opened up new frontiers, preparing society to reemerge
with stronger tenacity into the post-pandemic era. Cyberport
actively propels I&T entrepreneurship and continuously drives
digital transformation to advance the new economy, leading
society to embrace new opportunities ahead.

VF R R D LENTHRHANE - SBREHRATRT N - 5
ABEBA o HIDBRIRMEZ RO 0l - RrEeit i BE 2 LK) H
KRR - 5l A2 mE FRIHIIBAIARK

12 Cyberport 2021/22 Annual Report



The pandemic has undoubtedly continued to disrupt the socio-economic
environment and global connectivity. With the pandemic on the wane, it is time
to prepare ourselves to forge ahead with renewed resilience. The continued
emergence of revolutionary technologies in the post-pandemic era has pushed
the integration of new and traditional economies, injecting new impetus into our
economy.

With national, regional and local development blueprints, including the Belt and
Road Initiative, Regional Comprehensive Economic Partnership (RCEP), Outline
Development Plan for the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area
(GBAJ, Twin Cities and Three Circles, and Northern Metropolis Development
with San Tin Technopole, we are optimistic about how this environment serves
to advance I&T through knowledge and economy sharing, as well as closer
connectivity across the region, to enhance Hong Kong's competitiveness as the
“eight centres” charted in the 14th Five-Year Plan.

Dedication to Innovation and Entrepreneurship

Through our holistic entrepreneurship incubation programmes, Cyberport
cultivated start-ups in varied stages of development. Under Cyberport
University Partnership Programme (CUPP), over 45 students nominated
from eight Hong Kong universities attended the Online Entrepreneurship Boot
Camp hosted by the University of Cambridge Judge Business School (CJBS).
Cyberport also encouraged cross-border exchanges among innovative youth.
For example, the Greater Bay Area Young Entrepreneurship Programme (GBA
YEP) brought young talent from Hong Kong, Macau and Guangdong together
to co-create digital technology innovations and entrepreneurship. Since the
programme’s inception, 167 teams were admitted and granted HK$16.7 million
under the Cyberport Creative Micro Fund (CCMF) and 25 teams were chosen to
participate in Cyberport Incubation Programme (CIP).

During the year, CIP admitted 130 teams, bringing the aggregate admissions
to over 1,000. CCMF awarded HK$9.7 million to 97 teams to support innovative
ideas and early-stage start-up development. The Overseas/Mainland
Development Support Scheme (MDSS) has granted around HK$1 million in
subsidies to assist start-ups on Mainland and overseas expansion. The “Scaling
Hong Kong to the Nordics” delegation visit was enabled by MDSS to allow
outstanding companies to visit gaming companies in Nordic countries despite
travel restrictions, and explore the latest business opportunities in the Nordic
market. Meantime, the Cyberport Accelerator Support Programme (CASP)
supported start-ups in joining 26 accelerator programmes with over HK$2.8
million in financial assistance.

Cyberport continue to encourage youth to join the I&T industry and expand the
tech-savvy talent pool for different sectors. The Cyberport Career Fair 2022,
our annual I&T job-matching event, made available over 1,500 job opportunities
from more than 150 enterprises. During the year, Cyberport matched around
200 internship opportunities in I&T start-ups for university and secondary
students to explore career prospects in the |&T industry. In particular,
Cyberport and the Home and Youth Affairs Bureau jointly organised the Youth
Start-up Internship Programme, which was well-received with over 4,900 job
applications for 100 openings.
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Cyberport continued to strengthen various supportive networks to accelerate
corporate growth and business expansion for start-ups in spite of the pandemic.
Through well-developed platforms and business matching sessions, the
Cyberport Enterprise Network (CEN) connected start-ups with established
corporates for extensive adoptions of digital technology solutions in public and
private sectors. Cyberport collaborated with Google, a Cyberport Technology
Network (CTN) member, to launch the Igniting Start-ups & FinTechs
Programme, with approximately US$1.4 million worth of Google Cloud credits
allocated to seven selected start-ups. We also collaborated with Huawei,
another CTN member, and the French Trade Commission, to organise Huawei
Digital InPulse X Cyberport 2022, facilitating potential collaborations between
Cyberport start-ups and French corporates. The Cyberport Professional Services
Network (CPN) supported GBA landing and local network ramification, including
the Road to GBA Start-up Challenge in collaboration with PwC Hong Kong,
where 12 winners participated in a nine-month GBA Go-to-Market Programme.
Meanwhile, Cyberport Investors Network (CIN) culminated in start-up
fundraising of more than US$66.5 million (HK$518.7 million) during the year.

Start-ups’ Continued Excellence

With Cyberport’s support to elevate start-ups’ competitiveness in attracting
venture capital, Cyberport start-ups achieved recording-breaking investments
during the year. The accumulative funds raised by Cyberport start-ups in
2021/22 alone were HK$18.2 billion, a six-fold increase compared to 2020/21.
The total cumulative funds raised exceeded HK$33.9 billion. Animoca Brands
and ZA International emerged as two of our newest unicorn additions.

As at 31 March 2022, Cyberport Macro Fund (CMF) injected over US$21
million (HK$168 million) into 23 Cyberport start-up projects, driving US$189.2
million (HK$1,466 million) in co-investments with a co-investment ratio of 1:8,
manifesting investors’ confidence in Cyberport start-ups” high potential for
growth.

Our start-ups’ innovative powers and social value have also been recognised
by the Government and industry. During the year, Cyberport start-ups received
over 220 industry accolades and registered over 100 intellectual property rights.
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The Cyberport community scooped a record-high of 32 awards at the Hong Kong ICT Awards 2021.
HEDEHBREREE 2021 BB R MRBMBHER " 32N RIT -

Leading Tech Industry Development

Cyberport has made significant contributions in application areas, including
FinTech, Smart City and Smart Living, Digital Entertainment and Esports,
bringing in numerous promising start-ups to unlock their potential and realise
their vision.
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In the FinTech aspect, Cyberport was entrusted by the Government to
administer various programmes. The FinTech Proof-of-Concept Subsidy
Scheme (PoC Scheme), which encourages traditional financial institutions to
partner with FinTech companies to co-create digital innovations to advance
the finance industry, provided a total grant of HK$10 million to 93 approved
projects, 14 of which involved cross-sectoral and cross-border applications
(across the GBA and ASEAN countries). Under the FinTech Anti-epidemic
Scheme for Talent Development (FAST), which provided monetary support
for companies to establish new positions for FinTech talents, over 1,000
applications were received and more than 700 newly created positions were
filled. Riding on success of the first round, the Financial Practitioners FinTech
Training Programme was rolled out again in 2022. The Webinars Series
attracted over 7,100 registrations from in-service financial practitioners of 80
financial institutions.

For Smart City and Smart Living, we sparked industry development and
innovation through various new endeavours. Following the widespread coverage
of 5G networks, Cyberport has been playing an active role in supporting
community start-ups to develop innovation solutions using 5G technologies.
Cyberport is also coordinating with a number of telecom operators and
enterprises to provide opportunities for the commercialisation of 5G solutions,
so as to enhance the lifestyle experience and business applications in the city.
Under the Subsidy Scheme for Encouraging Early Deployment of 5G launched
by the Government, 30 projects of Cyberport start-ups obtained subsidies
totalling HK$15 million. Cyberport also collaborated with Rotary International
to host the 2021 Co-Create Smart Park Challenge, which encouraged young
individuals to think innovatively and apply sustainable technologies in building
smart parks. More than 100 proposals were received, ranging from gaming
experience to disaster prevention and control. Furthermore, HealthTech has a
significant bearing on the development of social wellbeing in the post-pandemic
era. Cyberport received the "Outstanding Health Technology Ecosystem”
award at the ETNet Health Partnership Awards 2021 in recognition of its efforts
towards promoting HealthTech.
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Rotary International District 3450 announced its admission into the Cyberport Enterprise Network (CEN) and its

strengthened cooperation with Cyberport to boost environmental conservation and sustainable development.

Elfrick 3450 HIXEMMA “HAHBERUME" - HINESHDEETERERABLERAENEE -

For Digital Entertainment and Esports, our annual Digital Entertainment
Leadership Forum 2021 (DELF 2021) presented an all-new digital
entertainment carnival, attracting more than 600,000 views from close to
30 countries. Showcasing the ever-expanding reach for esports, DELF 2021
also presented the Elderly Esports Experience Day, which invited senior
citizens for an exciting taste of esports. Cyberport also collaborated again
with the Association of Pacific Rim Universities [APRU]J to co-host the
APRU MetaGames Conference, to foster esports talents’ growth and career
development, as well as the first Students Esports Essay Competition to
support academic specialisation in the esports field.
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Digital Entertainment Leadership Forum 2021 presented the Elderly Esports Experience Day, which invited

senior citizens for an exciting taste of esports.

2021 FEIGIR R THAIL IR HEL C RIRBTERMAR A" LRR —HEEZBTORRRE -
Inspiring Next-Generation Innovators BARFHRUFEE
Cyberport strives to unleash the potential of youth for I&T entrepreneurship by IS BEEAEF P FKFEE THBAR - FAM
empowering them with digital know-how and igniting their enterprising spirit {18 8137488 - B#HEEE - BEPC Rl & 78

in their early stages of growth. The RoboMaster Robotics Competition, co-
organised by Cyberport and technology start-ups and companies, combined STEM
and robotics and attracted participation from over 80 schools, including primary
schools for the very first time, to strengthen STEM education for younger students.

Cyberport also joined hands with DreamStarter in the 6th DreamStarter
Programme, in which more than 3,000 primary and secondary school students
were inspired on entrepreneurial journeys by Cyberport start-up founders. The
inaugural CAFEA Young Talent Smart City Forum, co-presented by Cyberport
and community start-up, CAFEA Smart City Limited, enabled more than 80
selected secondary students to present creative proposals on smart city
development. Meanwhile, the Cyberport x Jumpstart: Entrepreneurial STEM
Programme, supported by the Education Bureau (EDB) Gifted Education Fund,
allowed more than 20 students to apply STEM applications for entrepreneurship,
and gain first-hand entrepreneurial knowledge from internships.

“RoboMasterl88 A K" + 454 STEM ﬂm%g/\&
R RS THIMERSS - HEABENF
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Jumpstart: Entrepreneurial STEM Programme” 120
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The inaugural CAFEA Young Talent Smart City Forum encouraged students to devise innovative proposals for

smart cities, nurturing them to be I&T talents with solid knowledge and practical experience.
E— /& ‘CAFEABT L F BB MLz M Z EMBEHFMOEERT AR © BARENRABLSKBERZORCIAL -

Care for Society and the Green Future

Through the "Braving the Epidemic” campaign, innovative solutions sprung up
from the Cyberport start-up community to lessen the burden of the 5" wave of
the epidemic on society. The campaign has been recognised again by the Health
Partnership Awards, organised by ETNet, with the Outstanding Leadership for
Social Innovation Award in 2022. We will continue to stand by our start-ups to
maximise their innovative powers for social good.
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Many Cyberport projects have placed sustainability at their core, such as
the ongoing Cyberport 5 expansion, in which green building designs, energy
efficient systems and low carbon construction methods were used. The current
campus also adopted various Environmental Technology solutions from
Cyberport community companies to demonstrate their green powers to society,
such as farm-to-table experiences at the newly renovated Le Méridien Hotel
restaurants, smart energy metres and outdoor air quality sensors at Arcade,
and smart recycling bins in our office buildings.

Seizing Opportunities Beyond Boundaries

During the year, Cyberport made strategic alliances with the GBA and overseas
influential institutions, such as Hang Seng Bank, GBA Business School and
CUHK, extending frontiers for collaborations to uncover new opportunities in
the thriving regions.

18 & 4R 43

HANG SENG BANK
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The strategic alliance between Cyberport and Hang Seng Bank helps Hong Kong innovation companies to secure firm

footing and capitalise on the increasing cross-boundary business opportunities in the GBA.
g SEERITHRMEIEKBEE DB B WILRK K - BEAXTX RFIENOBERR -

Note of Appreciation

I would like to extend my gratitude to the Board of Directors for their
unwavering support and guidance for us to better serve our start-ups, industry
and the wider community. Thank you also to all our colleagues for their hard
work and perseverance in furthering our public missions despite the challenges
this year.

Pushing Boundaries to Capture New Opportunities

It is undeniable that the I&T sector has shown great tenacity amid the
pandemic, emerging as a beacon that leads different industries into the new
era. Cyberport will further its efforts to steer digital technology innovation
by empowering young innovators, supporting entrepreneurship, advancing
industry development and promoting integration of the new and traditional
economies in harness with the Government and different social sectors. With
flourishing opportunities in the GBA and Asia-Pacific regions, Cyberport aspires
to help community entrepreneurs establish a foothold in vibrant spheres and
unlock opportunities beyond boundaries.

Peter Yan, JP
Chief Executive Officer
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
55/

Mr Simon CHAN Sai-ming, BBS, JP

MR BA 55 = BBS JP

Chairman of Hong Kong Cyberport Management

Company Limited

ERMNEEERERAREERLRE

Appointed on 1 April 2022
F20225 4 AVBREE

Mr Simon Chan is the Vice Chairman and Executive Director of Nanyang
Commercial Bank Limited, where he is a member of the Strategy and
Development Committee, the Risk Management Committee and the Connected
Transaction Committee. Mr Chan has been in the banking industry for more
than 30 years, with solid experience in the financial industry, information
technology industry and bank-wide operations. Before assuming his current
role, Mr Chan was a senior executive of Group Audit of Bank of China (Hong
Kong) and Nanyang Commercial Bank in different functions, responsible for
information technology audit and the management of various areas of the bank.

Mr Chan is currently also a director of Cinda Financial Holdings Company
Limited, Nanyang Commercial Bank (China) Limited, Nova Credit Limited, Hong
Kong Interbank Clearing Limited ["HKICL"], HKICL Services Limited and Hong
Kong Trade Finance Platform Company Limited.

Mr Chan actively participates in community service, including serving as
the Chairman of Hong Kong Internet Registration Corporation Limited, the
Chairman of the Banking & Finance Training Board of the Vocational Training
Council of Hong Kong and a Member of the Banking Industry Training Advisory
Committee of the Education Bureau. He is the past President of Information
Systems Audit and Control Association China Hong Kong Chapter and is at
present the Vice-chairman of Hong Kong Information Technology Joint Council
Limited. He also serves as a director in the Hong Kong Chinese Enterprises
Association, a committee member of the Chinese General Chamber of
Commerce, Hong Kong, a member of the Financial & Treasury Services
Committee of Hong Kong General Chamber of Commerce and an advisor of Our
Hong Kong Foundation.

Mr Chan graduated from The Chinese University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor's
degree in Social Science and obtained a Master’s degree in Science from the
University of Ulster and a Master’'s degree in Commerce in Accounting from
the University of New South Wales. He is also a Certified Information Systems
Auditor and a Certified Internal Auditor.
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Professor

Karen CHAN Ka-yin, JP
BB R HIEIP

Executive Director of German Pool

Group Company Limited
REERKRAFRARNITES

Professor Karen Chan is Executive Director of German Pool
and founder of the fashion brand, Sparkle Collection. She has
taken up various public service roles in the manufacturing
and vocational education sectors. She is Deputy Chairman
of Federation of Hong Kong Industries, Vice Chairman of Q
Mark Council Committee, Chairman of Hong Kong Furniture
Industry Council, Appointed Council Member of The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University, Adjunct Professor of Hong Kong
Baptist University and School Advisor of the Li Ka Shing
School of Professional and Continuing Education of Hong Kong
Metropolitan University.

In 2017, Professor Chan founded the Hong Kong 020
E-Commerce Federation and was nominated as Founding
Chairperson. In 2019, she received an Honorary Fellowship
from the Vocational Training Council. She is also a recipient of
the FHKI's Young Industrialist Award in 2009, the Young Women
Innovator Award by APEC in 2013, the Ten Outstanding Young
Persons Award in 2014, the JCI Tsuen Wan’s Outstanding
Family Business Award and Most Successful Women Award
from Jessica Magazine in 2020 and Hong Kong Cultural
& Creative Industries Award from Asia Pacific Creativity
Industries Association (APCIA] in 2021.

Professor Chan holds a double degree in Business
Administration and Economics from University of Washington,
a Master in Education from New York University and a Master
of Science in Marketing from The Chinese University of Hong
Kong.
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Professor
Christopher CHAO Yu-hang
REHER

Vice President (Research and Innovation) and

Chair Professor of Thermal and
Environmental Engineering of

The Hong Kong Polytechnic University
BT RZEIRK (RS0
HBE RINE T2 BERUR

Professor Christopher Chao is Vice President (Research and
Innovation] and Chair Professor of Thermal and Environmental
Engineering of The Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
He oversees the planning and development of research,
innovation and strategic research areas. As an accomplished
scholar in thermal and environmental engineering, Professor
Chao has published extensively in leading journals. He
actively contributes to the professional community and the
Government, and is keen to promote entrepreneurship and
technology transfer.

Professor Chao received his BSclEng) degree in Mechanical
Engineering (First Class] from The University of Hong
Kong, and obtained his MS and PhD degrees in Mechanical
Engineering from the University of California, Berkeley. He
was Dean of the Faculty of Engineering and Chair Professor of
Mechanical Engineering at The University of Hong Kong prior
to joining The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in September
2021.
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Ms Ivy CHEUNG Wing-han
SR 22+

Managing Partner and Head of Audit with
KPMG, Hong Kong
HEOREEXERAGKARBEFEITRS
TEAKA

Ms Ivy Cheung is the Managing Partner and Head of Audit
with KPMG, Hong Kong. She has been serving a portfolio
of clients in the government, property, infrastructure and
telecommunication sectors and has extensive experience in
advising companies listed on Hong Kong and overseas stock
exchanges.

Ms Cheung was the Past President of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. She currently serves as
member of various public service committees, including the
Independent Commission on Remuneration for Members of
the District Councils of the HKSAR, the Standing Committee on
Disciplined Services Salaries and Conditions of Service and the
Transport Advisory Committee. She is also an Honorary Advisor
and a member of the Inspection Committee of the Financial
Reporting Council. Ms Cheung is a board member of the Hong
Kong Genome Institute and the Insurance Authority.
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Hon LAU Kwok-fan, MH JP
X E f S EMH JP

Legislative Council Member of the HKSAR
SDESWA

Hon Lau Kwok-fan is a Legislative Council Member of
the HKSAR with extensive practical experience in serving
the community and public. He has participated in various
government consulting platforms, including the Hong
Kong Youth Development Commission and the Council for
Sustainable Development and Betting and Lotteries. Hon Lau
also serves as consultant in several companies, including
Principal Consultant of China Road and Bridge (H.K.] Ltd and
Hong Kong Affairs Strategy Consultant of China Resources
Land Limited.

Hon Lau graduated from The Chinese University of Hong Kong
with a MA in Sociology. He is also one of the Council Members
of The Chinese University of Hong Kong. As a member of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference in both
Beijing and Jiangmen, he is keen on facilitating communication
and co-development between Hong Kong and Mainland China.
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Mr Michael LEUNG Kin-man, MH
RENXFEMH

CEO of BOA International Financial Group
TRERR € RERATREH

Mr Michael Leung is the CEO of BOA International Financial
Group with extensive banking experience in IT, operations
and corporate services. He was previously the CIO and COO
of China CITIC Bank International, and Deputy CEO of China
Construction Bank (Asia) cum Bank of America (Asia).

Mr Leung’s current and prior public services include President
of the Hong Kong Computer Society, member of the Executive
Committee of The Hong Kong Institute of Bankers ("HKIB"),
member of the Professional Standard & Examination Board
and Chair of the FinTech Committee of HKIB; Chairman of
Hong Kong Down Syndrome Association and member of
several Social Welfare Department and Home Affairs Bureau
committees. Mr Leung is also an Adjunct Professor and Chair
of the Information Systems Departmental Advisory Committee
of The City University of Hong Kong, member of the FinTech
Advisory Board of The Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology School of Business, member of the Innovation
& Information Management Programme Advisory Board of
The University of Hong Kong School of Business, Industry
Advisor of Hong Kong Baptist University Faculty of Science,
member of the Research Assessment Exercise 2020 Business
& Economics Panel of the University Grants Committee and
member of the Banking & Finance Training Board of the
Vocational Training Council.

Mr Leung received the Engineering Faculty’'s Distinguished
Alumni Award from The Chinese University of Hong Kong and
obtained the Philips Scholarship to study in the Netherlands.
He holds a Graduate Diploma in Bank Management, with
distinction, from the University of Virginia.
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Professor LING Kar-kan, SBS
B REEHIESBS

Professor Ling Kar-kan is a professional town planner and
was the Director of Planning of the Government from 2012
to 2016. He is a Fellow of Hong Kong Institute of Planners,
a Registered Professional Planner and possesses the PRC
Registered Urban Planner Qualification. He was the President
of Hong Kong Institute of Planners from 2007 to 2009. He is
currently the Director of the Jockey Club Design Institute for
Social Innovation of The Hong Kong Polytechnic University, Vice
Chairman of the Hong Kong Housing Society and Chairman of
the Country and Marine Parks Board.

Professor Ling is also an Adjunct Professor of The University
of Hong Kong and The Chinese University of Hong Kong,
Professor of Practice [Planning) of The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University, and Associate Fellow of the University College of
Estate Management, United Kingdom.
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Ms Erica MA Yun
=)= g dun

Managing Partner of CoCoon Ignite
Ventures and Co-founder of CoCoon and
The CoCoon Foundation
FHERARBITAINA - SEMER S BIIE AR
TEMESERA OI8A

Appointed on 1 April 2022

F20225 4 AVARERE

Ms Erica Ma is the Managing Partner of CoCoon Ignite Ventures
and Co-founder of CoCoon and The Cocoon Foundation. She
is focused on investing in the pioneers of our future and
building a global home for entrepreneurs. She spent her early
career in Silicon Valley at Macy's and eBay before returning to
Hong Kong to build and operate CoCoon. Her work at CoCoon
evolved to cover community, education and investments within
an ecosystem for founders, students, investors, engineers,
designers and corporate innovators. She is always looking
for ideas and people who can turn them into reality. CoCoon
is a partner of the Google for Startups network and runs the
92 Express Program to empower women founders globally to
build hardware companies in the GBA. The CoCoon Foundation
partners with the Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust
and brings entrepreneurship education to over 10,000 local
secondary school students.

Ms Ma also serves on the Advisory Council of the Stanford
Bing Overseas Program, Youth Development Commission and
Women's Executives Club at the Hong Kong General Chamber
of Commerce.

Ms Ma received a Bachelor's degree in Communication and a
Master’s degree in Psychology from Stanford University.
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Mr Eddie MAK Tak-wai, JP
EBELEIP

Permanent Secretary for Innovation,
Technology and Industry
BIFRHE R T BEERPE

Appointed on 20 July 2022
F202267R20B3REE

Mr Eddie Mak is the Permanent Secretary for Innovation,
Technology and Industry of the Government of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region.

Mr Mak joined the Administrative Service in 1991 and has
served in various policy bureaux and departments, including
the former Information Technology and Broadcasting Bureau,
the Civil Service Bureau, the Hong Kong Economic and
Trade Office, Washington and the Post Office. He was Deputy
Secretary for the Civil Service from August 2012 to July 2018,
Hong Kong Commissioner for Economic and Trade Affairs, USA
from July 2018 to September 2021, and served as Director,
Celebrations Coordination Office from January to June 2022.

Mr Mak holds a bachelor’s degree in Electrical and Electronics
Engineering from The University of Hong Kong. He was a
Freeman Fellowship recipient at the George Washington
University in 2001-2002 and was awarded a master’s degree in
international policy and practice by the university.
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Mr Victor NG Chi-keung,
BBS, MH
{h£58 %5 4£BBS MH

Mr Victor Ng worked at Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu for 26 years.
He was admitted to the partnership in 1996 and retired early in
May 2010 holding the position of deputy managing partner for
its national audit function in China.

Mr Ng is currently a Director of Logistics and Supply Chain
MultiTech R&D Centre Limited and Chairman of its Finance
and Administration Committee. He served as council member
of the Hong Kong Productivity Council ("HKPC"] from 2006 to
2016, Chairman of the Audit Committee of HKPC from late
2005 to 2010, Deputy Chairman of HKPC and Chairman of the
Finance and Administration Committee of HKPC from 2011
to 2016. He also served as a Director of Nano and Advanced
Materials Institute Limited from July 2012 to the end of 2018.

Mr Ng holds a Bachelor’'s degree in Social Sciences from
The University of Hong Kong, an Executive Master Degree in
Business Administration and a Master of Arts in Comparative
and Public History from The Chinese University of Hong
Kong. He is a past president of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants ("ACCA”) in Hong Kong and currently a
fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants as well as a lifetime member of ACCA.
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Mr Hendrick SIN, MH
55X 38 S A MH

Co-founder and the Vice Chairman of
CMGE Technology Group Limited
TFRHRERAER LT HFEBA
REIEEK

Mr Hendrick Sin is a co-founder and the Vice Chairman of
CMGE Technology Group Limited, the largest IP-oriented
mobile game publisher in China. He is also the founding and
managing partner of China Prosperity Capital Fund, a leading
private equity investment company with a primary focus on
technology investment.

Mr Sin is President of the Internet Professional Association
and the Executive Vice-chairman of the Hong Kong Software
Industry Association. He was awarded the Young Industrialist
Award of Hong Kong of 2018 by the Federation of Hong Kong
Industries and the Medal of Honour by the Government in 2021.

Mr Sin received a Master’s degree in Engineering Economics
and Operations Research from Stanford University. He also
holds three Bachelor of Science degrees in Computer Science/
Mathematics, Economics and Industrial Management (with
college honors) from Carnegie Mellon University.
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Dr Charleston SIN Chiu-shun ) -
poit=d B Yl

Executive Director of the Massachusetts

Institute of Technology Hong Kong
Innovation Node

MEETHRE "FBUY " NITES

Dr Charleston Sin is Executive Director of the Massachusetts
Institute of Technology Hong Kong Innovation Node. Dr Sin
has 25 years of experience in the technology industry and has
held executive positions in research & development, product
management, and sales & marketing at VMware, Cisco
Systems and Nortel Networks in North America, Asia Pacific,
Japan and Greater China.

Dr Sin received his PhD in Management Sciences at The
University of Waterloo. He is also a Professor of Practice at the
Faculty of Business of The Hong Kong Polytechnic University,
and a Fellow of Hong Kong Institute of Directors.
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Ms Maggie TSOI Tsz-shan
et

General Manager of Kenta Group
A RE B2

Appointed on 1 April 2022
T20225 4 AVAKEAE

Ms Maggie Tsoi, the General Manager of Kenta Group, is
an active participant in the tool industry in Hong Kong. Ms
Tsoi is committed to promoting local industrial and smart
manufacturing development. She is currently the Vice
Chairman of Hong Kong Mould & Die Council, the Vice
Chairman of Hong Kong Auto Parts Industry Association and
the General Committee Member of Federation of Hong Kong
Industries. She undertakes different roles across various
sectors, and is a member of Industry Training Advisory
Committees of Qualifications Framework and a member of
the Hong Kong Trade Development Council Industry Advisory
Committees.

Ms Tsoi received the Golden Bauhinia Women Entrepreneur
Award and an Honorary Fellowship from The Professional
Validation Council of Hong Kong Industries in 2020, and the
Young Industrialist Award from Federation of Hong Kong
Industries in 2021.

Ms Tsoi holds a Master’'s degree in International Business
from University of Melbourne, and is currently an engineering
doctorate candidate at The Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
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Ms Rosana WONG Wai-man
BEHzt

Executive Director of Yau Lee Holdings
Limited
BHEEABRATDNTES

Ms Rosana Wong is an Executive Director of Yau Lee Holdings
Limited and leads the Yau Lee Group to be an integrated green
corporation providing multidisciplinary construction services.
She is passionate about technology, innovation, science and
urban spatial planning, and has solidified her vision by founding
Ophylla Ventures and a group of start-ups in the context
of sustainable smart city to create better choices for the
community worldwide.

Ms Wong is the Vice President of Smart City Consortium,
Deputy Director of China Green Building (HK) Council,
and member of various Government bodies, including
the Environment and Conservation Fund Committee,
Transport Advisory Committee, Transport Complaints Unit,
Green Minibus Operators Selection Board and Longterm
Decarbonisation Strategies Support Group of Council
for Sustainable Development. She is also member of the
Construction Industry Council’'s Committee on Building
Information Modelling and Council Member of the Hong Kong
Trade Development Council Mainland Business Advisory
Committee.
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Mr Eric YEUNG Chuen-sing, JP
MERBREEIP

Co-founder and CEO of Skyzer VC Group
RIBR IR A & H RS 0 7 ABITHBUEE

Mr Eric Yeung is co-founder and CEO of Skyzer VC Group and
an active participant in the IT industry. He is the Founding
President of the Esports Association Hong Kong and Founder
and Honorary President of the Smart City Consortium.

Concerned for youth development, Mr Yeung advocates
the contribution by youth to society. He also advocates the
dissemination of positive information to the public, so as to
shape a harmonious society with innovative technology. Mr
Yeung is the Council Member of The Education University of
Hong Kong and the Vice President of the Hong Kong General
Chamber of Small and Medium Business. He has also taken
up roles as Council Member of "Customs YES" Executive
Committee, and as Member of the Road Safety Council and
Junior Police Call - Central Advisory Board. In 2010, Mr Yeung
was selected as the 4th Young Leader of the Junior Chamber
International Harbour. He is also Honorary Associate Professor
of the Lee Shau Kee School of Business and Administration of
the Hong Kong Metropolitan University.
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RETIRED BOARD MEMBERS
EREEERKA

Dr Lee George LAM, BBS
M=RILBLBBS

Former Chairman of Hong Kong Cyberport
Management Company Limited
ERNBEERERARERFIEE
Retired on 31 March 2022
F202243A31BIRIE

Dr Lee George Lam, is Senior Advisor, Macquarie Group Asia. He has served
in senior roles (including Chairman, Vice Chairman, CEQ, COO, Managing
Director and General Manager] with several leading multinational corporations
including Hong Kong Telecom, A.T. Kearney, Singapore Technologies Telemedia
(Temasek Holdings), BOC International Holdings (the Bank of China Group),
Chia Tai Enterprises International Limited (CP Group), Macquarie Capital,
and Macquarie Infrastructure and Real Assets. He has extensive international
experience and connections in the I&T sphere and in general management,
strategy consulting, corporate governance, direct investment, investment
banking and asset management fields.

Dr Lam actively participates in community service and international affairs.
He is currently a member of the Governance Committee of the Hong Kong
Growth Portfolio, and the Development Bureau Common Spatial Data Advisory
Committee of the Government, Convenor of the Panel of Advisors on Building
Management Disputes of the Government Home Affairs Department. He is also
a member of the Belt and Road and Greater Bay Area Committee of the Hong
Kong Trade and Development Council, the Court of The City University of Hong
Kong, the International Advisory Board of the Lee Shau Kee School of Business
and Administration of the Hong Kong Metropolitan University, the Lingnan
University Advisory Board on Business Studies, the Advisory Board of the
Tencent Finance Academy Hong Kong, and the Advisory Board of the Hong Kong
Investor Relations Association, Honorary Advisor to the Hong Kong Business
Angel Network, a Hong Kong accounting advisory expert of the PRC Ministry of
Finance, a member of the Consultative Committee on Guangdong-Hong Kong
Co-operation (Guangzhou Nansha), Chairman of the United Nations Economic
and Social Commission for Asia and the Pacific Sustainable Business Network
and Vice Chairman of Pacific Basin Economic Council.

Dr Lam is committed to nurturing talent and youth and next generation small
and medium enterprises, and fostering the development of Hong Kong's I&T
sector and digital economy. He has previously taught at Tsinghua University,
The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology, The Chinese University of
Hong Kong, Hong Kong Baptist University and The City University of Hong Kong.

Dr Lam is a solicitor of the High Court of Hong Kong and formerly a member of
the Hong Kong Bar, as well as an Accredited Mediator of the Centre for Effective
Dispute Resolution, a Fellow of Certified Management Accountants Australia,
the Hong Kong Institute of Arbitrators, the Hong Kong Institute of Directors
and the Institute of Corporate Directors Malaysia, and an Honorary Fellow
of Certified Public Accountants Australia, the Hong Kong Institute of Facility
Management and the HKU School of Professional and Continuing Education
(HKU SPACE).

Dr Lam holds a BSc in Sciences and Mathematics, an MSc in Systems
Science and an MBA from the University of Ottawa, an LLB (Hons] in law
from Manchester Metropolitan University, a LLM in law from the University of
Wolverhampton, a MPA and a PhD from The University of Hong Kong.
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Hon Duncan CHIU
ERIRAR o4

Legislative Council Member of the HKSAR -
Technology & Innovation Constituency
IDER WA —RIERGIFAREK

Retired on 31 March 2022
F202243 A31HIBME

Hon Duncan Chiu, the Legislative Council Technology &
Innovation ["T&I"]) constituency elected representative, has
committed to T&!l development in Hong Kong for nearly 20
years. He is not only a tech entrepreneur, but also a veteran
investor and an influential advocator of T&I policies. He
often speaks at forums and conferences to promote start-up
culture and guides young entrepreneurs with workshops and
mentorship. He is also active in advocating government policies
and promoting collaborations with the Mainland.

Hon Chiu is the President of the Hong Kong Information
Technology Joint Council, the Convenor of Innovate for Future,
the Chairman of Information Technology Services Committee
of the Hospital Authority, the Chairman of the Advisory
Committee of the Department of Systems Engineering &
Engineering Management of The Chinese University of Hong
Kong, the member of the Advisory Committee of The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University and the Chairman of Lai Yuen
Company Limited.
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Ms Annie CHOI Suk-han, GBS, JP
E5H 22 £ GBS JP

Former Permanent Secretary for Innovation,
Technology and Industry
RIAIFTRHR R T B R ERP K
Resigned on 20 July 2022
F202247R20B8 #{E

Ms Annie Choi is the former Permanent Secretary for
Innovation, Technology and Industry. She joined the
Government's Administrative Service in 1986 and has served
in a number of policy bureaux and departments, including
the Civil Service Bureau, the Commerce and Economic
Development Bureau, the Financial Services and the Treasury
Bureau, and the Home Affairs Department. She was the
Commissioner for Innovation and Technology from August 2015
to July 2019.

Ms Choi obtained her Bachelor's and Master’s degrees in Laws
as well as Postgraduate Certificate in Laws from The University
of Hong Kong. She also did postgraduate studies in Public
Administration at Oxford University and Tsinghua University.
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Management Team
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o Project Director
BEUE Sk
Will Yu
RiEE

0 Head of Campus Management
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YT Chun
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e Head of Engineering Services
BRARTIRERE
Eddie Lock
FBE

0 Head of Marketing
A i EE
Rebecca So
HEH

e Chief Operating Officer
BFEEZE
Howard Cheng
LR
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0 Chief Executive Officer
THUE
Peter Yan
ERE

0 Chief Investment Officer
BREAE
Johnny Chan

R 3t 8,

0 Head of Finance & Governance
5 RERE S
Rays Fong
FER

0 Head of Information and
Communication Technology
A SEIRRH R L
Allen Lee
FEIE

@ General Manager of
Le Meridien Hong Kong, Cyberport
ERHIGEYERE D412
Pierre-Antoine Penicaud

37

m Head of Human Resources
ANRRE
Mary Lam
MAE

@ Head of Ecosystem Development
ESBEAREKS
Anita Chau
RS

@ Chief Public Mission Officer
BRANERE
Eric Chan
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@ cChief Financial Officer
BREVSE
Adonis Lee

FEH®

@ Head of Entrepreneurship
Bl R B4
Alice So

@ Head of FinTech
SRIBHE B
Victor Yim

BT

@ Head of Leasing
Lk
Teresa Wong

S8

@ Chief Corporate
Development Officer
BRELARE
lan Chan
BEE
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

AFVER

Registered Office

Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
Level 6, Cyberport 2

100 Cyberport Road, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 3166 3800

Fax: (852) 3166 3118

Email: enquiry@cyberport.hk

Website: www.cyberport.hk

Auditor
Ernst & Young

Solicitors

Mayer Brown
lu Lai Li
King & Wood Mallesons

Principal Bankers

Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

The Hongkong & Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

Mizuho Bank Limited
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The list of directors was set out in page 95 of the Annual Report under the

Directors’ Report.

BOARD COMMITTEES
Audit Committee

Ms lvy CHEUNG Wing-han (Chairperson)
Professor Karen CHAN Ka-yin JP

Mr Michael LEUNG Kin-man MH

Mr MAK Tak-wai JP

Ms Rosana WONG Wai-man

Construction and Facilities Committee

Ms Rosana WONG Wai-man (Chairperson)
Professor Christopher CHAO Yu-hang
Hon LAU Kwok-fan MH JP

Professor LING Kar-kan SBS

Mr MAK Tak-wai JP

Entrepreneurship Committee

Professor LING Kar-kan SBS (Chairman)
Professor Christopher CHAO Yu-hang
Hon LAU Kwok-fan MH JP

Ms Erica MA Yun

Mr MAK Tak-wai JP

Mr Hendrick SIN MH

Dr Charleston SIN Chiu-shun

Mr Eric YEUNG Chuen-sing JP
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Finance and Administration Committee

Mr Victor NG Chi-keung BBS MH (Chairman)
Ms Ivy CHEUNG Wing-han

Mr Michael LEUNG Kin-man MH

Professor LING Kar-kan SBS

Mr MAK Tak-wai JP

Ms Rosana WONG Wai-man

Macro Fund Investment Committee

Mr Hendrick SIN MH (Chairman)

Professor Karen CHAN Ka-yin JP

Ms Erica MA Yun

Mr Victor NG Chi-keung BBS MH

Miss Charmaine Amy WONG Hoi-wan JP (Government representative)

Remuneration and People Committee

Mr Simon CHAN Sai-ming BBS JP (Chairman)
Mr MAK Tak-wai JP

Mr Victor NG Chi-keung BBS MH

Mr Hendrick SIN MH

Dr Charleston SIN Chiu-shun

Mr Eric YEUNG Chuen-sing JP
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CORPORATE STRUCTURE
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TALENT CULTIVATION AND
DEVELOPMENT
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The impact of the fifth wave of the COVID-19 pandemic has affected
Hong Kong significantly, but it did not stop the momentum of Cyberport’s
development programmes. Technology has changed the lifestyle of many
and the developments of various industries in the midst of the pandemic.
It is an opportunity to fasten the pace of technology deployment, digital
transformation and Cyberport has strengthened core programmes for the
cultivation of innovative talent and entrepreneurship this year. Cyberport has
also strengthened the development of start-ups and helped them to penetrate
the GBA markets.

Entrepreneurial Journey with Cyberport

CASP

CUPP
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An investment fund which

e This FinTech focused entrepreneurship programme o

offers students nominated by co-organising university
partners a unique opportunity to participate in an overseas

Prepares incubatees and alumni .

for scale-up journey and provides
up to HK$300,000 subsidy to join
renowned accelerators

targets to co-invest with other
private investors into high-
potential Cyberport start-ups

entrepreneurship boot camp. Winning teams will receive a

HK$100,000 grant from CCMF .
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e Supports development of innovative o

prototypes or early-stage start-ups mentorship through the programme

e A HK$100,000 grant will be provided °
to teams for a 6-month period
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incubatees at Cyberport
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Cyberport’s flagship entrepreneurship programmes are still the core support
for the start-up community in terms of critical funding. In 2021/2022, Cyberport
Creative Micro Fund (CCMF] provided funding to 97 successful applicants
alongside support on training, mentorship and business advice, and an
alumni network. Successful completion of CCMF also increases the chance of

admission to our Cyberport Incubation Programme (CIP).

E ACQ
Support

Supports start-ups with resources and o

Provides HK$500,000 in financial support
¢ Rent-free working space for onsite

MDSS
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Prepares incubatees and alumni for the GBA

and international market expansion and
getting up to HK$200,000 funding support to
join trade shows and exhibitions
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During the year, CIP admitted a total of 130 start-ups with support of up to
HK$500,000 funding, training, investor matching, mentoring and complimentary
working space on Cyberport campus during the incubation period of two years.

After the start-ups become mature, professional support for scale-up is
needed. To drive their growth, Cyberport Accelerator Support Programme
(CASP) has further bridged start-ups with local and global accelerators to
provide support on fundraising, market access and relevant training. During the
year, CASP supported start-ups to participate in 26 accelerator programmes
with a total of HK$2.85 million in funding support. We also sought to land new
accelerators to maximise the available scale-up support and introduced a total
of 77 qualified accelerator programmes.

CCMF

Cyberport Entrepreneurship
Programmes
Annual Highlights
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Cyberport Networking

Apart from funding, Cyberport establishes strategic partnership networks in
support of start-ups’ growth journey:

Cyberport Professional Services Network (CPN) provides comprehensive
advice, including on corporate finance, corporate services and compliance,
finance and taxation, human capital, legal advice, market development
consulting, marketing and branding services, organisational design and
technical consulting. Around 35 professional services firms/consultants have
participated in CPN. Service clinics and workshops are made available to
Cyberport community companies and start-ups via CPN.

Cyberport Enterprise Network (CEN) proactively teams up potential mature
start-ups with large enterprises in Hong Kong and the Mainland to promote
technology adoption and achieve beneficial collaboration. Currently, there are
around 110 CEN members. Through CEN, Cyberport promotes integration
of new economy companies with traditional industries and drives digital
transformation for different verticals. Strategic CEN partners also offer
additional funding support to start-ups for conducting Proof-of-Concept testing
and pilot implementation to promote adoption.

36 Cyberport 2021/22 Annual Report
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Cyberport Investors Network [(CIN) is a structured platform that engages
around 100 investors consisting of leading venture capitalists, angel investors
and private equity funds to enhance the fundraising and deal-making
capabilities of Cyberport start-ups. CIN-related projects have raised more
than US$66.5 million (equivalent to HK$518.7 million) in 2021/22. In addition to
accelerating start-up investments, CIN members also share their investment
expertise to help attract strategic investors and facilitate more collaboration
opportunities.

Cyberport Technology Network (CTN) is designed to connect global technology
leaders with start-ups to support product development and shorten time-
to-market. CTN engaged well-known partners, including Alibaba Cloud,
Huawei, AWS, Google, IBM, Microsoft, and Tencent Cloud in which Cyberport
collaborated with Google on “Igniting Startups & FinTechs Program” that
benefited over 90 start-ups. CTN partners offer comprehensive technical
training, preferential offers, such as free cloud service credits and technical
support, to ensure the start-up community can leverage the latest and
advanced technologies available in the market.

Leveraging our network of mentors, we augmented the Cyberport Mentorship
Services [CMS) by consolidating resources and expanding the mentor pool to
offer additional support to aspiring entrepreneurs. Cyberport appointed close to
80 mentors who brought in a wealth of industry domain knowledge with need-
based guidance for mentees while advising on mentees’ business plans in over
190 mentoring sessions with regards to business analytics and development,
marketing and growth strategy, product development, fundraising and
corporate governance. Our enhanced mentorship scheme enabled us to better
support start-ups in different phases of development and engendered positive
outcomes.

Cyberport Support Networks

Annual Highlights
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Investor matching sessions facilitated

fundraising of more than US$ 66.5 million

during the year
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Youth and Start-ups Development

Promoting entrepreneurship and innovation among youth has long been one
of Cyberport's main public missions under Cyberport Academy. The Cyberport
University Partnership Programme (CUPP) has entered its seventh year in
2021/22. For the first time, the University of Cambridge Judge Business School
(CJBS) was appointed as the programme partner. Over 45 students nominated
from eight local universities formed 16 teams and participated in a two-week
online entrepreneurship boot camp by CJBS for a series of training sessions
related to FinTech and entrepreneurship, and designed innovative business
solutions to vie for CCMF, where 10 teams were granted HK$100,000 of funding
each.
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CUPP aims to nurture more I&T talents in Hong Kong. Since its inception in
2015, the programme has provided professional FinTech and entrepreneurship
training to over 400 local university students. Participating teams who
submitted their initial FinTech business proposals received over 120 hours of
pre-camp nurturing that covered FinTech, RegTech, InsurTech, WealthTech,
Blockchain, Artificial Intelligence (Al] and Machine Learning and Cybersecurity,
as well as entrepreneurial knowledge to further enhance their proposals.
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Cyberport University Partnership Programme 2021-22

Opening Ceremony

".J u 8Sall ®nw

CUPP participants attended a two-week online entrepreneurship boot camp organised by CJBS.
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To explore the innovative capacity of young minds in primary and secondary
schools, Cyberport co-organised the inaugural CAFEA Young Talent Smart City
Forum with CAFEA Smart City Limited and Cyberport Academy at Cyberport
campus. More than 80 secondary school students devised and presented their
academic articles and demonstrated their innovative proposals for smart cities.
This encourages more youngsters to contribute to the smart city development of
Hong Kong.

Cyberport has also arranged different summer training programmes for
students, such as Al Bootcamp 2021 and FinTech Summer Programme 2021
in collaboration with the Chinese University of Hong Kong (CUHK] and the
University of Hong Kong respectively, and in partnership with two community
start-ups. The two Cyberport Academy programmes aim at empowering
secondary school students who are interested in careers in the |&T industry and
inculcating basic skills and knowledge of FinTech and Al in them.

Apart from the expos and exchange programmes, Cyberport has joined hands
with DreamStarter in organising the 6th DreamStarter Programme for students
to design innovative solutions to tackle social issues. Cyberport matched a
suitable start-up for students based on their submissions to facilitate hands-on
experiential learning and engage students to make an impact on society for the
better.

Cyberport has also co-organised a robotics competition with ASK Idea
(Hong Kong) Limited, Hong Kong Computer Education Society and Da-Jiang
Innovations (DJI). The RoboMaster Youth Tournament (Hong Kong) was open to
students and teenagers to test their coding skills and problem-solving abilities
of participants, boost their team spirit and develop their sense of responsibility.
A total of 16 primary schools and 80 secondary schools who participated in this
year's competition. Primary and secondary school students were also eligible
for the RoboMaster Youth Tournament. The participants were able to establish
a scientific mindset for tackling their future challenges with confidence.

38 Cyberport 2021/22 Annual Report

NEFEPNZER QI FTRE S - 2538 Bk B CAFEA
Smart City Limited * #8338 F 0t - THIEBBRERXE 7
BE"CAFEABLFEEHMiLE" - BIs0FF4
MEREXREFARAXE  HFERREXEER T
FRUENEZESANEENEERM AR LR

~

% o

SN - BBED R SEERXRERBEERFAE
KB RAL B O b - AL HER TE BT
X AT EEMN EYSE2021 - RBREHITR
2021 c XM N HBEZBMTIE §EENB SR EF 6]
ThHhFERERE  EESBUEIATEEN
E R BEM AR o

BRTRESRZREDDIN - 38 E % SDreamStarter
ENERNBBEEITLY  FUEFEMBOR R
RS EMRAE - HBERBEFERINIER A
HEWNEEBENPOEL - BEFENMNEHRERFFE
3 TR S TR o

HEEX S BER(EE)  FEBRBEF2MK
SEOIHT A DEATE - IR KIS D FRET (BB
W) (AR BLENRBR D) IARTFEREFRES
5 BHRNIAS 2R E RIS H IS KRR 7] B ) B2
RIS ARSI RIEFERERK - SF—HE16
Bl/NFEMBOERF2 5 - R/NEEITRAIS N LK
FOERNE (B - 2REBEIRLRELRZ
B BEHRI AR o



In addition, there are two new Esports-related courses funded by Cyberport’s
scholarships this year. The courses are namely Esports Ecosystem and
Introduction to eSports, organised by the Hong Kong Metropolitan University
and the Caritas Institute of Community Education, respectively. It will be the
28th funded course since the inception of the Esports Industry Facilitation
Scheme (EIFS].

Cyberport Incubated Company - Gense Technologie

Primary students joined
the RoboMaster Youth
Tournament for the
first time.
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HIBEAEMAE SRR A

EFHCHNBERANEE

- HETETARER)
- Winner of JUMPSTARTER 2022
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- Co-founder and Chief Executive Officer of
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Career Opportunities

To continue the success of the career fair last year, we have proudly launched
Cyberport Career Fair 2022. In view of social distancing measures, we have
organised the Career Fair on a virtual conference platform. The online Career
Fair gathered more than 150 enterprises, offering over 1,500 job opportunities
in different areas, including FinTech, Smart Living, Digital Entertainment, Al,
Big Data, Blockchain and Cybersecurity for I1&T talents via a virtual interactive
platform with elements of the Metaverse, the virtual 3D fair venue.

Participating organisations included large corporations and Cyberport start-
ups. To enrich job seekers” understanding in recruitment trends of the industry,
Cyberport organised more than 50 career forums and recruitment seminars to
discuss popular trends in innovation. We also provided online services, such as
free CV consultation, Al interview analysis and career development resources.

BikE

~ AHealthTech start-up founded in 2017, developing portable preventive screening imaging devices
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9 High achievement under incubation period:

- st runner-up of "Maker in China” Hong Kong Chapter 2022 from over 150 participating teams
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- JUMPSTARTERINER Gl K2 2022694k fEH

- ICT Startup Grand Award and ICT Startup (Hardware and Devices) Gold Award 2021
- RARHEAIA R L AR RARMBHE ) (b (B 1 51% %
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From the Co-Founder: BX&8| AR R :

“We are grateful to Cyberport for supporting our entrepreneurship work, so that we can offer more
accessible and affordable medical technologies, namely portable medical imaging devices that target
preventive screening and chronic disease monitoring in various settings, including at home and clinics.
Cyberport's incubation programme and funding support has been a significant source of support in our
work to develop health tracking and diagnostic solutions to assist the local community.”
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In 2021, Cyberport launched its new integrated I&T talent acquisition platform,
iTalent, which helps Cyberport community members to find the right talent
while providing career opportunities for young people who aspire to join the [&T
industry. The iTalent platform enables community companies to match suitable
talents with job vacancies in FinTech, Smart Living, Digital Entertainment
and Esports clusters in a cost-effective way. It features job search, job
recommendations/reminders, CV generator, profile strength meter, practical
job interview tips, experience sharing from past internship participants, as well
as free learning resources from tech giants.

Cyberport Academy was established in 2020 to combine and improve our
education and enrichment programmes, increase capability and professional
possibilities and enhance our technology talent pool. The Youth Start-up
Internship Programme in collaboration with the then Home Affairs Bureau
(now Home and Youth Affairs Bureau) attracted 168 start-ups to provide
440 job vacancies, among which 30 were selected for students to step in the
real working world and receive practical experience. Start-ups specialising
in Smart Living provided the most vacancies, which encompassed EdTech,
RetailTech, HealthTech, Internet of Things (loT), as well as FinTech and Digital
Entertainment and Esports.

The Cyberport Scale-up Placement Programme matched 18 start-ups with 23
university students to take up credit-bearing placements, helping start-ups with
legal, communications, marketing and financial issues.

Digital Technology Upskilling

Cyberport was commissioned by the Financial Services and the Treasury
Bureau to launch a new round of the Financial Practitioners FinTech Training
Programme in 2022, following the success of the first round that attracted
over 1,200 participants. The programme aims to deepen in-service financial
practitioners’ understanding of FinTech in order to enrich the local FinTech
talent pool. The training comprises two parts, namely the Webinar Series and
Incentive Scheme. The Webinar Series received enthusiastic support from the
financial services sector, with over 7,100 in-service financial practitioners from
80 financial institutions registered to participate.

Under the Cyberport Academy, we have also coordinated different speaking
events for our community to enhance important skillsets, including the
Cyberport Academy Distinguished Fellow Speakers Series and the Green
Finance Speaker Series.

wE® @O Matters

benSt | Cma

Green Finance
Speakers Series

GBA Development and Beyond

Cyberport has been actively supporting the development of start-ups in the
GBA. In 2021, Luo Huining, Director of the Liaison Office of the Central People's
Government, visited Cyberport and emphasised that the National 14th Five-Year
Plan clearly supports Hong Kong in building an international I&T hub, creating
huge development opportunities for young people in Hong Kong.
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Sustainability-related financial risks in Hong Kong and
Asia amid Pandemic Era was one of the Green Finance
Speaker Series Webinar hosted by Cyberport Academy to
promote green finance in Hong Kong.
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The Cyberport Greater Bay Area Young Entrepreneurship Programme
(GBA YEP) 2021 supported by CCMF brought young talent from Hong Kong,
Macau and cities in Guangdong, including the GBA together to develop
digital technology innovations. The programme aims to deepen participants’
experiences in launching projects and facilitating early-stage development
in a multicultural environment and to facilitate business soft-landing and
development in the GBA and the Mainland.

Our community companies have participated in different competitions, such
as the Road to GBA Start-up Challenge, jointly organised by Cyberport
and PricewaterhouseCoopers [PwC]. The 12 winning Cyberport community
companies participated in a nine-month GBA Go-to-Market Programme. The
programme provided comprehensive support and training for the winners to
expand their businesses in the GBA, including themed workshops, corporate
management consultation, product commercialisation, investment roadshows,
business matching and assistance from I&T parks in partnership with Cyberport
located in cities across the GBA and beyond.

In the Hong Kong Chapter of “Maker in China 2021" SME Innovation and
Entrepreneurship Global Contest, co-organised by Cyberport, the top three
winners were 12CO0L, MAD Gaze and Greater Bay Biotechnology, respectively.
The contest was met with great enthusiasm, drawing a record number of more
than 100 teams. As a result of the event, more than 100 patents were created
and 50 deal flows were facilitated, helping to bring promising start-ups to the
GBA. As one of Hong Kong's winners, MAD Gaze incubated by Cyperport later
on competed against other counterparts from Japan, South Korea, other ASEAN
countries and Europe. MAD Gaze became the overall champion at the "Maker in
China” SME Innovation and Entrepreneurship Global Contest.

Luo Huining, Director of the Liaison Office of the Central People's
Government, visted Cyberport.
PRAEERETRED RS -

Cyberport has also signed the Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) with the
Greater Bay Area Business School and CUHK to provide more training and
support and to share facilities located in Shenzhen for young entrepreneurship
and business development in the GBA. It also provides a channel for the
Cyberport community to enter the GBA market.

Looking Forward

At the forefront of promoting I&T in Hong Kong, Cyberport strives to support the
community and youth in various stages of entrepreneurship, as well as to nurture
innovative young minds. Cyberport will also continue to connect the Cyberport
community with different stakeholders to prepare for the GBA market and
beyond.
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More than 100 teams participated in the Hong Kong Chapter of "Maker
in China 2021" SME Innovation and Entrepreneurship Global Contest.
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D espite the 5th wave of COVID-19 dealing a significant blow to the economy,
Cyberport maintained its unwavering support to the I&T industry, striving
to guide and assist the community and fellow tech companies towards new
opportunities. Cyberport continues its endeavour towards cultivating the
industry and leading the way for the technology disruptions of tomorrow.

Professional and Technology Support for Entrepreneurship
Information and Communications Technology (ICT) Development

It is imperative for the tech entrepreneur to tap into the latest and brightest
technologies with a view to creating technical advantages for their innovative
products and solutions. As the digital technology hub of Hong Kong, Cyberport
partners with global tech leaders to support the start-up ecosystem and
facilitate the development of the ICT industry.

Operating at full throttle since its inception in 2018, Cyberport Technology
Network (CTN) unshackles our start-ups from technological limitations by
equipping them with the latest technologies, tools and services through our
CTN partners. In 2021/22, we fostered 27 business matching sessions, assisting
over 40 different start-ups with their unique challenges.

This extensive network not only helps our start-ups address their imminent
needs, but also actively equips them with the ability to take on future
challenges. To facilitate a swift adoption of 5G technology, we provided
substantive support to 11 projects that used 5G technology developed by
companies in fields across Augmented Reality [AR), Virtual Reality (VR), Al and
Robotics which received support from Office of the Communications Authority
(OFCAJ's subsidy scheme for 5G deployment.

Finance Industry

To support Hong Kong as the leading international financial centre, Cyberport
has been pivotal in promoting the development of FinTech and its adoption to
support the growth of the finance industry.

Cyberport also collaborated with Google in the Igniting Startups & FinTechs
Program. With a united pursuit of morphing Hong Kong into a smarter digital
city, we made available Google Cloud credits and training/technical support
for high-performance computing (HPC) to all start-ups in Cyberport. A suite
of Google platforms is also available to our start-ups at a special discount to
cultivate innovation with the help of geospatial data, cutting-edge data analytics
and Al solutions. Start-ups can thus focus on developing their innovations
without worrying about cloud computing infrastructure and capacity.
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“Igniting Start-ups and FinTechs Program” in collaboration with Google
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Further, to fully support the ever-changing needs of community companies in
different industry contexts and operational stages, the Cyberport Professional
Services Network [CPN) connected 148 participating community companies
with professional services to foster healthy growth with the help of professional
consultants. To continue expanding this network, the CPN Circle, an online
knowledge-sharing platform developed by one of our community companies,
Lynk, was launched in March 2022. It allows participants to connect with
professional experts in real-time.

During the year, we added 12 new CPN partners, culminating in a network of
around 35 member firms, including 6 full-service consultancy firms Baker &
McKenzie, Deloitte, Ernst & Young, Grant Thornton, KPMG and PwC, as well as
other specialised consultancy firms. The weaving of this accomplished network,
coupled with active member engagement in 19 service clinics and three key
engagement programmes, has enabled community companies to benefit from
further professional support and training at reasonable costs.

FinTech in Full Force

With more than a decade of continuous efforts, we have established a leading
position in the FinTech sector and helped push the sector to ever-increasing
heights. Our FinTech community encompasses nearly 400 FinTech companies
out of around 600 FinTech companies and start-ups in all over Hong Kong, and
our contribution to them has yielded celebrated results. In the IFTA FinTech
Achievement Awards, 14 Cyberport FinTech companies were given 15 awards
across multiple categories, including four community start-ups winning awards
for 'Regulatory Tech” and two Cyberport entrepreneurs receiving recognition as
the ‘Leader of the Year'.

Industry acclaim has not slowed our pace in further driving disruption.
Commissioned by the Financial Services and the Treasury Bureau (FTSB), the
FinTech Proof-of-Concept Subsidy Scheme (PoC Scheme) was launched in
2021 with the goal to encourage creative ideas with the potential to become
innovative financial services products to be tested out with government funding.
It has been operating at full throttle, approving 93 applications and providing
start-ups with a total grant of HK$10 million for them to test run FinTech
innovations with financial institutions. By promoting new means of cooperation
between financial institutions and FinTech start-ups, the Scheme has led to
numerous firm relationships of long-time collaboration within the industry, as
well as cross-boundary applications among Hong Kong, the GBA and ASEAN
countries.

[ Cyberport 2021/22 Annual Report
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The FinTech Proof-of-Concept Subsidy Scheme was
launched in 2021 to encourage creative Fintech ideas
to be tested with government funding.

T20214F » FATHEH “HAE L SRR RN R
BRI (“HAE LT R BhIHR) - AT A BY T EEN i 6
MERMBEHS -

A REVIARI IR B S BATRIEH — S D EF NS
%o F20215F - BINEMEESLESRHEREL A
L7 SRR 3R By iR (AL R B
) BMEEBMAART - SN EE DK R
VWFERME T RO < ZIt Y HRBIHISHHRIE -
FrPe R EA 1,000 5 BT RE) - LA
S2RNMAE  UTSRBReF AR - Editit
Yo rESBIAS SRS Z A E
AR TUhRETZIMRENKBPAERR  REE
B REBX - REERZBE®NERENA -



FinTech Proof-of-Concept Subsidy Scheme
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approved projects
MNR#LIE

In addition, we gathered more than 30 representatives of regulatory and
professional bodies, and participants of the PoC Scheme at the Cyberport
Fintech InnoCon 2021, a spotlight event of the Cyberport Venture Capital
Forum, to showcase successful FinTech Proofs-of-Concepts (PoCs). This
enabled networking and the convergence of ideas for the I&T sector through
practical lenses and input from regulatory experts, achieving a balanced
FinTech vision that truly caters to industry needs.

To support Asia Pacific start-ups, we continued to co-organising the
FinTech Innovation Lab Asia Pacific (FILAP) with Accenture for the eighth
consecutive year. Through a 12-week programme, start-ups with the most
innovative propositions were selected to receiving world-class mentoring from
financial institution executives and leading fintech entrepreneurs. This year’'s
programme, with 11 selected companies, including five Cyberport FinTech
start-ups, has successfully launched two PoCs, and with 21 more projects in the
pipeline. We look forward to continuing our support in strengthening start-ups’
ability to scale-up and their connections with potential investors.

With regard to rising discussions in Regulatory Technology [RegTech],
Cyberport invited start-ups and renowned industry figures to the Hong Kong
FinTech Week, in which the importance of technology used for regulation
among other latest trends in FinTech, like ESG investment and open data,
was thoroughly explored. To expedite RegTech adoption, especially for anti-
money laundering, Cyberport collaborated with the Hong Kong Monetary
Authority to organise the AML Regtech Lab, with the purpose of facilitating
more comprehensive regulations over financial institutions and ensure a safe
environment for businesses to flourish.

Continuing the conversation with our stakeholders, Cyberport received a
delegation of around 35 Hong Kong Accounting Advisors appointed by the
Ministry of Finance (MOF). The advisors learned about the latest developments
in Hong Kong's I&T sector, as well as Cyberport community start-ups’ tech
solutions for accounting and finance.
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Cyberport collaborated with InvestHK to invite
start-ups and renowned industry leaders to the
Hong Kong FinTech Week.
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To navigate the present and future of sustainable development, we also
assembled ESG trailblazers from the financial, industrial and commercial
sectors, along with Cyberport community companies, in the Cyberport FinTech
for ESG Conference 2021. We hosted a thematic breakout session on “Shaping a
Sustainable Financial Ecosystem: How to Integrate ESG Factors with FinTech”,
in which participants jointly investigated the prospects of utilising FinTech to
enhance efficiency for companies implementing ESG-related measures, as well
as methods for companies to enjoy economic benefits presented by the global
ESG trend.

Another area in the industry receiving rapid growth is WealthTech. By
housing nearly 60 WealthTech start-ups in Cyberport, we provide ample
resources for promising projects to germinate. These start-ups will become
the quintessential tools in reducing cost of wealth management services and
generating alternative investment opportunities for professional investors.

Furthermore, through the collaboration with R3, a global Blockchain leader,
Innovation Lab was established at Cyberport to help Hong Kong FinTech start-
ups seize Central Bank Digital Currencies (CBDC) opportunities. The Innovation
Lab serves as an agile transformative space where Cyberport, R3 and all the
Innovation Partners can come together to offer resources, training curriculum,
technology comprehension, industry expertise and work closely with ecosystem
stakeholders to co-create FinTech innovations in Hong Kong and the GBA.

Through the FinTech Anti-epidemic Scheme for Talent Development (FAST)
commissioned by FTSB, we provided salary subsidies for a maximum of 12
months to FinTech companies that have created a new full-time position,
fostering over 1,000 applications and more than 700 new positions being filled.
The overwhelming response from the FinTech sector helped create FinTech-
related employment opportunities for finance and technology professionals, as
well as university graduates, widening the talent pool for the FinTech sector.

Our “Cyberport Community Connect” series supported various industries
through knowledge and experience sharing sessions by industry leaders.
Seminar topics included “Building Automation & Smart Property Management -
Insider Perspectives” and “"FinTech Development During the Pandemic”, which
were co-organised with the Hong Kong Software Industry Association and the
Internet Professional Association, respectively.

Smart Living for Communal Support

Cyberport is the home to over 700 companies that focus on various aspects of
Smart Living, including HealthTech, EdTech, ArtTech, GeronTech and more. Our
goal is to continue building up this Smart Living powerhouse and give back to
our community.

Cyberport's “Braving the Epidemic” campaign was first launched in early
2020 to connect our Smart Living cluster to the rest of the world amidst the
COVID-19 pandemic. It has accumulated digital solutions focusing on Distance
Learning and Work from Home, Medical and Healthcare, Insurance and Relief
Funds, Household and Workplace Improvement, as well as community support
and volunteering activities. In a swift response to the outbreak of the 5th wave
of COVID-19 in 2022, Cyberport start-ups reinforced cooperation with the
Government, hospitals and social welfare institutions by providing telemedicine
services, COVID-19 testing, remote support service mobile apps and more.

We also expanded the campaign to Community Support and Volunteering - a

new category - to deliver more extensive aid to the community. Our start-up,
Farméé, cooperated with charities to dispense timely anti-epidemic supplies to
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over 100 elderly homes. By leveraging agricultural technology, boxes of fresh
vegetables and fruits were sent out to people under quarantine. The “Braving
the Epidemic” campaign has been recognised again by the Health Partnership
Awards organised by ETNet with the "Outstanding Leadership for Social
Innovation” Award in 2022.

T Organiser

etnet

Our community contributions do not stop there. Over 100 start-ups are
rigorously designing HealthTech products to boost convenience of access
to medical services through digital means, including health monitoring,
telemedicine, rehabilitation and more. Four of our HealthTech start-ups were
exhibited in the Gerontech and Innovation Expo cum Summit 2021.

Despite the pandemic causing a heavy blow to the industry, retailers see a
way out through adopting creative digital solutions. Cyberport houses over
220 community companies that are focused on delivering RetailTech and
e-commerce solutions, which form the largest sub-cluster under Smart Living.
With the incorporation of Al, Big Data analytics and more into the retailing
process, these companies hold limitless potential for the revitalisation of the
retail industry.

We are also joining hands with Rotary International to create smart parks in
the '2021 Co-Create Smart Park Challenge’. By calling both youngsters and
I&T industry professionals to submit creative and feasible proposals to build
a smart park, we collected ideas filled with both imagination and insight from
experience, facilitating sustainable development with creative designs. Many
suitable ideas and proposals will be considered for implementation at the
Cyberport waterfront park as part of Cyberport's mega Expansion Project.

Cyberport understands that youngsters are the future pillars of society, and
new technology is needed to tackle current educational problems. Thus, over
170 community companies in Cyberport strive to provide EdTech solutions. We
conducted the Cyberport Venture Capital Forum 2021, in which the Edventures
Global Business Acceleration Summit was a spotlight event. Themed Think Big
with EdTech, From Quick Fix to Driver of Change,” the summit saw international
EdTech experts share insights on global EdTech application, bridging the
digital divide chasm, and the prospects of Hong Kong becoming an education
innovation hub in the GBA. Presentations of unique solutions for early childhood
education and special education were also given by 12 EdTech start-ups around
the globe.

Regarding the rising demands to enhance learning and teaching through
STEAM (Science, Technology, Engineering, Art and Mathematics), we hosted
Cyberport STEAM Week to introduce the latest innovative EdTech solutions to
around 100 principals and teachers from primary and secondary schools. For
example, using loT, Cyberport start-up, FarmacyHK, installed smart hydroponic
planting machines in schools to remotely cultivate a suitable environment for
plant growth, with a view to establishing green practices in schools and fulfilling
educational purposes at the same time. Moreover, 22 of our EdTech start-ups
participated in the Learning and Teaching Expo 2021, displaying disruptive
solutions to enhance self-directed learning through Al, AR and VR, among other
technologies.
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Cyberport received the "Outstanding
Leadership for Social Innovation” Award in
the Health Partnership Awards organised by
ETNet.
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Cyberport will continue to promote innovative technology in the education
sector with our innovative community covering all major areas, such as
e-learning solutions, game experience and immersive learning, interactive
technology and school management system. EdTech has become one of the
largest subclusters under Cyberport’s Smart Living cluster.

Thriving Digital Entertainment and Esports
More than 150 Digital Entertainment and Esports start-ups have landed in
Cyberport, forming an extensive cluster of talented digital entertainment
minds. Game studios, publishers on different platforms, management and
licensing experts and diverse gaming and tournament platforms intertwine and
collaborate in harmony within this broad cluster.

Digital Entertainment Leadership Forum 2021
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The blend of many-hued creative ideas continued in our Digital Entertainment
Leadership Forum 2021 (DELF 2021), which was a three-day international
convention in a hybrid format of online and in-person participation. With the
theme of “Infinity Games - Breaking the Limits of Digital Entertainment,”
DELF 2021 devised a series of “Infinity Games” tournaments, workshops and
innovator showcases, bringing the audience through a journey of “Sea”, “Land”
and “Air". The Forum accumulated over 600,000 views online. By hosting this
Forum, we aim to position ourselves as a Digital Entertainment hub, leading
the industry to thrive and advance beyond existing standards by leveraging
disruptive technologies, business models and value chains.
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Cyberport hosted STEAM Week for educators for five

consecutive days, where fresh EdTech ideas were

showcased by community startups.
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Throughout the year, a collection of thrilling gaming tournaments was also held
in Hong Kong's esports industry. The 2022 FIA World Motorsport Championship
Esports Cup Hong Kong Representative Selection, co-organised by Cyberport,
is Hong Kong's first esports car representative selection officially organised by
the Hong Kong Automobile Association. The FiFAe Nations Cup 2022 Qualifiers
supported by Cyberport’s Esports Industry Facilitation Scheme (EIFS) will send
five selected players to represent Hong Kong to compete with international
players.

The Esports Association Hong Kong and Cyberport also jointly held the Esports
Premier League (EPL) Season 2 in anticipation of rising demands for esports
entertainment. Featured games include “League of Legends,” “Arena of Valor,”
and "Hearthstone.” Attracting over 200 teams from different experience levels,
the tournament provided winning teams a chance to compete at the Hangzhou
Asian Games in pursuit of greater glories.

Aiming to shatter the stereotypical thinking that esports tournaments, or
even gaming in general, are only for youngsters, the Hong Kong Innovative
Technology Development Association (HKITDA) and Rotary Club of Smart Hong
Kong (RCSHK] held the Elderly Esports Experience Day at DELF 2021, in which
grey-haired gamers displayed their patience and strategic thinking in a FIFA
tournament and enjoyed esports with their family members. Cyberport has been
co-organising this event since 2018 to encourage the elderly to keep up with
new technology and narrow the digital divide across generations.

Acknowledging that nurturing talents in the esports industry is paramount to its
development, we facilitated the Association of Pacific Rim Universities (APRUJ,
a network of 60 leading universities, to set up its Asia base at Cyberport. In
DELF 2021, we also collaborated with APRU to organise the APRU MetaGame
Conference to discuss future digital skills and ways to nurture university
students into young innovators and changemakers. Further, we co-organised
the first APRU Student Esports Paper Competition to give recognition to
outstanding papers submitted by students through granting certificates and
scholarships, promoting long-term investment in the esports research field.

2021 APRU i
MetalGame’

DELF 2021 encompassed a myriad
of engaging activities with elements
of “Sea”, “Land” and “Air", the
theme of the Digital Entertainment
Experience Zone, culminating in
an innovative digital entertainment
carnival.
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Industry leaders were gathered at the APRU MetaGame
Conference to discuss future digital skills and ways to
nurture university students into young innovators and
changemakers.
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Moreover, Cyberport is also supplying the flourishing esports industry with
ample financial support and personnel training. The EIFS funds a myriad of
industry activities related to competition and events, talent cultivation and
overseas exchange and development. It has culminated in benefited events
with a total prize value of HK$3 million and about 47,000 participating players.
Esports Internship Scheme (EIS) has subsidised 58 internship opportunities
and 28 training courses in tertiary institutes, and conferred 37 scholarships
during this year.

To utilise novel technologies, like Al, AR/VR, to the fullest, we co-hosted
the Arts x Tech Meetup@Cyberport with the Leisure and Cultural Services
Department (LCSD). Over 300 members from the arts and culture sector linked
up with 11 start-ups in Cyberport to discuss and demonstrate digital solutions
to performances, installations, exhibitions and media art. This allowed
the nurturing of artistic sensibilities in brand new channels, where digital
technologies are wielded to introduce artistic expressions in modern brush
strokes.

Perhaps the most popular form of art blended with technology of the recent year
is Non-Fungible Tokens (NFTs). Cyberport organised “Tech x Arts - Beyond
Imagination” - a digital art show for visual and auditory artwork tokenised into
NFTs. With inspiring pieces from post-90s illustrators and local photographers,
the exhibition showcased the potential of utilising blockchain technology
to present new channels for art publishing, as well as increased economic
benefits and ownership for artists.

Gallery of Awards

Cyberport and its community start-ups have received wide acclaim and
numerous accolades for their contribution to the wider I&T industry’s
continuous development. A total of 224 awards were given to our community
companies. To highlight a few, a record-high 28 Cyberport start-ups scored
30+ awards at the Hong Kong ICT Awards 2021. Gense Technologies stood
out by winning both the Grand Award and the Gold Award. The rapid growth
and innovative thinking of our start-ups were also recognised in the biennial
Deloitte Hong Kong Technology Fast & Rising Star Programme, with seven of
them ranked among the Technology Fast 10. In addition, three of our start-ups
had entered the top ten at the JUMPSTARTER 2022 Global Pitch Competition,
organised by Alibaba Entrepreneurs Fund, as Top 10 selections. Gense
Technologies also reaped the top winner award at the competition.

Awards Won by Cyberport Community Companies during the year
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To increase the awareness of stakeholders on current technological
circumstances and boost innovation, the ETNet FinTech Awards is organised
annually and 17 Cyberport community companies received awards this year.
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Another 22 Cyberport start-ups received 27 awards at the ETNet Smart Living
Partnership Awards 2021, which is a new award with the goal of catalysing
innovative solutions to better our daily lifestyles. In addition, Hong Kong
Cyberport Management Company Limited also won the Outstanding Health
Technology Ecosystem award in the ETNet Health Partnership Awards 2021.

Cyberport Incubated Company - Rice Robotics

HIBEEEL - RAVEAGRLE

3} Founded in 2019, providing widespread autonomous delivery and sanitising robot solutions
PRS2 T 20194 - $RGLEES 2R A2 B LA Es ASOE SRR AR T &=

& Analumnus of CIP and investee under CMF
HIGEEBITY ERLOFETRR  RE HISERACLESIRE

3) Garnered seed round investments of US$9 million
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3) Winner of JUMPSTARTER Awards 2021
JUMPSTARTERIRER @I\l K #2021 #)1 &

E) JUMPSTARTER Social Impact Award 2021
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3} Outstanding Productivity Award of The Pandemic Innovative Digital Solution Awards 2020
TR QBT EAD 5 252020 — R A= HZRAIK

3} ICT Startup (Hardware and Devices) Silver Award 2020
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From the Founder:

Bl AR ¢

“Cyberport's connection of start-ups and established corporations has been crucial to the
adoption of our products at well-known organisations in Hong Kong, including the Hong
Kong Convention and Exhibition Centre and K11 MUSEA, as well as success in scaling our
business to Asian markets like Japan and Thailand. We look forward to enhancing our
robotic products to help communities adapt to the epidemic with more effective responses.”

HRE RSB R STRAE B - WEATW-REBAENNAEEERER © FATONEA
FRRBEBAENMEEESEFRLFIKI MUSEA XA - HHERAR - REZWIMNTZ - B
SPSRTIN AT @ > MBS RSHIRMI NS

Victor Lee ZE
- Founder and CEO of Rice Robotics
Rice Robotics 87 A RITE B

Looking Forward

Cyberport aims to keep at its unreserved efforts to cooperate with the
Government’'s initiatives, especially on its vision to promote enhanced
development of the I&T industry in Hong Kong, as expressed in the 2021 Policy
Address and 2022 Budget Speech. One of the examples is the collaboration with
the Hong Kong Housing Society in setting up a co-working space in the Northern
Metropolis to encourage start-ups specialising in technologies such as smart
building, property management, smart home, construction technology, green
technology, smart retail, etc. to contribute to building a smart city. Also, by
engaging in close-knit cooperative missions, Hong Kong and the rest of the GBA
can weave a strong base for the technology ecosystem, in anticipation of more
future joint endeavours, to deepen cooperation with the Qianhai Co-operation
Zone. With the shining future in sight, we plan on propelling our community
companies, as well as the rest of Hong Kong's I&T industry, to the next level.
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D igital transformation continues to generate value in traditional industries
with the integration of innovative technologies and digital solutions. The
collision of old practices and new ideas can bring value-creating opportunities
and positive impacts to the business world, as well as our society. In the
Cyberport community, we embrace the latest technologies from FinTech,
Smart Living, Digital Entertainment and Esports, to Al, Blockchain and
Cybersecurity - our community members are working to revolutionise
business practices through innovative solutions.

Cyberport has been proactively bridging business corporations, government
departments and NGOs with our community start-ups to drive business
transformation. Through leveraging win-win collaborations, all parties co-
create innovative solutions that facilitate the integration of traditional and new

economies.

Value-Added Collaborative Business Partnership

Cyberport Enterprise Network (CEN) plays a key role in relationship building,
especially in enterprise outreach and business solutions matching for high-
growth start-ups and large enterprises, to facilitate the adoption of innovative
business solutions. In 2021/22, the CEN continued to attract new enterprise
members from a wide range of industries, including banking, logistics,
insurance, office technology, medical, media and asset management and
engaged over 80 members in around 100 business matching sessions,
garnering an aggregate turnout of over 300 start-ups. A wide range of industries
have been covered in these matching sessions, including Food and Beverage
[F&B]J, transportation & logistics, property management, retail, e-commerce
and NGOs. This reflects that CEN has taken steps forward in connecting both
business and social enterprises with our digital tech community companies to
drive digital transformation in the public and private sector.

Cyberport Enterprise Network (CEN)
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With extensive support from CEN, Cyberport has become top of mind for many
enterprises looking for innovative solutions and is regarded as their extended
innovative arm. We curated business matching sessions for community start-
ups to match with CEN members, such as DBS, Hang Seng Bank, Jetco,
Housing Society, CLP, Fujifilm Business Innovation and Prior Global Asset
Management Group Limited. Also, Hang Seng Bank has signed a cooperation
agreement with Bull B to cross-promote Bull B's education app, reflecting the
collective efforts on promoting EdTech. Furthermore, Jetco partnered with
FundingReach, LeapXpert and Quantifeed to co-sell to Jetco’'s member banks.
Such cross-sector cooperation leverages the adoption of innovative solutions
and ultimately unlocks opportunities in the market.

We have also taken the initiative to support local start-ups by establishing
formal business relationships with them through adopting their products
and services. For example, the Cyberport campus has widely adopted various
anti-pandemic technologies developed by our start-ups. Not only are we the
customer of the innovative solutions generated by our start-ups, but we also
set a great example to encourage large corporations to adopt these digital tech
applications.
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Cyberport incubatee Molekiu successfully landed adoption of its innovative mobile advertising robot RoBoMedia by Sino Group,

Cyberport CEN corporate.

IBBIEE X RIMolekiuf BIFTRE SHLEEA RoBoMedia ARINAR “ IS Rl ML " 5 R AL EFIRERA -

W Cyberport
CEN Enterprise
Network

IRF% x Ark Space
HFERRS

Through CEN, Cyberport incubatee Ark Space was connected to World-Link Logistics which adopted the start-up’s delivery fleet

management system to enhance operational efficiency.

B BB WME" - BIBEEE N FArk Space SAFWRANE - FEXA T UL RMNEHENERRS -
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Enhancing Innovations through Public-Private Partnership

At Cyberport, we always remain committed to fostering connectivity in the
public sector with technological empowerment. Supporting the Government's
Smart City Blueprint for Hong Kong 2.0 and the "iAM Smart” one-stop
personalised digital services platform, Cyberport organised an array of events
for our start-ups, tech companies and government departments in 2021/22.
The ideas exchange sessions facilitated mutual understanding among the
parties, and government departments were more empowered to understand the
benefits and possibilities of adopting digital technologies in public services.
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identity authentication for account login.

During the year, more than 30 projects from over 20 Cyberport start-ups were
awarded subsidies totalling around HK$15 million under the “Subsidy Scheme
for Encouraging Early Development of 5G” launched by the Government. With
the support from Cyberport, successful projects were launched in the market.
For example, our community member, Carbon World Limited, teamed up with
a 5G operator, China Mobile, to establish a 5G Smart Recycling Machine, which
reduced processing time for recyclables. The public-private partnership aims
to bring digital choices to support strategic city development plans, which is
conducive for Hong Kong to build a smart green city.

Furthermore, our start-ups participated in the virtual E&M I&T Day 2021,
organised by the Electrical and Mechanical Services Department (EMSD).
Throughout the event, there were significant ideas exchanged regarding
innovative solutions in smart city and smart building via exhibition booths
and seminars to facilitate cooperation between government departments and
increase opportunities for translating research and development outcomes.

ZRBEAR

Through the “iAM Smart” Sandbox Programme implemented by Cyberport and the Government, Cyberport start-up MediConCen
developed API technologies; and later through the FinTech Proof-of-Concept Subsidy Scheme administered by Cyberport, the start-
up further reached collaborations with Hong Kong Life, who became the first insurance company in Hong Kong to adopt "iAM Smart”
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Strengthening I&T Industry Connections

By enhancing industry linkages, Cyberport continued to strengthen its
community start-ups’ engagement with organisations from different industries.
In 2021/22, Cyberport collaborated with the Hong Kong Software Industry
Association (HKSIA], Chinachem Group and Cyberport community companies,
including Autodesk, Sinoini and Negawatt Utility to host “Cyberport Community
Connect” thematic webinars for industry exchanges on the topic of smart
building and smart property management.

TR HEREKER
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“Cyberport Community Connect” TR T4 - 5t
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Co-presented by Cyberport and the HKSIiA, Cyberport Community Connect invited representatives from Chinachem Group, and Cyberport

community companies, including Autodesk, Sinoini and Negawatt Utility to share how to use smart building technology to improve

production and competitiveness, and meet new market opportunities.

RIS R BB RIFAT L2 BRA E 7 Cyberport Community Connect " #15 7 485k A R S84 Bl -
ERARABDZSURRY ZWAFATHREARAK - REEFMESN - WEFOTHIE

Leveraging Business Opportunities Under the New Normal

The rapid development of FinTech under the new normal has brought
tremendous business opportunities to the I&T industry. Cyberport community
members have grasped opportunities to develop various innovative FinTech
solutions applicable to wide-ranging financial services, such as personal
finance, insurance, trade finance, regulation and compliance, and ESG
investment. In 2021/22, Cyberport collaborated with the Internet Professional
Association to organise a seminar on the potential of WealthTech and InsurTech
to capitalise on new market potential amid the epidemic. Our community
member, WeSure is an insurance agency platform under Tencent who shared
their experience of expanding into the GBA insurance market through strategic
partnerships. Another community company, 10Life, developed an online
insurance product comparison platform, which cooperated with that cooperates
with Hong Kong insurance companies to help consumers make better-informed
insurance choices, attaining total premiums exceeding HK$50 million last year.
Although the epidemic has brought many challenges to the financial services
industry, it also created digital transformation opportunities, which enhanced
the competitiveness of the industry and encouraged continued advancement of
FinTech.
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Speakers of the Cyberport Community Connect webinar shared insights on how corporates utilised technology during the
pandemic to adapt to the changing market and create new business opportunities for the GBA.
“Cyberport Community Connect” M it 2 #5E A E HZ T Rl e &S Tiz ARHRER TR EA - URAKREX 0BEHKIE -

Established in 2016, one of Asia’s leading on-demand tech delivery platforms that covers
both local and international deliveries, offering timely delivery services to over 10,000
clients on a daily basis
T 20165 AL » NN RSB IR IR A By % T & 2 — -+ b S50 3 AN N E R AR
%5 - BRFE10,0004 5 He it KB A5 s AR S5
Exemplary CMF investee embodying innovation and disruption of the conventional logistics
industry through its asset-light business model and customisable delivery services
ickuby ISR BN B BT R MRS ¢ 3BT A2 A Al S5 AR SURI A S 6 60 32 A
PPy %+ PRI BIFTRI & M AT L OB TE 77

Raised about US$15 million in Series A and Series A+ funding and US$37 million in
Series B funding to grow its e-commerce platform
TAR RA+R R R T EELN1 50075 7T * AR TBRAEHELR3 700HET - KRS
FHAFA

' Participated in the gong-strike ceremony at HKEX to celebrate outstanding fundraising
achievements
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From the Co-Founder:

BREI D ARR !

“Pickupp empowers businesses by disrupting traditional logistics with technology, building
an open, connected and holistic supply chain network where over 270,000 customers can
simplify complex logistics solutions that cater to their evolving delivery needs with over 33%
cost savings.

Cyberport's continued support enables Pickupp to build and scale the network across Asia-
Pacific (APAC] cities.”

Crystal Pang ¥4 , *Pickupp ABARIUBE S - B FFH - BB REEMMHEME - LLB51270,0008 B B
O e e e WHERONARS - WARETH RO ERRR - HHERBUHEA - AN DAL -
Pickupp BE&0I7 AR 1T B H 2 LB AR S AF R Pickupp AT XL A X i 2237 R AR 4% =
Looking Forward REARR

Entering the post-pandemic era, Cyberport will continue building and BAGEIERH - BB H YKL E T RN5EE R 58
enhancing cross-sectoral relationships for integrating old and new economies. &fF @ MBEE L RAEFE5MATF - BB EYRE(ER
Cyberport will also continuously act as a digital technology innovation hub, #HBEEHEWHIRA - SHELEXARBENEEZES
working closely with all community members and stakeholders to steer digital £ * ## ST AT FREER ©

transformation across industries.

WL 2021/22 F1k 57



MARKET OUTREACH AND INVESTMENT
FhgimaRRENS

I

|

M)
vl

A

s




I t was an opportunistic period to boost up deal flows in promising start-ups set
out to deliver innovations for the future.

To continue serving our community start-ups, Cyberport amplified efforts in the
Cyberport Macro Fund (CMF) and Cyberport Investors Network (CIN) to connect
venture capital to innovative solutions that speak for the digital future. This year,
our community start-ups raised HK$18.2 billion worth of funding and accumulated
funds exceeding HK$33.9 billion. We anticipate continued growth in global
investments in new and emerging technologies and innovation.

Funding Digital Transformation Beyond Boundaries

To further unlock opportunities for growth, our community companies need
dedicated funding at each stage of their development. The CMF, our co-
investment fund that specialises in Series A stage funding and beyond for
promising solutions and enterprises, has invested a cumulative total of
US$21.64 million (equivalent to HK$168 million) in 23 projects, with co-
investment reaching US$189 million (equivalent to HK$1.47 billion] since its
inception, reaching a co-investment ratio of 1:8. To support the development
of the I&T sector, we have further injected HK$200 million into CMF. Investees
during the year include GRWTH, GOGOX, Rice Robotics, Hex Trust and Dash
Living, who have all served to catalyse the digital disruption in Hong Kong.

This year, the CMF invested in five iconic start-ups, including two key strategic
focuses - FinTech and Smart Living. The investments have attracted co-
investments of approximately US$80 million (equivalent to HK$624 million).
Following the expansion of investment scope in April 2021, the CMF made later
stage investments of over HK$100 million together with BOCOM International
in GOGOX. This was designed to accelerate community company GOGOX's
business expansion as a digital-driven intra-city logistics solutions provider.
On 24 June 2022, GOGOX became the first Cyberport-incubated unicorn to be
successfully listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. Further, Animoca Brands
and ZA International are two additional unicorns that have been nurtured from
Cyberport last year.

The CMF will continue to play a strategic role to bring in capital for start-ups in
the future by leveraging and broadening its network with different stakeholders.
The CMF will take the initiative to engage with promising companies to enable
greater positive impact and value creation.

Cyberport Macro Fund (CMF)
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Further supporting our community companies’ exploration beyond the local
market, the CIN has been a dedicated platform to line up institutional investors
with prospective investee companies demonstrating high growth potential in an
effective and efficient way. The CIN facilitated investor-startup communications
through matching sessions and has cumulatively initiated investment-matching
activities with over 100 investors. The projects span across a wide range of
technologies and applications, including FinTech, Al and Big Data, HealthTech,
EnvironmentTech, EdTech and Metaverse, closely aligning with our three focus
clusters.

In support of the CIN, the Cyberport Venture Capital Forum (CVCF) has
been an annual flagship event to facilitate investor matching. 2021's CVCF
was presented in a brand-new hybrid format, utilising both online and in-
person participation. The event featured an Innovator Showcase for promising
start-ups and an exclusive Investor Matching platform for deal-sourcing and
fundraising. This year, under the theme of "Venturing for Success: Resilience,
Growth & Opportunities,” participants reflected on recent challenges and
explored how technological innovations can bring about change in the
venture ecosystem and wider community. Global venture capital experts and
entrepreneurs shared their passion and expertise on the latest fundraising
strategies, market dynamics and value creation to effectively attract investors’
interest and stay ahead of the evolving era.

Having attracted a record 120,000 views on the CVCF online interactive
platform and more than 2,500 attendees, CVCF 2021 was honoured to have
100 renowned speakers share their insights, and to have organised over 110
innovator showcases, connected over 250 investors, received more than 60
project presentations and facilitated around 350 deal flows.

Cyberport Venture Capital Forum 2021
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The Cyberport Venture Capital Forum 2021 facilitated around 350 deal flows.
‘2021 #IE A L BOR 104 (R £9350 N UL B ALY

Supporting Ambition Towards the GBA and Belt & Road

As an international finance hub and an emerging centre for the I&T
industry, Hong Kong has the capability and responsibility to contribute to the
development of the GBA. Cyberport will continue to ignite collaborations across
the GBA through increased engagement and outreach with enterprises in the
Mainland to support start-ups expanding their businesses to the GBA.

This year we have committed to expanding our partnership network through
signing strategic MoUs to further equip and support our start-ups.

MoU with the Authority of Qianhai: Deepening collaboration between Hong
Kong and Qianhai on the technology and innovation front by providing unique
opportunities in market expansion, technology support and investments
to start-ups on both sides and fostering closely-linked interactions and
development among young people in the GBA.

MoU with Hang Seng Bank: Helping community start-ups and companies
secure and enhance their businesses in the GBA by providing end-to-end
support on banking and financial services, FinTech and venture capital access.

MoU with the Greater Bay Area Business School: Equipping young
entrepreneurs with the knowledge of operating in the GBA and critical success
factors, including business analytics and digital transformation, through jointly
organised workshops and seminars.

MoU with the Chinese University of Hong Kong (CUHK): Nurturing
entrepreneurs in Hong Kong and the GBA through a collaboration framework
where start-ups are offered matching opportunities in market expansion,
technology support and investments with the goal of creating a more diverse
and sustainable Shenzhen-Hong Kong technology ecosystem.

Furthermore, Cyberport will continue its collaboration with 12 technology parks
in the GBA to speed up start-ups’” access to the Mainland markets and provide
support in various aspects, including legal matters, business operation and
talent recruitment.
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In addition to providing services for our community companies, Cyberport
is dedicated to connecting thought leaders and industry experts across the
region to share their insights with our entrepreneurs. At the 6th Belt and
Road Summit, Cyberport hosted one of the sessions in the breakout forum
themed "Embracing Digital Technology in the GBA for the Post-pandemic
Era” and invited industry leaders, as well as two community start-ups, to co-
organise a fireside chat and a panel discussion themed “Empowering Smart
City Transformation Across GBA in the Post-pandemic Era” and "How Digital
Technologies are Enabling Innovation for the New Normal,” respectively.
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The 6th Belt and Road Summit connected thought leaders and industry experts across the region to share their

insights.

FNRE —H KSR IR T XM SRFHANTLER - D FHAI0LE

Leaping Into Global Opportunities

Beyond the GBA, Cyberport also supported I&T startups and entrepreneurs
to step onto the global stage. The Overseas/Mainland Market Development
Support Scheme (MDSS) offers up to HK$200,000 of financial subsidy for CIP
and CCMF grantees, incubatees or graduates to further develop into Overseas/
Mainland markets through participating in Overseas/Mainland delegation
missions, marketing exhibitions, local marketing exhibitions, landing services
and online or offline marketing services targeting Overseas/Mainland markets.
Launched in 2018, the MDSS has supported over 90 start-ups to attend 166
events, exhibitions, delegation missions or tap landing services. With strong
momentum, Cyberport incubatees and alumni have expanded to various
Overseas/Mainland markets, including Mainland China, Asia Pacific, United
States, Europe, the Middle East and Africa.

Sponsored by Create Hong Kong (CreateHK] of the Government of the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region, we also co-organised “Scaling Hong
Kong to the Nordics” with the Finnish Chamber of Commerce in Hong Kong.
The programme included a series of seminars, exhibition, business matching
activities and company visits for Hong Kong-based digital entertainment and
game development companies to connect with counterparts, investors and
players in the Nordic Region. A delegation of 12 Cyberport companies visited
Sweden and Finland, as well as participated in the "Nordic Game Conference”
in Malmo, Sweden on 17-20 May, sponsored by CreateHK. In addition, we
collaborated with Huawei and the French Trade Commission to facilitate
exchanges between Cyberport start-ups in FinTech and Smart Living with
French corporates. Two French start-ups from our community, CHEKK and
BistroChat, shared their experiences on working as foreign start-ups in Hong
Kong.
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The “Scaling Hong Kong to the Nordics” programme included a series of seminars, exhibition, business matching
activities and company visits for Hong Kong-based digital entertainment and game development companies to connect
with counterparts, investors and players in the Nordic Region.

‘BRBIBBRERIRFE LI T AT RitL" - tARBERNBBIDRRRFRIT LA AR —RIOHITL  RE - BSE
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Cyberport Incubated Company - ConsenSys Hong Kong Limited
BB B - ConsenSys Hong Kong Limited

> @

~’ Aglobal Ethereum software company founded in 2014

BT 2014 FEEYIRIRA RS (Ethereum) 42 7]

Focuses on business blockchain solutions, including strategic blockchain consultancy,
design and development of blockchain solutions and token solutions development
TRBAWIRATFTT AKX RERAMBRT R - H MBI HREEAIRS - BESITERE
Awarded the CBDC project by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority on the application of
the CBDC for cross-border payments
REESRERBEFAHITATHRIBITHREHT(CBDC) HBEE X NHARI A

Current incubatee of CIP that took part in the gong-striking ceremony at HKEX to
celebrate outstanding fundraising achievements

RESSEEX SRS NABIE HRE R HE QR URBMHATED
Al 5 B S AR
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From the Corporate Representative:

el RRERR

“Cyberport’'s support has enabled us to build a deeper local network and collaborate
with partners from the Hong Kong community to advance the application of innovative
technologies. We have been awarded blockchain projects by different central banks, as well
as private institutions in the APAC region. Through Cyberport’s networking platforms, we

Charles d’ Haussy have also identified synergies with Cyberport's community start-ups.”

- Managing Director BEBNRNITHERIEBELESENMX NS - SRBSREIE  HII0FRENA - &
APAC at ConsenSys 1BR1S 7 AKX AR AR RARITIARIANAR FXREDE - BEHREERZRTE  BAIESH
ConsenSys WAX HHEF AR RFEIE "

Looking Forward REARRK

Cyberport will continue to leverage its strengths as a connector to support #IBEHYELERE T REHRS - IHFHPCIRFE
start-ups in scaling up their businesses in the GBA, Asia and beyond. The CMF ~ KJEX ~ DN R E X Rl %5 o "2 8% % ol
and CIN will continue to act as our two major levers in funding and connecting ~ £& "l "#A3 1R 75 MLE B4 SN HBAE R )0l
international investors. We look forward to continuing to bridge capital and 7l g & R X ER ISR HEOFHALFE - R BEHE
expertise from the Mainland and overseas markets to support the growth of our — #¢£E H4EBE Al 3% RN i KOG N 37 80 R A K %l &1
start-ups. R REN R KRR -
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ENVIRONMENTAL,
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With climate change at the forefront of international concern, it is vital
for businesses and organisations to rethink how they operate sustainably.
Cyberport considers climate change to be a crucial topic that guides everyday
decision making from management of the premises to funding start-ups that
focus on this issue. We strongly encourage forward thinking and innovation
to foster a society that thinks outside the box when tackling climate change.
Achieving carbon neutrality, in particular, has been one of our key corporate
goals. We have thus carried out several decarbonisation initiatives, including
setting up a solar panel system in generating electricity, replacing a new air
conditioning system to increase energy efficiency, recycling greywater to
support campus operations, among others.

Cyberport will continue to work towards a more sustainable future by
taking appropriate actions in becoming a more environmental and socially
conscious enterprise. We build on our existing strengths and are constantly
exploring new initiatives to attain net-zero carbon emissions and alignment
on established international standards like the 17 United Nations Sustainable
Development Goals (SDGs).

This chapter includes Cyberport’s ESG actions and targets during the financial
year ended 31 March 2022. We share how we align Cyberport’s communal
strengths in technology with ESG and further elaborate on environmental
aspects, including energy consumption and emissions reduction. During the
year, Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited [HKCMCL) was one
of the finalists nominated for Facilities Management Team of the Year at the
annual Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors (RICS) Awards. Together with
Jones Lang LaSalle Hong Kong (JLL Hong Kong), we were highly commended
for our collective efforts in creating a vibrant community to facilitate growth of
1&T in Hong Kong. Furthermore, we have identified key climate risks relevant
to our operations that are detailed in the environmental section of this chapter.

Environmental Statistics
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! Figures were calculated based on the amount of carbon emissions per unit published on Hong Kong Electric Investments’ corporate website

[https://www.hkelectric.com/en/customer-services/carbon-calculator).

IR THARIEALT 88 D4R R A A1 (https://www.hkelectric.com/en/customer-services/carbon-calculator) A B B S AR HFE ITH ©

? Based on the calculation of a 5-metre tall tree absorbing carbon dioxide at a rate of 23kg per year.
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We will expand our use of renewable energy as we plan to install more solar
power systems at Cyberport 3 and Cyberport 4A. The target for these systems is
an annual electricity generation of 80,000kWh, which will reduce over 57,000kg
of carbon dioxide emissions.

SERRER
EN—BFKHEESURBEP NG - BB
FEMHIBIE - FH T RTURR - KX W5 A
BOEREE © AV TIRR BT 5 - AR 70
AR BHAE N © REIFH R R 34T
TR - WS - RAIE R B + AR KSR
AR -

Consideration of Climate Risks

As an enterprise that seeks continuous progress to remain competitive,
Cyberport stays up to date with market standards to better understand how
the industry is evolving and expectations are changing. We have performed
an assessment on climate risks to identify the risks and associated impacts
for our organisation. Both physical and transitional risks are identified, which
are further explained in the table below. In addition, we have implemented the

necessary measures to address these climate risks.

Type of Climate Risk | Specific Risk

SRR RIEE

HEE X

Potential Impacts

BN

Resilience Measures
IVBSEEYi )

Physical e  Extreme weather

SRR events (flooding,
extreme heat and
tropical typhoon)

e WmARSFEMHCH
K W =R B B
maN)

e Overpopulation
leading to spread
of disease [e.g.
COVID-19)

s AOEHSHER
% 7% (B 20 37 8

)

Cyberport may be affected

by frequent extreme weather
events due to climate change,
so it is subject to more damage
and higher risk of human
endangerment. Appropriate
safety measures need to be
implemented to address this
risk and minimise harm to
tenants at Cyberport
BRI - LB RAE
ERIE RSB - BISE
BEAREBI - S AEIGHEXNE
SR - HISEFERIES
MRS - R IXF XL IAR
EROMNEF M

As the human population
continues to grow, more
densely populated areas will
be prone to illnesses and
infections (e.g. COVID-19)
BEAOTHIEK  ADEEE
B30 X B A 5 AR o R
(BlansrEmeE)

Contingency plans and
precautionary actions are to
be taken to protect members
of the community where
Cyberport operates

7 SFEERE 25 O 228 1 ) AN 1
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BERZs

Launched the "Braving the
Epidemic” platform providing
information on applications to fight
COVID-19

L BAE e RERTRX
HERSNRES

Implementing safety measures
on campus during the COVID-19
pandemic to reduce transmission
(see ‘Care for Tenants’ section of
this chapter for more details)
THEZEHE - EEX N KEE
et OB RS AR GRXE
B EBRAAEN RHEST )

Collaborating with well-trusted
contractors and procuring safe and
high quality construction materials
for building projects, such as the
Cyberport Expansion Project to
withstand extreme weather events
SESEBRNREFAE - ARGE
WA (BT 2itR) R %
ML SAM B AR ARG RS
=

Supporting and investing in start-
ups focusing on sustainability to
reduce the impacts of climate
change and extreme weather events
SRR AR FERRNERNT]
Bl - BURR SR MR IE RS
EHEFm

Hosting workshops that cover ESG
topics to increase awareness on
climate change and sustainability,
thus, better preparing for responses
to extreme weather events
ZH/RBESC THHITRYT - Ui
WARZA A FERRAEIR - M
ifiy o R AR R S R AR A O
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Type of Climate Risk | Specific Risk

SR BRSEE

BER K

Potential Impacts

BRI

Resilience Measures

IVBSELY;

Transitional
il

e Policy risk
o BN

e  Reputation risk

. EENR

e Regulatory and policy changes
in achieving a low-carbon
economy affects the overall
operations of the business.
Any non-compliance will
adversely affect the reputation
and reliability of Cyberport.
Cyberport needs to continually
transition to renewable energy
sources (i.e. solar, wind
and hydro], reduce carbon
emissions and incorporate
innovative and sustainable
designs to remain competitive
in the industry

o LBEIMIRAFTAEE MK
KIFE - 2L ERE
B LBBHTH - BN HE
R BB FIER T
o EXBUDERE - BADER
A A BAERLR(BIAMHAE - WAL
FIKER) ~ B RHER - HRA Y
AR S AIRIT - TR

Consolidation and coordination with
tenants to provide one-stop shuttle
buses to minimise traffic congestion
and reduce carbon emissions
SHEARAME - RH-WAFRE
o DURER BB MR R HE R

Installation of Electric Vehicle (EV)
charging stations at carparks

EEREGREBHFETEBI

Redevelopment of the Le Méridien
to include sustainability features
(see ‘A Greener and More Efficient
Cyberport’ section of this chapter
for more details)

RN EAE - URAR KRS
BB AR "EIMRES A
mE" )

Cyberport Expansion Project
to implement carbon neutrality
initiatives (see ‘A Greener and More

REHN

Efficient Cyberport’ section of this
chapter for more details)

o TREUGEY IR AETTHRR A
ER(HEESHAR " ERRESHMN
HAGE" )

e New Lotus Pond at Cyberport for
greenery enhancement at the
premises

o BUBEIEEIN - EINGA TR

e  Reskinning recycling facilities
to enhance efficiency of sorting
materials

o WELDUGRME - MRS D REME

Leveraging Technology in Our Climate Change Response

Technological advancements have enabled the world to pursue countless
opportunities and make ideas into a reality. With Cyberport’s focus and strength in
technology, we have leveraged upon this specialty to respond to ESG opportunities
and will continue to integrate technology in addressing climate change.

We have enhanced our waste management this year by refining our recycling
facilities throughout our campus. The ‘Big Belly’ smart recycling bins are solar
powered and installed with an intelligent sensor and compressor that compacts
recycled content when they are full and sends notifications to cleaning staff for
collection. Through this upgrade, clean energy is utilised and working efficiency
is increased. The ‘Big Belly’ bins have also been reskinned with vibrant colours
for users to easily identify the types of materials to be placed in the associated
bins. Proper categorisation and handling of recycled goods are crucial in
reducing overall waste generated.
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ourful recycling bins are solar powered with intelligent sensor
alled that allow them to send notifications to cleaning staff for
ection when they are full.

RO EIAG RAABRAESL D - T RR T BAEZ AR - HEUGERS B
RILAE ShBAEE A RAITHREE

Cyberport has implemented a 'smart system’ for its washrooms around the
campus, such as installation of sensors that provide updates to the Facility
Management team on performing emergency repairs. We have worked with
Softhard.l0, a Cyberport incubatee, since 2019 to utilise Indoor Air Quality (IAQ)
sensor technology in restrooms to freshen up the environment.

We continue to use disinfection robots created by our incubatees, Rice Robotics
and Avalon Steritech, on our premises in the wake of the COVID-19 pandemic to
reduce the spread of the virus and maintain a clean space for everyone.

With EVs currently dominating the market in response to lowering carbon
emissions, Cyberport has engaged its incubatees, oneCHARGE Solutions and
LHC New Energy Company, to apply an EV charger system at carpark areas to
boost convenience for EV owners and encourage a cleaner alternative to travel.
We will continue to engage in raising our campus capacity for EV charging.

A Greener and More Efficient Cyberport

During the year, Cyberport has furthered its efforts in applying sustainable
features in its daily operational activities.

Improving the Tenant Bus System

We noticed that the independent operation of bus routes by Cyberport and
individual tenants results in duplicated efforts, spare seating capacity
and unnecessary traffic flow. As such, we have undergone an initiative to
consolidate our tenant bus fleets with the purpose of increasing efficiency, as
well as lowering the carbon footprint of our campus. Through centralising bus
routes, we have increased the utilisation of bus capacities and reduced the
campus’ carbon emissions by around 55 tonnes per year. We complemented
this consolidation effort with a new tenant bus app rolled out in January 2022,
with features including real-time update of bus locations and instant alerts in
the case of special situations.
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isinfection robot busily cleans the premises to ensure a germ-free
ironment.
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Centralisation of bus route reduced
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Al Chiller Plant Optimisation System

We are currently working on the enhancement of the Chiller Plant System,
which is a two-year project to be completed in early 2023. The scope of this
project entails replacing chiller units and heat exchangers that have already
deteriorated and implementing an Al chiller plant optimisation system. The
new system minimises manpower used on operational control and energy use
due to the automatic tuning based on the actual cooling demand. Through
saving energy and electricity, Cyberport is able to reduce greenhouse gas
emissions and contribute to a greener and low-carbon society.

2

As part of the Al chiller plant optimisation system, we have installed
new chiller plant systems with energy saving features.
EAATBERKNAREREN —F 5 - RALE T ABTREDAENFTK
HBRLE

Smart Car Park System Improvements

Cyberport’'s Smart Car Park System improvement project helps enhance
management efficiency and reduce the reliance on manpower, by enabling
contactless parking and use of e-payment, as well as providing real-time
information on the availability of parking spaces via an application. Expected
completion of this project will be in early 2023.

Le Méridien’s Sustainability Components

Le Méridien Hong Kong went through a major facelift this year. The renovation is
meant to provide state-of-the-art accommodations, refined dining and excellent
multi-function spaces. Sustainable elements are incorporated into the design
of the hotel, including Waterlogic slim water taps in place of plastic bottles
to deliver purified water in guestrooms, smart room control technology for
guest comfort and energy savings (includes passive infrared (PIR) and motion
sensors), residential bathrooms amenities, the use of glass and other recyclable
elements in guestroom items to reduce single use plastics. Sustainable food
sourcing by the restaurants includes seafood suppliers with World Wildlife Fund
(WWF) certification, as well as the smart hydroponics farm run by Cyberport
company, FarmacyHK. Cyberport also partnered with O-Park to manage and
minimise food waste. We have also deployed robots developed by Cyberport

company Rice Robotics to provide smart concierge services for hotel guests.
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We have replaced the heat exchangers that have already deteriorated to
enhance efficiency of the system.
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The Smart Farm of Le Méridien uses
smart hydroponics farm technology
introduced by Cyberport start-up
Farmacy HK.
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ments are incorporated in the guest rooms of Le Méridien.
TARSRRITE °

Cyberport Expansion

For our continued growth, Cyberport is currently undergoing expansion [i.e.
Cyberport 5] to provide new facilities, including office and co-working spaces
equipped with advanced smart office facilities, data service platforms providing
convenient and flexible cloud data services, a flexible multi-function hall with
a capacity up to 800 persons and additional ancillary facilities, such as food
and beverage services, convenience stores, retail shops, etc. Cyberport 5 will
also designate part of the low zone floor spaces as greenery open spaces,
sunset observation decks and naturally ventilated wind corridors for the
public’s enjoyment. The surrounding environment will be enhanced with the
revitalisation of the existing waterfront park landscape features and smart
facilities. Sustainability has been a key consideration at multiple stages of
this project, from the design of the building to the construction processes and
selection of construction materials used. Various sustainability design features
will be incorporated in the Expansion Project, such as building-integrated
photovoltaics panels, rainwater harvesting system, smart building management
and monitoring system, EV charging system, Al-optimised high efficiency chiller
and solar-powered lighting and landscape furniture, etc. Modular Integrated
Construction [MiC) Technology has been implemented, whereby free-standing
integrated modules completed with finishes, fixtures and fittings are transported
from a prefabrication factory to the site for installation. To complement this, we
have engaged in transportation of construction materials by sea to reduce road
traffic and the associated GHG emissions. We have also sought ways to minimise
noise pollution and shorten the overall construction time.

Minimising Construction Waste

Cyberport has implemented initiatives to minimise construction waste
through performing need-based restorations only upon the departure of
tenants. Furthermore, the Cyberport Expansion Project observes BEAM Plus
certification criteria and aims for at least 30% of construction waste to be
recycled during the construction processes.
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Sustainability has been a key consideration at
multiple stages of the Cyberport Expansion
Project. Cyberport Expansion Project includes
many sustainability features.
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Co-building for a Sustainable Community

Cyberport has joined the 4T Partnership established by the Government to align
its targets and actions to achieve carbon neutrality by 2050.

Putting a spotlight on ESG topics will help enhance public awareness and
understanding, which is what Cyberport has been doing in the past year. We
shared our spaces with JLL Hong Kong to host Journey to Zero Carbon with
Technologies in December 2021 to provide attendees insights on how to apply
technologies effectively to reduce carbon emissions. Furthermore, we hosted
the Cyberport FinTech for ESG Conference 2021 to allow businesses to explore
how to enhance efficiency when implementing ESG measures, as well as
“Shaping a Sustainable Financial Ecosystem: How to Integrate ESG Factors with
FinTech” with start-up representatives sharing how the industry is promoting
global ESG and sustainable development.
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Cyberport co-hosted “Journey to Zero Carbon with Technologies” to inspire attendees with insights on how to apply

technologies effectively to reduce carbon emissions.
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Industry leaders shared insights on how newly developed data
management system ESG Dashboard can enhance the efficiency of ESG
report preparation at Cyberport FinTech for ESG Conference 2021.
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Representatives from the Cyberport FinTech Community, PortageBay and
ProMEX, discussed how start-ups could help companies seize opportunities
brought by global ESG trends.
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RICS Awards 2021 - HKCMCL received a highly commended recognition as the
“Facilities Management Team of the Year” alongside JLL Hong Kong

Together with JLL Hong Kong, Cyberport was highly commended as Facilities
Management Team of the Year at the RICS Awards Hong Kong 2021 due to our
outstanding achievements. In addition, we were the finalists for the Agency Team of the
Year and Property Management Team of the Year.

Social
Care for Tenants

Cyberport continues to strive for the wellbeing of its tenants. The COVID-19
pandemic has posed many challenges to businesses and continues to risk the
health of those who operate within this community. Cyberport has contributed
its efforts to alleviate the burden of its tenants throughout these difficult times,
standing by the principle of fostering a healthy community.

Cyberport welcomed the Government's measure to provide a six-month rental
concession for Cyberport’s commercial tenants through the 6th round of Anti-
epidemic Fund, to help Cyberport's commercial tenants weather operation
pressures and challenges arising from the current pandemic. From 1 April
to 30 September 2022, the Government will grant a 75% rental concessions
for all Cyberport office tenants, Smart-Space users in Cyberport's main
campus and Tsuen Wan, as well as retailers and restaurant operators. The
rental concession is capped at 5,000 sq. ft. of rental space per tenant. A total
of some 930 companies and start-ups are expected to benefit from the rental

concession.

Staying true to our goal in preventing the spread of COVID-19, we have
implemented appropriate measures to ensure the health and safety of our
community. We utilise disinfection robots that carry out daily campus-wide
disinfections, anti-epidemic coatings applied to communal areas, temperature
checks at entrances to screen out individuals with symptoms and other
standard safety measures. In doing so, we ensure the physical wellbeing of

everyone and do our part in combatting the pandemic.
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We applied anti-epidemic coatings to
communal areas on the Cyberport campus.
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entrances.
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We installed equipment to conduct
temperature checks at all Cyberport
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Disinfection robots make their rounds on
campus to perform adequate cleaning and
sterilisation to avoid the spread of illnesses.
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We care for our tenants” mental wellbeing and understand the importance of
beautification and accessibility to promoting good mental health. Cyberport
constructed a new Lotus Flower Pond within its campus, which provides a
recreation area for both Cyberport occupants and visitors to relax and rest. At
the Arcade, we adopted pet friendly measures to increase accessibility and
convenience for pet owners.
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lora and fauna surrounding the newly constructed Lotus Flower Pond.
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Care for Our Staff

COVID-19 has impacted multiple facets of our lives, which has compelled
many organisations to reassess their working practices. There is no doubt
that Cyberport has demonstrated progress to improve employee work-Llife
balance and health by implementing work from home arrangements. We also
offer reimbursement for employees who conduct the COVID-19 test at private
laboratories and/or purchase Rapid Antigen Tests to alleviate their financial
burden. To align with the Government’s efforts in vaccinating everyone in the
community, we encourage our staff to make their vaccination appointments and
provide them with one day paid leave to recover. We will closely monitor the
COVID-19 situation and have appropriate measures to allow our employees to
work in a safe and positive environment.

Training workshops and programmes are attended by Cyberport employees
to ensure proper procedures are followed and that they are equipped with
the necessary skills to meet day-to-day demands of their positions. Topics on
training events include data privacy, safety and emergency and IT security.
Cyberport actively assesses the adequacy and effectiveness of the training
programmes to further refine the content and to continue developing our talent
pool.
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Serving the Community through Technology

As Hong Kong's premier tech epicentre, Cyberport strives to serve the
community through its use of innovative technology. Whether it is to support
businesses, green initiatives or charities, technology is utilised to support our
community.

The iAM Smart Sandbox Programme, implemented by Cyberport and the Office
of the Government Chief Information Officer (OGCIO), has continued to support
its benefactor companies and businesses this year. Member companies grew
and exceeded 300 entities, including 230 companies from the financial and
FinTech sector. The programme has successfully helped seven organisations
roll out iIAM Smart enabled services, including five financial service
organisations. Service to member companies has also extended to cover free
technical training, where 10 training sessions were held as of 31 March 2022.

We are also committed to supporting community start-ups with their
innovative solutions, for example through 5G technology. We are providing free
development kits to help shorten start-ups’ development time of 5G solutions,
as well as free exhibit areas to allow them to showcase their 5G solutions in our
CyberLab. In addition, we are coordinating with telecommunication operators
to provide opportunities for the commercialisation of 5G solutions to enhance
overall lifestyle and business applications. Other than entertainment and F&B
projects, start-ups have also utilised 5G in green technology projects. For
example, the high speed and low latency of 5G has enabled Carbon World, a
green technology company, to upgrade its self-developed PET bottle recycling
machines. With the help of 5G, the bottle identification process is shortened
from twenty to five seconds. The new technology has also made real-time
machine inspections possible. Advancements enabled by technology such as
this one, has helped make recycling more efficient and encouraged individuals
to “go green” in their everyday lives. Further to this green technology example,
different 5G rental cases have been facilitated for the use of our community
members during the year.

In the spirit of giving back to the community, we held several Corporate Social
Responsibility related events to support various initiatives. These events
included ones with the theme of innovation and charity events such as Yan Oi
Tong's Charity Walk Day, where more than 1,000 individuals attended.

Undeterred Connections

Despite the pandemic limiting gatherings and events, we were able to follow
proper social distancing regulations while maintaining strong community
bonds and connections. CyberLab is a platform for technology companies and
start-ups in the Cyberport community to showcase their I&T products and
solutions. Cyberlab successfully organised 98 visits to connect start-ups and
industry members with proper social distancing in place. Showcases were
divided into four major areas, namely esports, green, health and robotics, with
the goal of providing a spotlight and additional support to these ventures. A
new “Live Stream Experience Zone” - a venue for livestreaming performances
and seminars was established in December 2021. “CyberArena” has also
been upgraded with enhanced safety and entertainment technologies. The fire
protection system was enhanced after renovation, with the addition of new
sprinkler pipes, which improved safety measures of the venue.
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e Stream Experience Zone extends outreach to audiences on

latforms.
XFERE T A ERMARTES o

Other details on the social impact created by Cyberport in realising its public
missions are covered in different sections of this report. For more details,
please refer to the respective "Public Missions” sections.

Corporate Governance

Cyberport places corporate governance at the core of its operations and instills
accountability, transparency, fairness, ethics and integrity as the cornerstones
of its corporate governance framework. A comprehensive governance structure
has been established consisting of the Board of Directors and six Board
Committees to monitor and oversee relevant matters of Cyberport on behalf
of the Board, while an internal audit team was set up to review the controls
sufficiency, effectiveness and efficiency of operations and compliance with in-
house policies, as well as relevant laws and regulations. There is a wide range
of expertise and backgrounds within the Board of Directors, enabling Cyberport
to have specialised insights and knowledge to handle various aspects of its
operations. Newly appointed Board Members are given a tailored induction
programme to familiarise themselves with Cyberport’'s objectives, business,
major developments and other specific directorial duties. Furthermore, policies
on corporate governance are in place, including a Code of Conduct, Conflict of
Interests and Whistleblowing Policy to lay out responsible and conscionable
behaviours to be enacted at the workplace. For more details on Cyberport’s
corporate governance practices, please refer to the Corporate Governance
Report on pages 76 to 93.

Looking Forward

Cyberport looks forward to continuing the ESG journey in creating a sustainable
and green future. Our upcoming eco-friendly initiatives, including the solar
power system project at Cyberport 3 and 4A and the Cyberport 5 Expansion
Project will further our commitment to elevate the standards and operational
strategies to becoming an environmentally and socially conscious enterprise.
Stay tuned for more exciting news to come, as we venture into another chapter
of innovation and entrepreneurship.
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The board of directors (the “Board” or “Board Members”) and the
management (“Management”) of Hong Kong Cyberport Management
Company Limited (the “Company”) are committed to maintaining and
upholding high standards of corporate governance. The Company believes
that good corporate governance provides the foundation for good corporate
performance and is essential to accomplishing our public missions, meeting
the expectations of our stakeholders, and attaining long-term and sustainable
growth. The Company has therefore adopted accountability, transparency,
fairness, ethics and integrity as the cornerstones of our corporate governance
framework.
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Corporate Governance Structure
(As at 31 March 2022)
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Board of Directors

The Board has the collective responsibilities for the leadership and control of
the Company within a framework of prudent and effective controls. It governs
and leads the Company in a responsible and effective manner.

The Board sets the corporate strategies and approves the operating plans
proposed by Management. Each Board Member has a duty to act in good faith
and in the best interests of the Company.

To ensure effective discharge of duties by Board Members, the Board assumes
the responsibility of ensuring that each Board Member has spent sufficient time
to attend to the affairs of the Company. All Board Members are kept abreast of
the development of the Company through regular Board meetings, and receipt
of regular financial and business updates.

Board Members may seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at the Company’s expense to discharge their duties.

The Company has also arranged appropriate Directors” and Officers’ liability
insurance to indemnify the Board Members against liabilities arising out of
the discharge of their duties and responsibilities as the Board Members of the
Company.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The roles of the Chairman of the Board, and the Chief Executive Officer ("CEO")
of the Company are complementary, but more importantly, they are distinct
and separate with a clear and well established division of responsibilities,
enhancing independence and accountability.

The Chairman of the Board, who is a Non-executive Director, is responsible for
managing and leading the Board in setting the Company’s overall directions,
strategies and policies, as well as monitoring the performance of the CEO.
Apart from making sure that adequate information about the Company’s
business is provided to the Board in a timely basis, the Chairman provides
leadership for the Board, and ensures views on all principal and appropriate
issues are exchanged in a timely manner, by encouraging all Board Members to
make a full and effective contribution to the discussion. Under the Chairman’s
guidance, all decisions have reflected the consensus of the Board.

The CEO, who is appointed by the Board as a remunerated full-time employee
of the Company, is responsible to the Board for implementing the strategy and
policy as established by the Board, and managing the day-to-day business of the
Company.

Board Composition

As at the date of this Annual Report, the Board comprised of 15 Directors, of
whom all are Non-executive Directors, Mr Simon CHAN Sai-ming (Chairman)
lappointed on 1 April 2022), Professor Karen CHAN Ka-yin, Professor
Christopher CHAO Yu-hang, Ms Ivy CHEUNG Wing-han, Hon LAU Kwok-
fan, Mr Michael LEUNG Kin-man, Professor LING Kar-kan, Ms Erica MA Yun
lappointed on 1 April 2022), Mr MAK Tak-wai (appointed on 20 July 2022), Mr
Victor NG Chi-keung, Mr Hendrick SIN, Dr Charleston SIN Chiu-shun, Ms
Maggie TSOI Tsz-shan (appointed on 1 April 2022], Ms Rosana WONG Wai-
man and Mr Eric YEUNG Chuen-sing. This structure effectively ensures the
independence, objectivity and impartiality of the Board's decision-making
process and oversight of Management. Non-executive Directors bring an
external perspective, constructively challenge and advise on proposals or
strategy.
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All Board Members are appointed by the shareholders without receiving any FEEZEZREKAYBABRREET - 2 H KEE A
honorarium, generally for a two-year term and subject to re-appointment upon % - —RREMMANWF REPEBEAFREL -

expiry of their terms.

Board Composition
EERMALAE
Gender

3
U

Female Z 1% 5

Male 1% 1 0

Length of Service on Board

HEXAARNESRNFH
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TR—F
>4 Years
B 1-4 Years
—EmE

Category
£

Non-executive

BAIERITRA

Government 1

Non-Government
Non-executive

FEHFRITRA
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Government 1
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Commercial
e

Academic 2
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Accounting/
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Board Diversity

We recognise the importance of ensuring an appropriate balance of skills,
knowledge, experience and gender on the Board to our corporate governance.
Our Board Members, while one of them is from the Government, with others
come from various business fields, including technology and innovation,
accounting and finance, commercial, building construction, town planning,
public affairs and academic, have both the breadth and depth of relevant
experience to steer and oversee the business of the Company.

The current mix of our Board Members is balanced and well represented by
IT professionals, business executives, government representatives and other
industry professionals and leaders. Biographical details of the Board Members
are set out in the section “Board of Directors” in this Annual Report. The
Company also maintains on its website (www.cyberport.hk) an updated list of its
Board Members identifying their roles and functions.

Board Functions

The Board directs the management of the business and affairs of the Company.
The overall management of the Company’s business is vested in the Board.
The Board focuses its attention on providing overall strategic guidance to the
Company on its business development, finance and oversight over corporate
governance. These include strategic planning, financial and business
performance, governance and risk management, as well as human resources
and remuneration issues.

At the regular Board meetings, Management reports the Company's business to
the Board, including the Company's operations, progress of projects, financial
performance, legal issues, corporate governance, risk management, human
resources, sustainability, corporate responsibility and outlook. Together with
the discussions at Board meetings, this ensures that Board Members have a
general understanding of the Company’s business and sufficient information to
make informed decisions for the benefit of the Company.

In addition to the reqular financial and business performance reports submitted
to the Board at its regular meetings, the Board also receives monthly financial
and business updates with information on the Company’s latest financial
performance. Directors can therefore have a balanced and comprehensive
assessment of the Company’s performance, business operations, financial
position and prospects throughout the year. All Board Members have access to
Management for obtaining necessary information.
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Directors Continuous Training and Development Programme

Each newly appointed Board Member is given a comprehensive, formal and
tailored induction programme so that they can discharge their responsibilities
to the Company properly and effectively. The programme consists of meeting
with the CEO and Management, briefings on the Company's operations
and major developments, and visits to the Company’s facilities. New Board
Members are able to familiarise themselves with the Company’s objectives,
strategies, business, operations and internal controls, as well as the general
and specific duties of directors.

Further, all Board Members are provided with a Directors” Handbook on their
appointment, which sets out, amongst other things, directors” duties, code
of conduct, declaration of interests and the terms of reference of the Board
Committees. The Directors’” Handbook is updated from time to time to reflect
developments in those areas.

Recognising that development is an ongoing process, Board Members were
invited to attend forums and conferences on information technology in the year
under review ("Year”). A briefing session on “Northern Metropolis Strategy”
hosted by the Hong Kong/Shenzhen Co-operation of Policy Innovation and Co-
ordination Office was arranged for the Board on 6 December 2021 to share the
transformation and development of northern Hong Kong into an international
I&T hub.

Board Proceedings

Board meetings are held regularly and no less than once every quarter.
Additional Board or Committee meetings to consider specific matters can be
convened when necessary. All Board Members have full and timely access
to all relevant information about the Company and may take independent
professional advice at the Company’s expense, if necessary, in accordance
with the approved procedures, so that they can discharge their duties and
responsibilities as Board Members.

Schedule for the regular Board and Committee meetings in each year is made
available to all Board Members before the end of the preceding fiscal year.
Furthermore, notice of meetings will be given to the Board Members before
each regular meeting.

Meeting agenda for regular meetings are set after consultation with the
Chairman and CEO. In general, the agenda and papers are sent to the Board
Members five working days before the intended date of the meeting.

Board Members may attend the Board meetings in person or through electronic
means of communication.

Matters to be resolved at Board meetings are decided by a majority of votes
from the Board Members allowed to vote, although the usual practice is that
decisions reflect the consensus of the Board. The process of the Board is
reviewed from time to time to keep abreast of regulatory changes and best
corporate governance practices.
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Board Meetings

During the Year, the Board held four meetings in hybrid format with overall
attendance of 89.3%.

Key matters considered/resolved:

Strategic plan and objectives

Annual plan and performance targets

Mid-Year key performance indicators review

Annual report and audited financial statements
Management accounts and reports

Amendment of code of conduct for Directors

Amendment of code of conduct and business ethics for staff ["Staff Code”)
Oversight of senior management

Corporate goals and performance assessment

Annual performance assessment of Management
Transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance

Apart from Board meetings, the Chairman had sessions with Board Members
without the presence of Management to discuss human resources matters.

Strategic Planning

The Board has continued to review the strategies of the Company to identify and
assess the opportunities and challenges the Company may face, and to develop
a planned course of action for the Company to generate and preserve long-term
value.

The direction of Cyberport Three-Year Strategic Plan 2020/21 - 2022/23 was set
in the 2019/20 so as to continue its public mission to drive Hong Kong's digital
technology development. Progress of implementation of the key initiatives in the
strategic plan was reported to and reviewed by the Board Members.

Financial Reporting

The Board is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”), and of the Group’s result and cash
flows for the Year. The Board has prepared the financial statements on a going
concern basis, and has adopted appropriate accounting policies and applied
them consistently. Judgments and estimates have been made that are prudent
and reasonable.

In support of the above, the financial statements presented to the Board have
been reviewed by Management. Management is responsible for finalising them
with the external auditor and then the Audit Committee.

In addition, all new and amended accounting standards and requirements,
as well as changes in accounting policies adopted by the Group have been
discussed and approved by the Audit Committee before adoption by the Group.

Board Members acknowledge their responsibilities for ensuring that the
preparation of the annual financial statements of the Group is in accordance
with statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards.

Further, in order to make a comprehensive assessment of the Group's

performance, the Board has reviewed an annual plan during the Year and the
monthly reports on financial results and business performance.
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Code of Conduct

The Company is a public body under the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance
("POBO"). Accordingly, Board Members are regarded as “public servants”
for the purpose of POBO. The Company is fully committed to the principle of
honesty, integrity and fair play in the delivery of products and services to the
public.

The Board is collectively responsible for the management and operations of the
Company. Board Members, both collectively and individually, are expected to
exercise fiduciary duties and duties of care, skill and diligence to a standard at
least commensurate with the standard established by the laws and regulations
of Hong Kong.

Delegating the functions of the Board is permissible but does not absolve Board
Members from their responsibilities or from applying the required levels if they
pay attention to the Company’s affairs only at formal meetings. At a minimum,
Board Members should take an active interest in the Company’s affairs and
obtain a general understanding of the Company’s business.

Board Members should regularly attend and actively participate in Board and
Committee meetings, and prepare for them by reviewing all materials provided
by Management.

Board Members are required on their first appointment, on an annual basis, and
as and when necessary thereafter to declare any interests that are or may be
relevant and material to the business and operations of the Company. They are
also required to inform the Company Secretary of any changes in their declared
interests or any new interests that may arise as soon as they become aware
of such interests. A Register of Directors’ Interests is kept by the Company
Secretary and is accessible by the Board Members.

Every Board Member is also required to observe his/her ongoing disclosure
obligations (including, without limitation, requirements to notify changes in
personal particulars to the Company Secretary and/or circumstances that may
affect his/her independence, and to declare material interests, if any, in any
transaction, arrangement or contract or a proposed transaction, arrangement
or contract with the Company] under the Companies Ordinance.

A Board Member cannot cast a vote on any contract, transaction, arrangement
or any other kind of proposal in which he/she has an interest and which he/
she knows is material except with the approval of the Board/Committees. For
this purpose, interests of a person who is connected with a Board Member
(including any of his/her associates) are treated as the interests of the Board
Member himself/herself. A Board Member may not be included in the quorum
for such part of a meeting that relates to a resolution he/she is not allowed to
vote on, but he/she shall be included in the quorum for all other parts of that
meeting. This reduces potential conflicts which might otherwise arise between
the Company’s business and an individual Board Member’'s other interests or
appointments.
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Board Committees

During the Year, the Board has six standing Committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, Construction and Facilities Committee, Entrepreneurship
Committee, Finance and Administration Committee, Macro Fund Investment
Committee and Remuneration and People Committee, to assist it in carrying its
responsibilities.

Each of these Committees has specific written terms of reference, which set out
in detail their respective authorities and responsibilities. The terms of reference
of all Board Committees are reviewed from time to time in the light of the
Company’s evolving operational, business and development needs.

Attendance records of each individual member of the Board during the Year are
shown on page 89 of the Annual Report.

All Committees are accountable to the Board for their recommendations and
decisions. The meeting processes of the Board Committees follow closely those
of the Board. The interface between the Board and Board Committees are:

All Board Members may attend any Committee meetings as observers

Board Members are free to access the papers of any Committee meetings
through the Company Secretary

Full minutes of Committee meetings are sent to Board Members for
information

The following sets out details of Board Committees, principal duties and key
matters considered or resolved during the Year.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee ("AC”) is responsible for overseeing and reviewing the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control, risk management system,
regulatory compliance, and the Company’s internal audit function. It is
responsible for overseeing the integrity of the Group's financial statements and
the application of financial reporting principles, and the Company’s relationship
with the external auditors and their independence assessments. As at 31 March
2022, the AC comprised six members, all Non-executive Directors, Mr Victor NG
Chi-keung (Chairman of the AC), Professor Karen CHAN Ka-yin, Ms lvy CHEUNG
Wing-han, Hon Duncan CHIU, Ms Annie CHOI Suk-han and Ms Rosana WONG
Wai-man.

Principal duties:

Review and endorse audited financial statements for the Board's approval
Make recommendations on the appointment of external auditor, approve
its audit fee and terms of engagement, and oversee the Company’s
relations with the external auditor

Review accounting policies

Oversee internal controls, financial controls, risk management system and
internal audit function

Key matters considered/resolved:

Annual audited financial statements

External auditor’s report, objectivity and effectiveness of audit process
Risk management and internal control review

Risk register and risk assessment results

Internal audit job plan

Internal audit review reports

Whistleblowing cases
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Construction and Facilities Committee

The Construction and Facilities Committee ("CFC”] is responsible for
monitoring and overseeing the capital works related matters, facilities
management and related consultancy services. As at 31 March 2022, the
CFC comprised six members, all Non-executive Directors, Ms Rosana WONG
Wai-man (Chairperson of the CFCJ, Professor Christopher CHAO Yu-hang,
Hon Duncan CHIU, Ms Annie CHOI Suk-han, Hon LAU Kwok-fan and Professor
LING Kar-kan.

Principal duties:

Approve or recommend the capital works projects (including new
development, re-development and construction] to be undertaken by the
Company and the modality for facilities management of the Company's
premises

Endorse and recommend the planning and development parameters for
new capital projects including but not limited to master development plan,
design, programme, budget and facilities provisions and related headcount
requirements

Approve the award, variations/claims and commercial settlement of
contracts for capital works, facilities management works and related
consultancy services

Monitor the progress and control the expenditure of capital works projects,
and facilities management matters

Review and approve the capital works and facilities management related
policies

Key matters considered/resolved:

Monitor the progress of Cyberport Expansion Project and hotel renovation
works
Review campus facilities management works and contract awards

Transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance
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Entrepreneurship Committee

The Entrepreneurship Committee ("EC”) is responsible for overseeing the
administration and management of the start-up and entrepreneurship
programmes and events implemented by the Company, such as the Cyberport
Incubation Programme ("CIP”), the Cyberport Creative Micro Fund ("CCMF"],
the Esports Industry Facilitation Scheme ("EIFS”) and the Cyberport Accelerator
Support Programme. As at 31 March 2022, the EC comprised of eight members,
all Non-executive Directors, Professor LING Kar-kan (Chairman of the ECJ,
Professor Christopher CHAO Yu-hang, Ms Annie CHOI Suk-han, Hon LAU Kwok-
fan, Mr Hendrick SIN, Dr Charleston SIN Chiu-shun, Ms Rosana WONG Wai-
man and Mr Eric YEUNG Chuen-sing.

Principal duties:

Oversee the administration and management of the start-up and
entrepreneurship programmes and events implemented by the Company
Monitor and review the operational or financial plans and proposals,
administrative matters, business directions and strategies in relation to
the following three aspects:

- Sparking creative ideas through the CCMF Scheme

- Nurturing technology start-ups through the CIP

- Boosting technology start-ups’ fundraising capability

Approve the appointment and composition of the Entrepreneurship
Committee Advisory Group ("ECAG") which comprises venture capitalists,
business executives, technology industry professionals, academics, and
trade association members

Approve applications for the start-up and entrepreneurship programmes
of the Company

Monitor and review the progress of the start-ups of the programmes

Key matters considered/resolved:

CIP vetting results and its enhancement

CCMF vetting results and its enhancement

Cyberport Greater Bay Area Young Entrepreneurship Programme vetting
results

EIFS and Esports Internship Scheme vetting results and its enhancement

Digital Entertainment Leadership Forum
Cyberport Venture Capital Forum

Internet Economy Summit

Cyberport Career Fair

Cyberport University Partnership Programme
Changes for the composition of ECAG
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Finance and Administration Committee

The Finance and Administration Committee ("FAC”) is responsible for
monitoring and overseeing the finance and administration aspects of the
Company. As at 31 March 2022, the FAC comprised of six members, all Non-
executive Directors, Hon Duncan CHIU (Chairman of the FAC], Ms vy CHEUNG
Wing-han, Ms Annie CHOI Suk-han, Mr Michael LEUNG Kin-man, Professor
LING Kar-kan and Mr Victor NG Chi-keung.

Principal duties:

Approve any budgeted expenditures, commitments and payments by the
Company

Decide and approve appropriate action in response to any unplanned
matters or approve any unbudgeted expenditures, commitments and
payments

Review and approve the corporate policies including leasing, procurement,
finance, administration, marketing and IT

Review resources for the execution and implementation of the approved
business plans and corporate development strategies

Key matters considered/resolved:

Review and endorse annual budget and office rental rates for the Board
approval

Mid-Year financial review

Review and endorse Cyberport Expansion Project financing arrangement
for the Board approval

Tenancy related matters

Macro Fund Investment Committee

The Macro Fund Investment Committee ("MFIC”) is responsible for overseeing
the administration, management and overall performance of the Cyberport
Macro Fund ("CMF"] and approval of the CMF related investments. The CMF,
with a total size of HK$400 million, aims to provide seed to Series A stage and
beyond funding to Cyberport digital entrepreneurs ("DE"] to assist them to
accelerate, and to promote the development of the venture capital ecosystem
for DE in Hong Kong. The CMF is an investment fund which targets to co-invest
with other private and public investors in the Cyberport DE. As at 31 March 2022,
the MFIC comprised five members, including four Non-executive Directors, Dr
George Lam (Chairman of the MFIC), Professor Karen CHAN Ka-yin, Mr Victor
NG Chi-keung and Mr Hendrick SIN, and a government representative, Miss
Charmaine Amy WONG Hoi-wan.

Principal duties:

Review and approve CMF related investments recommendations from
Management

Oversee administration, management and overall performance of the CMF

Monitor and advise on the operation of the CMF

Key matters considered/resolved:

Review on CMF investment portfolio

CMF applications and exit

Review and endorse the first CMF beyond Series A investment for the
Board approval
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Remuneration and People Committee

The Remuneration and People Committee ("RPC"] is responsible for making

recommendations to the Board on organisational structure and policies on

staffing, remuneration, employment, discipline and dismissal, with reference

to the Company’s overall goals and objectives. As at 31 March 2022, the

RPC comprised six members, all Non-executive Directors, Dr George Lam
(Chairman of the RPCJ, Ms Annie CHOI Suk-han, Mr Michael LEUNG Kin-man,
Mr Hendrick SIN, Dr Charleston SIN Chiu-shun and Mr Eric YEUNG Chuen-sing.

Principal duties:

Review staffing, remuneration and employment policies and strategies
Advise the Board on staff-related issues, including annual corporate goals
and performance measures, grading and pay structure, variable pay and
retirement schemes

Review the criteria for assessing employee performance and make
recommendations to the Board

Review the salary increase and annual performance bonus for the senior
executives and general staff, and make recommendations to the Board
Board approves the annual plan and delegate RPC to review the
performance of the C-levels management of the Company, with reference
to the Board's approved Key Performance Indicators ("KPIs"] and
objectives

Key matters considered/resolved:

88

Corporate goals and performance measurements
Annual performance review of C-levels management
Staff engagement and retention

Amendment of the Staff Code
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Meeting Attendance

A summary of meeting attendance of Board Members in meetings of the Board

and Committees for the financial year from 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022 is

provided in the following table. TK °

Meetings MFIC

BIDBR

Board Members BEllbE

EERMA EERS
Number of meeting(s) held HITLBORE 4 2 5 3 3 2 3
Lee George LAM (Chairman) MRIL(ERE) 4/4 - - - - 2/2 3/3
Karen CHAN W32 % 3/4 2/2 - - - 2/2 -
Christopher CHAQ [28 gl 3/4 - 5/5 3/3 - - -
lvy CHEUNG SREA 44 2/2 - - 3/3 - -
Duncan CHIU ERIAIR 44 1/2 415 - 3/3 - -
Annie CHOI " or her alternate BRI (B RES) b 2/2 5/5 3/3 3/3 - 3/3
LAU Kwok-fan® XE & 3/4 - 4/5 3/3 - - -
Michael LEUNG BRI 3/4 - - - 2/3 - 3/3
LING Kar-kan ) 3/4 - 3/5 2/3 3/3 - -
Victor NG RER 4/ 2/2 - - 3/3 2/2 -
Hendrick SIN e 4l4 - - 3/3 - 2/2 3/3
Charleston SIN iR 414 - - 3/3 - - 3/3
Charmaine WONG® #HgEo - - - - - 11 -
Rosana WONG #EH 3/4 2/2 5/5 2/3 - - -
Eva YAMWY R - - - - - 11 -
Eric YEUNG [TES2] 4/4 - - 3/3 - - 1/3
Average Attendance Rate Y HEE 89.3% 91.7% 86.7% 91.7% 94.4% 100.0% 88.9%

Notes: Wit

(1) All the Committee meetings including AC, CFC, EC, FAC and RPC were attended by

the alternate to Ms Annie CHOI.

(1) FEEFZASH2UEBREFIIERS  BRRRERZA
2 URRERS MERTREALERFHEARER
RALAFRW L TBEHRE -

[2)  Hon LAU Kwok-fan was appointed as Board member, CFC member and EC member  (2) XIEMEAD F2021F481BRREZTNEER/KRA -
with effect from 1 April 2021. BERREEALEARPILEARERASCER °

[3)  Miss Charmaine WONG was appointed as alternate Director to Ms Annie CHOl and  (3) #EB#HLZLE T2021F6A8ARZTNERMNLLHE
MFIC member with effect from 8 June 2021. FEFRBBERROUNLESEZAREZR °

[4)  Miss Eva YAM resigned as alternate Director to Ms Annie CHOI and ceased to be MFIC (4] EHRZEE FT2021F6A8AFIE NN L LHETE
FHTBETHEBRANLESCERLER -

member with effect from 8 June 2021.
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Meeting Procedure

The Board and Committees convene meetings on a regular basis. Special
meetings will be held as and when necessary. Management circulates papers
prior to the respective meetings to provide members adequate information
on a timely manner to facilitate their deliberation of the issues and decision-
making. The respective Board/Committee Secretaries record the major points
of discussion, recommendations, decisions and action items arising from the
meetings. Outstanding matters are followed up by the relevant departments,
and progress updates are reported at subsequent Board/Committee meetings.

Company Secretary

All Board Members have access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary. The Company Secretary is accountable to the Board for ensuring
that the Board procedures are followed and Board activities are efficiently and
effectively conducted. To this end, the Company Secretary facilitates the Board
and Management to adhere to Board processes as updated from time to time,
and the provision of sufficient information to the Board by Management.

Management and Staff

Management and staff, led by the Company's CEO, are responsible for
managing the Company’'s day-to-day operations and implementing the
strategies and directions determined by the Board. The performance of
Management is reviewed with reference to the KPIs and objectives approved
by the Board. The annual emoluments of the Company’s five highest paid
employees by band are disclosed under note 8 to the consolidated financial
statements on page 141.

Guidance on the ethical behaviour of the Company has been well defined in the
Company's Staff Code. From time to time, the Staff Code will be reviewed and
fine-tuned, covering such issues as prevention of bribery, conflict of interest,
acceptance of gifts and advantages, handling of confidential information
and preservation of secrecy, intellectual property, and outside business or
employment. ICAC is invited to give briefings on prevention of bribery and
conflict of interest to the employees of the Company on a reqular basis. Staffs
are also reminded of the need for compliance with the Staff Code from time to
time.

Internal Control and Risk Management

The Board has overall responsibility for the risk management and internal
control system of the Company and for reviewing its effectiveness. The internal
control system is designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure
to achieve business objectives, and to provide reasonable but not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Company aims to maintain a high standard of corporate governance and
enhance transparency and accountability. With the assistance of the internal
audit team, Management reviews the Company's internal control system with
reference to the Committee of Sponsoring Organisations of the Treadway
Commission ("COS0") framework as recommended by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. The review is designed to identify and evaluate
significant risks associated with key processes and the effectiveness of
related controls in mitigating the identified risks. Independent reviews of the

effectiveness of controls are performed by the internal audit team.
Through the AC, the Board reviewed and concurred with the Management’s

assessment that the overall risk management and internal control system was
effective based on the results of internal reviews performed during the year.
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Internal Audit

The internal audit team reports directly and regularly to the AC on control
sufficiency, effectiveness and efficiency of operations and compliance with
in-house policies and procedures and relevant laws and regulations. Audit
assignments are performed in accordance with the annual internal audit job
plan as approved by the AC.

Independent reviews of financial, business and functional operations and
activities by the internal audit team are conducted under a risk-based approach.
Significant deficiencies in internal control are brought to the attention of the
AC and the Board. Findings and internal control recommendations arising
from audit assignments are reported to the respective Management for
actions. The internal audit team performs follow-up reviews to ensure proper
implementation of the agreed actions and the implementation status is
reported to the AC regularly.

External Audit

Ernst & Young was appointed as the Group's external auditor to conduct
the audit of its financial statements. The AC is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment, removal
and remuneration of the external auditor.

The main purpose of the external audit is to provide independent assurance to
the Board and shareholders that the annual financial statements of the Group
are fairly stated. The external auditor plays an important independent role in
expressing an opinion on the financial statements based on their audit, and
meets with the AC to discuss the nature and scope of the audit prior to the
commencement of the work if necessary and to report on findings. The external
auditor also reports internal control recommendations identified as part of the
audit together with management responses, if any.

For the year ended 31 March 2022, the remuneration paid/payable to the
Company’'s external auditor, Messrs. Ernst & Young for audit services was
approximately HK$493,370 (2021: HK$479,000) and for non-audit services was
approximately HK$262,000 (2021: HK$228,000).

Audit Committee

The AC assists the Board in meeting its responsibilities for ensuring effective
systems of internal control and compliance relating to financial reporting, and
in meeting its financial reporting obligations.

Further, the AC directly oversees the work performed by the internal audit
team. Independent reviews of financial, business and functional operations
and activities have been conducted with a focus on higher risk areas of the
Company. The internal audit plan is reviewed and approved by the AC in
advance. Each year, the AC reviews the results of the internal audit assignments
and evaluates the impact of the findings and the proposed Management action
plans, and verifies the adequacy and effectiveness of the mitigating controls.

Delegation of Authority

The authority of the Board and the levels of authority delegated to the
Committees and Management is clearly defined and documented in the
Delegation of Authority Policy. Such delegation of authority is reviewed on a
regular basis to ensure that it meets the business and operational needs.
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Avoidance of Conflicts of Interest

The Company has established policies and procedures to manage actual or
potential conflicts of interest of its staff. Staff working in sensitive areas are
required to adhere to job-specific rules on the avoidance of conflicts of interest
in carrying out their duties.

Whistleblowing Policy

The Company has a formal whistleblowing policy in place to encourage
and guide its staff to raise serious concerns internally in a responsible
manner, without any risk of retribution. The Company also encourages other
stakeholders to raise concerns, in confidence, about suspected misconduct,
malpractice or irregularities in any matters related to the Company.

Constitutional Documents

There was no change in the Company's Articles of Association during the Year.

Transparency

The Company reports annually to the Information Technology and Broadcasting
Panel of the Legislative Council regarding the work of Cyberport in nurturing
the Information and Communications Technology Ecosystem in Hong Kong,
including its financial performance.

To enhance transparency and openness, the Company voluntarily discloses
its compliance with the Corporate Governance Code ["CG Code”] as set out
in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The new CG Code which has been amended
with effect from 1 January 2022 will be implemented in the Corporate
Governance Report where applicable.

The individual attendance records of Board Members at the Board and
Committee meetings is also reported on page 89.

With a view to maintain open and transparent communication with external
stakeholders, the Company continues to connect with the community by taking
advantage of multiple channels and tools. These include the official website,
monthly e-newsletters, press briefings and interviews, and participation in a
variety of local and overseas exhibitions and conferences. Annual reports and
information on our programmes and offerings are disclosed on our website for
public access. The Company also makes use of social media such as Facebook,
LinkedIn, Instagram etc. for promotions and information dissemination.
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Corporate Governance Practices

Although the Company is not required to comply with the CG Code, we have
applied its principles and voluntarily complied with the code provisions therein

generally except for those as set out below:

‘ Code Provisions

SPlE S

il EREHE
REARARHFET(RAERTM) - AR HT
M2 S RN ESRTT - H EEFTFNHR X —R
ME - HEPATBRSM -

‘ Reason for Deviation

1w R E

A

Ab4.2toA43

BAL2EALIFK

Ab5.1to Ab5

BA5IEAS 5%

Ab.h

1i)

B.1.2

E1Tto E15 & E.2.1

BEIIRENSRE21%

Non-executive directors should be appointed for a specific term,
subject to re-election.

FHITERENIREBEEHREE - FHABEES -

These code provisions deal with the appointment of directors to
fill a casual vacancy, appointment of independent non-executive
directors and retirement by rotation of directors.

REFNEXSEEESNAINAN =6 - ZERIFNTE
= UREEORERERX -

These code provisions deal with the nomination committee.

RUTUEXSRBZRLEX

Directors must comply with obligations under the Model Code
for Securities Transactions and the Board should establish
guidelines for relevant employees in respect of their dealings in
the securities of the Company.

EFVBAETHITIERZ S CRETN) - MEFERIMREX
ERARSRARIEAFFERERES|

All directors should participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
This is to ensure that their contribution to the board remains
informed and relevant. The issuer should be responsible for
arranging and funding suitable training, placing and appropriate
emphasis on the roles, functions and duties of a listed company
director.

MBEFENSESRET AR - KR EFEMARIZEE - A
REEFUSENBRDEHMFONBRATNEEBIEL AR - X
TANARLAELNIFVHREERES  UREYEELH
NREFENAE  RERRE-

To provide transparency, the issuers must include the following
information for the accounting period covered by the annual
report and significant subsequent events for the period up to the
date of publication of the annual report, to the extent possible:

How each director, by name, complied with A.6.5

ARPEEAE - RITABARATREFAATRE TERPIRZ S
TR EEETAFIRA BB ENERHEED
AR BRBREEMANETEA 6K

The Remuneration Committee should make recommendation
to the Board on policy and package for all remuneration of
directors.

FME AN AEERRANFTHEERTEAESRIEL
I

These code provisions deal with the proceedings for annual
general meetings.

RLUTUEX SR RAFALHEFAX

This provision is not applicable to the Company. Directors
are appointed generally for a term of two years or a term as
specified in the appointment letter. Directors are not subject to
re-election but may be re-appointed by the shareholders.

RIMEXMERTARE - EEOEH RN FHIREZRE K
IR - EFTIREAER - B HRREHREE -

These provisions are not applicable to the Company. Pursuant to
the Company's Articles of Association, Directors are appointed
by the shareholders.

REREXAEATARF - REARRZKERAN) - EFHMB
RERE-

These provisions are not applicable to the Company since
Directors are appointed by the shareholders.

REZXNERTALNE  REFYAHBRFEE -

This provision is not applicable because all of the Company’s
shares are beneficially owned by the HKSAR Government and
are not publicly traded.

BRBEXTNERTARNE - AARBMAAE RS HEESX B
E - HIEATTRS: -

Board Members of the Company are appointed by the HKSAR
Government via The Financial Secretary Incorporated who are
elite in their fields of profession and possess adequate and
updated knowledge and skills. The Company provided relevant
information or invited all directors to events and programmes
which enriched their knowledge to facilitate the discharge of
their Directors’ duties.

ARREERKAMBEFXBAESV R A AHROEEARE - K
AR TLGIREER - HEARRBMEMN ARG - AR
AREAXR AR XBBELEEFTSINEDRME - UFEFMHAIH
IR - HEIMEATEITE R -

This provision is not applicable to the Company because Board
Members do not receive any remuneration.

XMAXNERTARE - FEF DK R TR AEFE

These provisions are not applicable to the Company as the
Company is wholly owned by the HKSAR Government via The
Financial Secretary Incorporated and Resolutions in Writing in
lieu of annual general meetings is adopted.

REEXXPERTAAT - BARAFRHEBFXBRTED M
HERRER 2 RIAE - B ARBZBREAFRLEZRAH
ERYURPZAER -

Continuing Evolution of Corporate Governance

We will continue to review and, where appropriate, enhance our corporate

governance practices in light of the regulatory requirements.
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The Directors present their report and the audited consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2022.

Principal activities

The principal activities of Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
(the "Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”] are
set out in note 1 to the consolidated financial statements.

Results

The Group's loss for the year and the Group's financial position at 31 March
2022 are set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 101 to 176.

Directors

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this report

were:

Karen CHAN Ka-yin

Christopher CHAO Yu-hang

lvy CHEUNG Wing-han

LAU Kwok-fan

Michael LEUNG Kin-man

LING Kar-kan

Victor NG Chi-keung

Hendrick SIN

Charleston SIN Chiu-shun

Rosana WONG Wai-man

Eric YEUNG Chuen-sing

Simon CHAN Sai-ming (Chairman appointed on 1 April 2022)
Erica MA Yun (appointed on 1 April 2022)

Maggie TSOI Tsz-shan (appointed on 1 April 2022)
MAK Tak-wai (appointed on 20 July 2022)

Duncan CHIU (retired on 31 March 2022)

Lee George LAM (retired on 31 March 2022)
Annie CHOI Suk-han (resigned on 20 July 2022)

Charmaine Amy WONG Hoi-wan (alternate director to MAK Tak-wai,
appointed on 20 July 2022; alternate director to Annie CHOI Suk-han,
appointed on 8 June 2021 and resigned on 20 July 2022)
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Report of the Directors

EERRE

Directors (continued)

There being no provision in the Company’s Articles of Association in connection
with the retirement of directors by rotation, all existing Directors continue in
office for the following year.

The persons who were directors of the subsidiaries of the Company during the
year and up to the date of this report (unless otherwise stated) were:

Peter YAN King-shun

LEE Kok-ming

Directors’ interests in shares and debentures

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its holding companies,
subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Company’s directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in
or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

Directors’ interests in transactions, arrangements or contracts

No director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to the business of the
Company to which the Company or any of the Company’s holding companies,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party during the year.

Management contracts

Save for the management agreement of Le Méridien Hong Kong, Cyberport, the
facilities management agreement and the system operation contract, no other
contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the businesses of the Company and its subsidiaries were
entered into or existed during the year.
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Permitted indemnity provision

During the year and up to the date of this report, the permitted indemnity
provision as defined in section 469 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
for the benefit of the directors of the Company was in force. The Company has
arranged for appropriate insurance cover for the directors’ liabilities in respect
of any legal actions against its directors arising out of corporate activities.

Events after the reporting period

Details of the significant events of the Group after the reporting period are set
out in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

Auditors

Ernst & Young retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment. A
resolution for the reappointment of Ernst & Young as auditors of the Company
will be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
Simon CHAN Sai-ming
Chairman

Hong Kong
26 October 2022
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Independent Auditor's Report
JRSTAZ DR S

Independent auditor’s report

To the members of Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
ERREBEEARAA

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hong Kong
Cyberport Management Company Limited (the "Company”] and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the "Group”) set out on pages 101 to 176, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2022,
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes
to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2022, and of
its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”], and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information other than the consolidated financial statements and
auditor’s report thereon

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the report of the
Directors.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of the Directors for the consolidated financial
statements

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors of the
Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's
internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
the Directors.

Independent Auditor's Report
JRSTAZ DR S
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Independent Auditor's Report
JRSTAZ DR S

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’'s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters,

the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,

including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during

our audit.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
26 October 2022
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4 i
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
IREMTmK

Year ended 31 March 2022 &£ 2022F3A31HIEFE

2022 2021
Notes HK$ HK$
LipzS BT BT
REVENUE WA 4 416,817,592 352,245,316
Other net income H b A 25 4 6,366,632 141,876,221
423,184,224 494,121,537
EXPENSES BEFORE PUBLIC MISSION ACTIVITIES FRitAREWEIZHE
EXPENSES AND DEPRECIATION IHZZH

Building management expenses Yl ERE T (175,145,689) (176,618,733)
Staff costs A TR 5 (71,777,349) (94,478,289)
Government rent and rates b FE K Z 1 9 (15,692,883) (16,174,321)
Other operating expenses HZEZH (44,049,095) (76,392,941)
Finance costs W5 %% 6 (84,848) (120,095)
(306,749,864) (363,784,379)

OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE PUBLIC MISSION RitARFEwENZHRITIE
ACTIVITIES EXPENSES AND DEPRECIATION ZEERF 116,434,360 130,337,158
Public mission activities expenses, net NRERES ST 10 (180,621,855) (194,023,643)
OPERATING LOSS BEFORE DEPRECIATION RIHTIBWERE SR (64,187,495) (63,686,485)
Depreciation EanlE (155,085,613) (149,101,154)
LOSS BEFORE TAX BRBLAT S 137 6 (219,273,108)  (212,787,639)
Income tax PR 11 - -
LOSS FOR THE YEAR FERSH (219,273,108)  (212,787,639)
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
FELEMER
Year ended 31 March 2022 8 E2022F3A31B L FE

LOSS FOR THE YEAR FASH
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Hin @k
Other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified THEBEAIT2EFHHEKENE 2 Hit
to profit or loss in subsequent periods: L HEWE :
- Changes in fair value of equity investments - BERAAMEITARMLEKE
designated at fair value through other AR 2 N MMEZE S

comprehensive income

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FREMSEKE GORRTEI)
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR THE YEAR FALETHREM
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2022 2021

HK$ HK$

BT BT
(219,273,108) (212,787,639)
99,193,026 19,150,647
99,193,026 19,150,647
(120,080,082) (193,636,992)




NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets

Deferred rental receivables
Cyberport Macro Fund investments
Investments in securities

Prepayments and deposits

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Inventories

Trade receivables

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries
Investments in securities

Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade payables
Other payables and accruals

Rental and other deposits

Amount due to the immediate holding company

Lease liabilities

Total current liabilities

NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES

R B R

Pl ~ W28 Rk
AR

126 3E R AR &

W BRR AL ES R
IR 3
SUNNE I L

e[ =X

itk v

VRO

TS RN ~ 42 B H A S W R
S 42 B F BT B 28 B 3R
IEFFR

NekIieEEHE

R E B
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HAth B 5 R R 7 11 5%
HeFEMZES
IVENN=REZ2 NI bR

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

ZAEMSRRNE

As at 31 March 2022 F20224F3H31H

2022 2021

Notes HK$ HK$
iop=d I BT
13 2,942,946,396  2,757,289,540
14(a) 3,358,084 5,831,665
10,453,908 13,295,348

15 273,269,615 149,017,792
16 - 49,108,104
18 5,163,496 36,488,433
3,235,191,499  3,011,030,882

171,488 212,200

17 18,743,644 20,403,184
18 47,115,314 44,298,659
27(b) 1,938,909 2,041,992
16 692,395,437 758,439,671
19 294,335,411 383,979,684
1,054,700,203 1,209,375,390
45,531,974 50,240,157

20 235,923,137 275,983,171
21 94,287,294 95,430,483
27(b) 254,303,568 254,293,578
14(b) 2,254,797 2,533,072
632,300,770 678,480,461
422,399,433 530,894,929

3,657,590,932

3,541,925,811
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
LREM SRR E

As at 31 March 2022 F202243H31H

2022 2021
Notes HK$ HK$
B B IT BT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES E| bz il
Development maintenance fund EREBES 22 379,206,407 387,752,187
Lease liabilities Fizhagoilon 14(b) 1,279,666 3,534,463
Total non-current liabilities FERB A RET 380,486,073 391,286,650
Net assets BrEAE 3,277,104,859  3,150,639,161
EQUITY &
Share capital &N 23 538,000,002 300,000,002
Reserves = 2,739,104,857  2,850,639,159
Total equity IR 3,277,104,859  3,150,639,161
Simon CHAN Sai-ming lvy CHEUNG Wing-han
[k 4 BH 5K SR
Director Director
EZE EZE
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as
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
FAMBEIR

Year ended 31 March 2022 £ 2022F3A31HIEFE

Share Capital Fairvalue  Accumulated Total
capital reserve reserve losses equity
A RAEE  ARNMERE 258 Wi BE
Notes HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
{pzd B BT BT BT BT
At 1 April 2020 F202054518 300,000,002  5,374,246,757 8,077,227  (2,341,295,300)  3,341,028,686
Loss for the year FASH - - = (212,787,639)  (212,787,639)
Other comprehensive income for FHEMSERE
the year:
- Changes in fair value of equity - BERAANEITA
investments designated R 2 EYE 2 BRA
at fair value through other RBZARNMETH
comprehensive income, (fBrEm)
net of tax - ~ 19,150,647 S 19,150,647
Total comprehensive loss for the year £N£ETHREL - - 19,150,647 (212,787,639)  (193,636,992)
Subtotal Mt 300,000,002  5,374,246,757 27,227,874 (2,554,082,939)  3,147,391,694
Transfer of fair value reserve upon — BAAMEMREEKEMLE
the deregistration of an equity Wias 2 X ERAR R 2 A e
investment at fair value through NEZ
other comprehensive income = = 5,896,600 (5,896,600 =
Transfer from development MAREBESHREE
maintenance fund to capital reserve  AAfi#% 22 = 3,247,467 = = 3,247 467
At 31 March 2021 and F2021E38318 %
at 1 April 2021 F2021%4818 300,000,002  5377,494,224* 33,124,474* (2,559,979,539)*  3,150,639,161
Loss for the year FASH - - = (219,273,108)  (219,273,108)
Other comprehensive income for FHEMSERE
the year:
- Changes in fair value of equity - BREARMEITA
investments designated Hiy 2 Wz
at fair value through other BRARZ 2 RANER
comprehensive income, P (MBRH )
net of tax - - 99,193,026 - 99,193,026
Total comprehensive loss for the year £N£ETHEH - - 99,193,026  (219,273,108)  (120,080,082)
Subtotal it 300000002 5377494224 132317500 (2779.252,647)  3,030559,079
Issue of shares KATRR D 23 238,000,000 - - - 238,000,000
Transfer of fair value reserve upon AR HMERE &R
the deregistration of an equity Hip 2z
investment at fair value through AHERARRZ
other comprehensive income NAMEZE - - (4,327,093) 4,327,093 -
Transfer from development HAREBESHRKE
maintenance fund to capital reserve AR 22 - 8,545,780 - - 8,545,780
At 31 March 2022 F2022%3831H 538,000,002  5,386,040,004* 127,990,407 (2,774,925,554)*  3,277,104,859

* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HK$2,739,104,857 (2021: HK$2,850,639,159) in the consolidated statement of financial position.
* ZEREKE RREREVES KRR ZLEAIES2,739,104,8577 7L(20214F : 2,850,639,15947T) ©

B 2021/22 F1R 105



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GEIleRER
Year ended 31 March 2022 &£ 2022F3A31HIEFE

2022 2021
Notes HK$ HK$
Lz BT BIT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES ZEFHCNERE
Loss before tax ESIREE (219,273,108)  (212,787,639)
Adjustments for: B -
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment Pl - HLE8 RIRFATIE 6 152,612,032 147,055,454
Depreciation of right-of-use assets AR~/ b 2,473,581 2,045,700
Realisation of government grants T4 &I (87,913,826) (129,270,528)
Interest income from financial assets at RPN K 2 & F R =
amortised cost, net of amortisation of premium T2 UL AR 5 0 4 (2,603,975) (2,757,876)
Interest income from investments at fair value BARNMEITARE 2R R
through profit or loss FEWA 4 (15,049,857) (19,213,670)
Interest income from investments at fair value BAAMEITARMEEKRZ
through other comprehensive income 58 ) B A 10 (2,334,269) =
Fair value losses on debt investments at BARMEITAREZHHFRR
fair value through profit or loss, net NANES TR ZM 138,781 6,494,109
Net realised/unrealised losses/(gains) on RARMETARGZZRTEE
investments at fair value through profit or loss O/ REY 57, (W) %5 4 28,552,189 (8,583,560)
Interest income on bank deposits RITERF B WA 4 (1,638,215) (2,557,919)
Impairment of trade receivables N UK ZORVE 6 29,625 1,292,484
Impairment of other receivables H N R IURE 6 8,497,518 -
Reversal of impairment of trade receivables MK FORE L B 6 - (48,507)
Loss on disposal of items of property, plantand ~ H&E¥ - HlERIEEHMAE 2~
equipment, net TR B b - 6,800,860
Finance costs %% 2% F 6 84,848 120,095
Revaluation gains on investments BR B (408,687) (214,200
(136,833,363 (211,625,197)
Decrease/lincrease) in deferred rental receivables &R F S E >/ (3&) 2,841,440 (6,021,204)
Decrease in inventories FHoR D 40,712 107,621
Decrease/lincrease] in trade receivables R Y O > (32 hm) 1,629,915 (1,866,213)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, deposits and FUZRIR - 124 K E i 57 U 5/ I3
other receivables B () 14,458,969 (27,049,150)
Decrease in amounts due from fellow subsidiaries U R Z i /@ 28 B3R UR 2> 103,083 1,251,242
Decrease/(increase) in trade payables AT IR EOR D (48 40 (4,708,183) 8,263,936
Increase in other payables and accruals H b 7 5 2030 Rz b it 2R A hn 12,740,546 59,605,517
(Decreasel/increase in rental and other deposits & R EbiRE (), (1,143,189) 633,265
Cash used in operations KEMAZI® (110,870,070)  (176,700,183)
Interest on lease liabilities HE RGNS (84,848) (120,095)
Net cash flows used in operating activities AEFNAZUESRE F (110,954,918)  (176,820,278)

106 Cyberport 2021/22 Annual Report



CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of items of property,
plant and equipment

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
SEUSRER

Year ended 31 March 2022 &£ 2022F3A31HIEFE

Prepayment and deposits paid for the purchase of TGA#p -« H182 &i& Z 10 B it

items of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of Cyberport Macro Fund investments

Purchase of investments at fair value through

Proceeds from sale and redemption of held for
maturity investments

Proceeds from sale and redemption of
investments at fair value through profit or loss

Interest income received from:
- Financial assets at amortised cost
- Investments at fair value through profit or loss

- Bank deposits

2022 2021
Notes HK$ HK$
B BT 7T
REFH2HUNERE

AL~ W RIEEIE
(311,645,142) (54,191,685)
FoUft SRR R 3% - (21,989,585)
T AR AR R B 17 (42,146,518) (36,593,154)

MARARNETARGE 2 RA
(344,756,154) (254,105,772)

H 6 e B (3 15 VR B IR 8 TS 3R

Decrease/(increase] in time deposits with original REIEA A =NAL EZ EHEFR

maturity of more than three months

Net cash flows used in investing activities

34,981,200 =
HE REBZRA R NMEIT AR Z
BTSN 396,590,932 247,542,194
BRI EHA
- IRPEEBARTI K 2 © B e 2,908,304 2,896,146
- BRAR MBI AR 287 16,017,365 20,208,404
- RITER 1,646,494 2,841,438
b/ hn) 326,331 (25,259,195
REFEDMANERE R (246,077,188) (118,651,209
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
SEUSRER

Year ended 31 March 2022 &£ 2022F3A31HIEFE

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEEH 2 NERE
Government grants received B KRBT B &

Principal portion of lease payments HENRZAEHH
Proceeds from issue of shares RITRRE FR15 /I
Increase in amount due from RSB B AR 2% BRI AN

immediate holding company

Net cash flows from financing activities WA BN ESRE SN

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of year £#2 N4 RN £ZEWE

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
THE END OF YEAR

ANALYSIS OF BALANCE OF CASH AND NekNeZEMESE
CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents as stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position EEWME

Non-pledged time deposits with original maturity FRENREBAAN="AUNEZ

of more than three months when acquired TR E HATF K
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in SENEREBRMININE R
the consolidated statement of cash flows NEeEEDH
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NERNSEEME R ST

FARAZOERNESENE

FaWsPRRmMIAE kIS

2022 2021

Notes HK$ HK$
ihpz3 BT BT
25(b) 32,237,246 238,715,832
25(b) (2,533,072) (2,099,935)
238,000,000 -

9,990 -

267,714,164 236,615,897
(89,317,942) (58,855,590)
358,720,489 417,576,079
269,402,547 358,720,489

19 294,335,411 383,979,684
19 (24,932,864) (25,259,195)
269,402,547 358,720,489




Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited (the “Company”] is a
limited liability company incorporated in Hong Kong. The registered office
of the Company is located at Level 6, Cyberport 2, 100 Cyberport Road,
Hong Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is to support and promote the
innovation and technology development in Hong Kong through the creation
of a comprehensive ecosystem of digital technology companies.

With a vision to build Cyberport as a main force in developing the digital
technology industry as a key economic driver of Hong Kong (the "Vision”),
the public mission of the Company is anchored in three strategic
directions:

- Talent Cultivation and Development;
- Industry Development; and
- Integration of New and Traditional economies.

In the Group’s relentless pursuit of excellence, the Group takes a
pragmatic and comprehensive approach in realising its Vision. To ensure
the line-up of services is dynamic and flexible in meeting the needs of
budding technology entrepreneurs, investor community and industry
talents, the Company actively builds strong partnerships with leaders
from technology industry, academia, research institutes and professional
bodies.

To further extend the Group’s entrepreneurial support to scalable start-
ups, the Company has launched the Cyberport Macro Fund (the "CMF")
for Hong Kong-based digital entrepreneurs in 2017. With an initial size of
HK$200 million, the CMF aims to provide Cyberport’s start-ups with early
financing and promote the development of venture capital ecosystem in
Hong Kong. In April 2021, Cyberport has committed to inject an additional
amount of HK$200 million into the CMF and extend the scope to cover
Series B and later stage investments. Further details of the investments
made up to the end of the reporting period are included in note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Group has established various teams ("Public Mission Teams”) to
achieve the above public mission. The expenses incurred by Public Mission
Teams that contribute to the successful running of the public mission
activities are disclosed in note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Company is a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of Hong Kong Cyberport
Development Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong
and is wholly owned by the Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region ("HKSAR") via The Financial Secretary Incorporated.
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Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

RAMSRERME

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION (continued)

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are as follows:

Name

E=X

Cyberport Macro Fund Limited

CMF One Limited

CMF Two Limited

CMF Three Limited

CMF Four Limited

CMF Five Limited

CMF Six Limited

CMF Seven Limited

CMF Eight Limited

Place of

incorporation
SEMECSIH R

Hong Kong
B8

Hong Kong
i

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
B8

Hong Kong
FE

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
FE
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Issued ordinary
share capital
BERITEBEA

HK$1

178

HK$1
178 7T

HK$1
177

HK$1
17%7T

HK$1
1787

HK$1
1787

HK$1
177

HK$1
17&7T

HK$1
1787

1.

AEER (=)
BRHE LA B ER

AR ZHBARFENT

Percentage of equity

attributable to the Company
LNV & =R

Direct

BE

100

Indirect
[k

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

Principal activities
FEWS

Investment holding
BRI

Investment holding
BRER

Investment holding

S5 PR

Investment holding
BRIER

Investment holding

SR IRAR

Investment holding

BRI

Investment holding

S5 AR

Investment holding
BRI

Investment holding

BRER



2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs”)
(which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards ("HKASs") and Interpretations) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, debt
investments at fair value through profit or loss and equity investments at
fair value through other comprehensive income which have been measured
at fair value. These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars ("HK$"), which is also the functional currency of the
Group.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of
the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 March 2022. A subsidiary is an entity (including a
structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the Group. Control is
achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group
the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Group has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority of the voting
or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts
and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee,
including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same
reporting period as the Group, using consistent accounting policies. The
results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that such
control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and to the non-
controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control described above. A change in the ownership interest
of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.

Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

RAMSIRKRMDE

2.1 Y EE

ZEFAEMSHEDREFTB2ITMRAS MM Z
BEAREMSMEENCEBMSREEN") (BRI
EEBMSHMEEN  BAHENCEBELIT
BN Ri2R)  BEANSITENREBE(AA
ZHD IR - FRIEARNETARBZZSBA
BRRMET ARG 2 RS RERRAANET
A2 s 2 BARRR R AR NETES
W55 RERTIIRA LRAEGR ) o ZF5E WSk
KABT(ETL)ES > MATLTEREEZY

N
BE IT °©

GEEE
FAEMESMREBFEAR B RENBE AR (SH A
SH") FHZE202263831BIEFRE 2 MHIREK ©
MiE A REmASE B KA EEH 2 Rk (B
LRI - SAKHARBS SHER T ML
Z AR B RAE R RAE BERRA KR A A8
J1E S E IR 77 2 RAFMIZE IR (IR T
REH RS AT HITHEREN 2INBENZ
U ARFDES - MFRIGIZHIAR o

HAKHERKBDRRBERRATTRZH 2K
ENIEUNA - AEFABRAMBEERELR
BRATHREERE IR AT RER - 84

(a) SHEEATEMREDIHAAZAGLOLH

(b) EtEALHMEZNF : K&
() AEHZBRERFBEREM o

MERRNMSIRETI T SAKABR 2R EH
HRA—HO T ERR RS - HEARLSZE
REFMBEFNE BRH#ITEAIIK - BFER
FERIIKERIZEHRE LSRR -

mamkHEMeEmbEENSNERID B TASE
HR AR BB ARIFERREG  ELEESS
BAEBRRABESHER - MEAXARAZK
RARAZR 52 KA RN EBREEE > RAf -
e~ WA > AXRASREL TEHEEIIKN £
A -

it 5 S8 R 1B 0 B 7R | SR = T il R 3% 6 — T
HZMBATA - ARALBMFEHEZTIEH
WA T o FTREEHDZ KB LR RIAE R
HEDANER P AL °

B 2021/22 F1R 1M1



Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

RAMSRERME

N

2.1
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BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises [i] the assets
(including goodwill] and liabilities of the subsidiary, [(ii) the carrying
amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative translation
differences recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the
consideration received, (ii) the fair value of any investment retained and
(iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group's share
of components previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same
basis as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for the first time for
the current year’s consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2

Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond

30 June 2021

The nature and the impact of the revised HKFRSs are described below:

(a] Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS
16 address issues not dealt with in the previous amendments which
affect financial reporting when an existing interest rate benchmark is
replaced with an alternative risk-free rate ("RFR"). The amendments
provide a practical expedient to allow the effective interest rate to be
updated without adjusting the carrying amount of financial assets and
liabilities when accounting for changes in the basis for determining
the contractual cash flows of financial assets and liabilities, if the
change is a direct consequence of the interest rate benchmark reform
and the new basis for determining the contractual cash flows is
economically equivalent to the previous basis immediately preceding
the change. In addition, the amendments permit changes required by
the interest rate benchmark reform to be made to hedge designations
and hedge documentation without the hedging relationship being
discontinued. Any gains or losses that could arise on transition
are dealt with through the normal requirements of HKFRS 9 to
measure and recognise hedge ineffectiveness. The amendments
also provide a temporary relief to entities from having to meet the
separately identifiable requirement when an RFR is designated as
a risk component. The relief allows an entity, upon designation of
the hedge, to assume that the separately identifiable requirement is
met, provided the entity reasonably expects the RFR risk component
to become separately identifiable within the next 24 months.
Furthermore, the amendments require an entity to disclose additional
information to enable users of financial statements to understand
the effect of interest rate benchmark reform on an entity’s financial
instruments and risk management strategy. The amendments did
not have any impact on the financial position and performance of the
Group.
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Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES (continued)

(b)

Amendment to HKFRS 16 issued in April 2021 extends the availability
of the practical expedient for lessees to elect not to apply lease
modification accounting for rent concessions arising as a direct
consequence of the covid-19 pandemic by 12 months. Accordingly,
the practical expedient applies to rent concessions for which any
reduction in lease payments affects only payments originally due on
or before 30 June 2022, provided the other conditions for applying
the practical expedient are met. The amendment is effective
retrospectively for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April
2021 with any cumulative effect of initially applying the amendment
recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained profits
at the beginning of the current accounting period. Earlier application
is permitted.The amendments did not have any impact on the financial
position and performance of the Group.

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs, that

have been issued but are not yet effective, in these consolidated financial

statements.
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2.3 EMAEEARERZERMSREEN

%S

SHAFRTUEZRAMSRERANLB TIIEM

B RMARERZ FNTRABITEEM SRS LN -

Amendments to HKFRS 3
Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28 (2011)

HKFRS 17
Amendments to HKFRS 17
Amendments to HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKAS 1
Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8
Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 16
Amendments to HKAS 37

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2018-2020

Reference to the Conceptual Framework'
Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

Insurance Contracts’

Insurance Contracts®®

Initial Application of HKFRS 17 and HKFRS - Comparative
Information’

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current’*

Disclosure of Accounting Policies’

Definition of Accounting Estimates?

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a

Single Transaction’

Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use’

Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a Contract’

Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, lllustrative Examples

accompanying HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41

EEMSREENEISABYT MR
BEMSRERNENSR  RAFSERELALAELUZHY

BESITENENSH

BT (2011E)
EANSREENES
EANS RN
BRI

BE2ENE1SHET
BE2UTENEISR
REEMSREEN
FERNZISHET
BE2IENZ8SHET
BERUENS 1250

BEUTENS 16501

BEUTENETSHET
BENSREEN
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IE17583T
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HELERENIREE T ENZ
SHETT

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption

As a consequence of the amendments to HKAS 1, Hong Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation
of Financial Statements - Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause was revised in October 2020 to align the corresponding
wording with no change in conclusion

As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued in October 2020, HKFRS 4 was
amended to extend the temporary exemption that permits insurers to apply HKAS 39 rather

than HKFRS ¢ for annual periods beginning before 1 January 2023
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be applicable
to the Group is described below.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 are intended to replace a reference to the
previous Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial
Statements with a reference to the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting issued in June 2018 without significantly changing its
requirements. The amendments also add to HKFRS 3 an exception to its
recognition principle for an entity to refer to the Conceptual Framework to
determine what constitutes an asset or a liability. The exception specifies
that, for liabilities and contingent liabilities that would be within the scope
of HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC]-Int 21 if they were incurred separately rather than
assumed in a business combination, an entity applying HKFRS 3 should
refer to HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC]-Int 21 respectively instead of the Conceptual
Framework. Furthermore, the amendments clarify that contingent assets
do not qualify for recognition at the acquisition date. The Group expects
to adopt the amendments prospectively from 1 April 2022. Since the
amendments apply prospectively to business combinations for which the
acquisition date is on or after the date of first application, the Group will not
be affected by these amendments on the date of transition.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an inconsistency
between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and in HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing
with the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture. The amendments require a full recognition of
a gain or loss resulting from a downstream transaction when the sale
or contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or joint
venture constitutes a business. For a transaction involving assets that do
not constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting from the transaction is
recognised in the investor’s profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated
investor's interest in that associate or joint venture. The amendments
are to be applied prospectively. The previous mandatory effective date of
amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) was removed by the HKICPA
in January 2016 and a new mandatory effective date will be determined
after the completion of a broader review of accounting for associates and
joint ventures. However, the amendments are available for adoption now.

HKFRS 17 is a comprehensive new accounting standard for insurance
contracts covering recognition and measurement, presentation and
disclosure. Once effective, HKFRS 17 will replace the existing HKFRS
4 Insurance Contracts. The standard applies to all types of insurance
contracts (i.e., life, non-Llife, direct insurance and re-insurance), regardless
of the type of entities that issue them, as well as to certain guarantees and
financial instruments with discretionary participation features. A few scope
exceptions will apply. The overall objective of the standard is to provide
an accounting model for insurance contracts that is more useful and
consistent for insurers. In contrast to the requirements in HKFRS 4, which
are largely based on grandfathering previous local accounting policies,
the standard provides a comprehensive model for insurance contracts,
covering all relevant accounting aspects. The core of the standard is the
general model, supplemented by:
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

a specific adaptation for contracts with direct participation features
(the variable fee approach]; and

a simplified approach (the premium allocation approach) mainly for
short-duration contracts.

HKFRS 17 is effective for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023. Early application is permitted, provided that the entity also applies
HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15 on or before the date it first applies HKFRS 17. The
standard is not expected to have any impact on the Group.

Amendments to HKFRS 17 include changes to simplify certain
requirements in the standard and make financial performance easier to
explain. The amendments also provide additional reliefs to reduce the
effort required for the transition to HKFRS 17. In addition, the amendments
defer the effective date of HKFRS 17 to annual reporting periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2023 with earlier application permitted. As a result
of the deferral, the HKICPA issued the amendments to HKFRS 4 to extend
the temporary exemption that permits insurers to apply HKAS 39 rather
than HKFRS 9 for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023. The
amendments are not expected to have any impact on the Group.

The amendment is a transition option relating to comparative information
about financial assets presented on initial application of HKFRS 17. The
amendment is aimed at helping entities to avoid temporary accounting
mismatches between financial assets and insurance contract liabilities,
and therefore improve the usefulness of comparative information for users
of financial statements. The amendment is effective for annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 The amendments are not
expected to have any impact on the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-
current clarify the requirements for classifying liabilities as current or
non-current. The amendments specify that if an entity’'s right to defer
settlement of a liability is subject to the entity complying with specified
conditions, the entity has a right to defer settlement of the liability at the
end of the reporting period if it complies with those conditions at that date.
Classification of a liability is unaffected by the likelihood that the entity
will exercise its right to defer settlement of the liability. The amendments
also clarify the situations that are considered a settlement of a liability.
The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2023 and shall be applied retrospectively. Earlier application
is permitted. The amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group's financial statements.
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REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies require entities
to disclose their material accounting policy information rather than their
significant accounting policies. Accounting policy information is material
if, when considered together with other information included in an
entity’s financial statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose financial statements
make on the basis of those financial statements. Amendments to HKFRS
Practice Statement 2 provide non-mandatory guidance on how to apply
the concept of materiality to accounting policy disclosures. Amendments
to HKAS 1 are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023 and earlier application is permitted. Since the guidance provided
in the amendments to HKFRS Practice Statement 2 is non-mandatory,
an effective date for these amendments is not necessary. The Group
is currently assessing the impact of the amendments on the Group's
accounting policy disclosures.

Amendments to HKAS 8 clarify the distinction between changes in
accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies. Accounting
estimates are defined as monetary amounts in financial statements that
are subject to measurement uncertainty. The amendments also clarify how
entities use measurement techniques and inputs to develop accounting
estimates. The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and apply to changes in accounting
policies and changes in accounting estimates that occur on or after the
start of that period. Earlier application is permitted. The amendments
are not expected to have any significant impact on the Group's financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 12 narrow the scope of the initial recognition
exception so that it no longer applies to transactions that give rise to
equal taxable and deductible temporary differences, such as leases and
decommissioning obligations. Therefore, entities are required to recognise
a deferred tax asset and a deferred tax liability for temporary differences
arising from these transactions. The amendments are effective for annual
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and shall be
applied to transactions related to leases and decommissioning obligations
at the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented, with any
cumulative effect recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of
retained profits or other component of equity as appropriate at that date.
In addition, the amendments shall be applied prospectively to transactions
other than leases and decommissioning obligations. Earlier application is
permitted.

The Group has applied the initial recognition exception and did not
recognise a deferred tax asset and a deferred tax liability for temporary
differences for transactions related to leases. Upon initial application of
these amendments, the Group will recognise a deferred tax asset and
a deferred tax liability for deductible and taxable temporary differences
associated with right-of-use assets and lease liabilities, and recognise the
cumulative effect of initially applying the amendments as an adjustment
to the opening balance of retained profits at the beginning of the earliest
comparative period presented. The amendments are not expected to have
any significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting from the cost
of an item of property, plant and equipment any proceeds from selling
items produced while bringing that asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management. Instead, an entity recognises the proceeds from selling any
such items, and the cost of those items, in profit or loss. The amendments
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022
and shall be applied retrospectively only to items of property, plant and
equipment made available for use on or after the beginning of the earliest
period presented in the financial statements in which the entity first applies
the amendments. Earlier application is permitted. The amendments
are not expected to have any significant impact on the Group's financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of assessing whether
a contract is onerous under HKAS 37, the cost of fulfilling the contract
comprises the costs that relate directly to the contract. Costs that relate
directly to a contract include both the incremental costs of fulfilling that
contract (e.g., direct labour and materials) and an allocation of other
costs that relate directly to fulfilling that contract (e.g., an allocation of
the depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and equipment used
in fulfilling the contract as well as contract management and supervision
costs). General and administrative costs do not relate directly to a contract
and are excluded unless they are explicitly chargeable to the counterparty
under the contract. The amendments are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2022 and shall be applied to contracts
for which an entity has not yet fulfilled all its obligations at the beginning
of the annual reporting period in which it first applies the amendments.
Earlier application is permitted. Any cumulative effect of initially applying
the amendments shall be recognised as an adjustment to the opening
equity at the date of initial application without restating the comparative
information. The amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 sets out amendments to
HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, Illustrative Examples accompanying HKFRS 16, and
HKAS 41. Details of the amendments that are expected to be applicable to
the Group are as follows:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that an entity
includes when assessing whether the terms of a new or modified
financial liability are substantially different from the terms of the
original financial liability. These fees include only those paid or
received between the borrower and the lender, including fees paid or
received by either the borrower or lender on the other’s behalf. An
entity applies the amendment to financial liabilities that are modified
or exchanged on or after the beginning of the annual reporting period
in which the entity first applies the amendment. The amendment is
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022.
Earlier application is permitted. The amendment is not expected to
have a significant impact on the Group's financial statements.

HKFRS 16 Leases: removes the illustration of payments from the
lessor relating to leasehold improvements in Illustrative Example 13
accompanying HKFRS 16. This removes potential confusion regarding
the treatment of lease incentives when applying HKFRS 16.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Fair value measurement

The Group measures its financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, debt investments at fair value through profit or loss, and equity
investments at fair value through other comprehensive income at fair
value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that would
be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The
fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction
to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal
market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in
the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or the
most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value
of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market participants act in their economic best interest.
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Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair
value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the
use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in
the consolidated financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted] in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement is observable,
either directly or indirectly

Level3- based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the consolidated
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement as a whole] at the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than inventories, financial assets
and deferred tax assets), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-
generating unit’'s value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and
is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined for
the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged
to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to whether
there is an indication that previously recognised impairment losses may
no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss
of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset,
but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have
been determined (net of any depreciation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment
loss is credited to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it
arises.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a] the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family and
that person:
(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the Group or of
a parent of the Group;
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Related parties (continued)

or

(b)

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions applies:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or of
a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same third
party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is
an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or an entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified
in (a);

a person identified in (al(i) has significant influence over the entity
or is a member of the key management personnel of the entity (or
of a parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides

key management personnel services to the Group or to the parent
of the Group.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location
for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have
been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally
charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the
expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of
the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises
such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates
them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost
of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual value over its
estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are

as follows:

Buildings Over the period of the lease
Building services and support facilities 10%

Information technology facilities 20%

Centres equipment 20% - 33'/,%

Leasehold improvements 10%

Furniture and equipment 10% - 20%
Motor vehicles 20%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis
among the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual values,
useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part
initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
on disposal or retirement recognised in the statement of profit or loss in
the year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents a building under construction, which
is stated at cost less any impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost
comprises the direct costs of construction and capitalised borrowing costs
on related borrowed funds during the period of construction. Construction
in progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of property, plant
and equipment when completed and ready for use.
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Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or

contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys

the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in

exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all

leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The

Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use

assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

(a)

(b

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement date of
the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is available for use).
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets
includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs
incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the lease terms.

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by the end of
the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date of the
lease at the present value of lease payments to be made over the
lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including
in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable,
variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The
lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option
reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and payments of
penalties for termination of a lease, if the lease term reflects the
Group exercising the option to terminate the lease. The variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as
an expense in the period in which the event or condition that triggers
the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses its
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because
the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.
After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is
increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease
payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities
is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term,
a change in lease payments (e.g., a change to future lease payments
resulting from a change in an index or rate) or a change in assessment
of an option to purchase the underlying asset.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Leases (continued)
Group as a lessee (continued)

(c] Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to
its short-term leases (that is those leases that have a lease term of
12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain
a purchase option]. Lease payments on short-term leases are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or when
there is a lease modification] each of its leases as either an operating lease
or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified as operating
leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each component on a
relative stand-alone selling price basis. Rental income is accounted for on
a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in revenue in the
statement of profit or loss due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term
on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as
revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently
measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive
income, and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the
financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the Group’s
business model for managing them. With the exception of trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, the Group initially measures a financial
asset at its fair value, plus in the case of a financial asset not at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the Group has
applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price
determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” below.
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Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised
cost or fair value through other comprehensive income, it needs to give rise
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest ["SPPI"] on
the principal amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that are
not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss,
irrespective of the business model.

The Group’'s business model for managing financial assets refers to
how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows.
The business model determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.
Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held
within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows, while financial assets classified
and measured at fair value through other comprehensive income are
held within a business model with the objective of both holding to collect
contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets which are not held
within the aforementioned business models are classified and measured at
fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost [debt instruments]

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using
the effective interest method and are subject to impairment. Gains and
losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income [equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify irrevocably its
equity investments as equity investments designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income when they meet the definition of equity under
HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading.
The classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to the
statement of profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as other income in the
statement of profit or loss when the right of payment has been established,
it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will
flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably,
except when the Group benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part
of the cost of the financial asset, in which case, such gains are recorded
in other comprehensive income. Equity investments designated at fair
value through other comprehensive income are not subject to impairment
assessment.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
statement of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair value
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity investments
which the Group had not irrevocably elected to classify at fair value through
other comprehensive income. Dividends on equity investments classified
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are also recognised
as other income in the statement of profit or loss when the right of payment
has been established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend can
be measured reliably.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract containing a financial asset
host is not accounted for separately. The financial asset host together with
the embedded derivative is required to be classified in its entirety as a
financial asset at fair value through profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of
a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised [i.e., removed
from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position] when:

the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the
asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows
in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b} the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an
asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates, if and
to what extent, it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the
asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the
Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an
associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group
has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount
of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group
could be required to repay.
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Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses ("ECLs")
for all debt instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs
are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects
to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original effective interest
rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of
collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the
contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there
has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that
are possible within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECLJ. For those credit
exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses
expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing
of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk on a
financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition.
When making the assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk
of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition and considers reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-
looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the Group may
also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or external
information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding
contractual amounts in full before taking into account any credit
enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is written off when there

is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

128

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
General approach [continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment under the
general approach and they are classified within the following stages
for measurement of ECLs except for trade receivables which apply the
simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 - Financial instruments for which credit risk has not increased
significantly since initial recognition and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to 12-month ECLs
Stage 2- Financial instruments for which credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition but that are not credit-
impaired financial assets and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 - Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting date
(but that are not purchased or originated credit-impaired) and
for which the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component
or when the Group applies the practical expedient of not adjusting
the effect of a significant financing component, the Group applies the
simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified approach,
the Group does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a
loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group
has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors

and the economic environment.

For trade receivables that contain a significant financing component and
lease receivables, the Group chooses as its accounting policy to adopt the
simplified approach in calculating ECLs with policies as described above.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as loans and
borrowings and payables.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans
and borrowings and payables)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate
method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the

effective interest rate amortisation process.
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Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans
and borrowings and payables) (continued)

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is included

in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is
discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as
a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of a new liability,
and the difference between the respective carrying amounts is recognised
in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is
reported in the consolidated statement of financial position if there is a
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is
calculated using the weighted average cost method. Net realisable value is
based on estimated selling prices less any estimated costs of disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and short term
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts
of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a
short maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, including term
deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which are not restricted as
to use.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or constructive)
has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable that a future outflow
of resources will be required to settle the obligation, provided that a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for a
provision is the present value at the end of each reporting period of the
future expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising from the passage
of time is included in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to
items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss,
either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are
measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws] that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of each reporting period,
taking into consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the
jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of each reporting period between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting

purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of
goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused tax
losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses can be utilised, except:

when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in
a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss; and

in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed
at the end of each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it
has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability
is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws] that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of each reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if the
Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and
current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the
same taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend either to
settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected
to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods that
the costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of
goods or services is transferred to the customers at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the
amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will be entitled
in exchange for transferring the goods or services to the customer. The
variable consideration is estimated at contract inception and constrained
until it is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the amount
of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the associated

uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which provides the
customer with a significant benefit of financing the transfer of goods or
services to the customer for more than one year, revenue is measured at
the present value of the amount receivable, discounted using the discount
rate that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction between
the Group and the customer at contract inception. When the contract
contains a financing component which provides the Group with a significant
financial benefit for more than one year, revenue recognised under the
contract includes the interest expense accreted on the contract liability
under the effective interest method. For a contract where the period
between the payment by the customer and the transfer of the promised
goods or services is one year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted
for the effects of a significant financing component, using the practical
expedient in HKFRS 15.

Hotel and management services

Revenue from the provision of hotel and management services is
recognised over the scheduled period on a straight-line basis because the
customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by
the Group.

Revenue from food and beverages

Revenue from the sale of food and beverages is recognised at the point in
time when the control of the assets is transferred to the buyer, generally
upon consumption of the food and beverage items by the customer.

Other facilities services

Revenue from promotion, additional air-conditioning and chilled water
charge, license fee and other facilities charge is recognised over time
as services are rendered if the customer simultaneously receives and

consumes the benefits provided by the Group.

Revenue from event and venue fee, vetting and coordination fee, tenant bus
ticket and other premise fee is recognised at the point in time when the
customer has obtained control of the service, generally when the services
are rendered.
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Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)
Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate
are recognised as income in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.

Revenue from the car park fee is recognised when the services are
rendered.

Other incidental income and services income are recognised when the
income is entitled and services are rendered.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument
or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a payment
is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the Group transfers
the related goods or services. Contract liabilities are recognised as
revenue when the Group performs under the contract (i.e., transfers
control of the related goods or services to the customer).

Employee benefits
Retirement benefit scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund
retirement benefit scheme (the "MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of its employees. Contributions
are made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and
are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with
the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently administered fund.
The Group's employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.

Foreign currency transactions

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Group's functional currency. Each entity in the
Group determines its own functional currency and items included in the
consolidated financial statements of each entity are measured using
that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the
entities in the Group are initially recorded using their respective functional
currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of each reporting
period. Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items
are recognised in profit or loss. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the

exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currency transactions (continued)

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the related
asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset
or non-monetary liability relating to an advance consideration, the date of
initial transaction is the date on which the Group initially recognises the
non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the advance
consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the
Group determines the transaction date for each payment or receipt of the
advance consideration.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's consolidated financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities,
and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result
in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Estimation uncertainties

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group performs reviews for impairment of non-financial assets
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of the assets may not be recoverable.

The Group reviews certain indicators of potential impairment of these
assets such as reported sales and purchase prices, market demand
and general market conditions. The Group considers “Buildings held for
rental”, "Hotel building” and “Building services and support facilities”
as a portfolio of assets and identifies the cash-generating unit to which
the portfolio of assets belongs by referring to the valuation performed by
independent professional valuers, after taking into consideration the net
income allowing for reversionary potential. The assumptions adopted in the
property valuation are based on the market conditions existing at the end of
the reporting period, with reference to current market sales prices and the
appropriate capitalisation rate.

Based on the Group's best estimates, provision for impairment loss on the
non-financial assets is not necessary.
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Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)
Estimation uncertainties (continued)
Investments in securities

The Group follows the guidance of HKFRS 9 on initial classification of non-
derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed
maturity as financial assets at amortised cost if the Group has the intention
and ability to hold such investments to maturity; or at fair value through
profit or loss if the investments are managed by external fund managers
and their performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, and information
about the investments is provided internally on that basis to the Group's
key management.

For financial assets at amortised cost, the Group evaluates its intention
and ability to hold such investments to maturity. If the Group fails to keep
these investments to maturity other than for specific circumstances -
for example, selling financial assets with an insignificant amount close
to maturity - it will be required to reclassify the entire class as debt
investments at fair value through other comprehensive income. The
investments would, therefore, be measured at fair value not at amortised
cost.

For investments designated as at fair value through profit or loss, the
Group engages external fund managers to manage the investment
portfolio which is evaluated and reported internally on a fair value basis.
Accordingly, these investments are designated as at fair value through
profit or loss and are stated at fair value with subsequent changes in fair
value recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade receivables.
The provision rates are based on days past due for groupings of various
customer segments that have similar loss patterns (i.e., by geography,
product type, customer type and rating, and coverage by letters of credit
and other forms of credit insurance).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group's historical observed
default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical
credit loss experience with forward-looking information. For instance, if
forecast economic conditions (i.e., gross domestic product) are expected
to deteriorate over the next year which can lead to an increased number of
defaults in the financial services, media and retail sectors, the historical
default rates are adjusted. At each reporting date, the historical observed
default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates
are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed default
rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate.
The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and forecast
economic conditions. The Group’s historical credit loss experience and
forecast of economic conditions may also not be representative of a
customer’s actual default in the future. The information about the ECLs on
the Group’s trade receivables is disclosed in note 17 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)
Estimation uncertainties (continued)
Fair value of Cyberport Macro Fund investments

The unlisted equity investments and unlisted debt investments have been
valued based on the recent market transaction prices, market-based
valuation techniques and expected cash flows discounted at current rates
applicable for items with similar terms and risk characteristics. The
valuations require the Group to make estimates about expected future
cash flows, credit risk, volatility and discount rates, and to determine the
comparable public companies (peers) and select the price multiple or
enterprise value multiple. Hence, they are subject to uncertainty. The fair
values of the unlisted equity investments and unlisted debt investments
at 31 March 2022 were HK$263,803,894 and HK$9,465,721, respectively.
Further details are included in notes 15 and 29 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Useful lives and residual values of items of property, plant and equipment

In determining the useful lives and residual values of items of property,
plant and equipment, the Group has to consider various factors, such
as technical or commercial obsolescence arising from change or
improvements in the provision of services, or from a change in the market
demand for the service output of the asset, the expected usage of the asset,
the expected physical wear and tear, the care and maintenance of the
asset, and legal or similar limits on the use of the asset. The estimation
of the useful life of the asset is based on the experience of the Group with
similar assets that are used in a similar way. An adjustment of depreciation
is made if the estimated useful lives and/or residual values of items of
property, plant and equipment are different from previous estimation.
Useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period based on changes in circumstances.

Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in a lease,
and therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing rate ("IBR") to measure
lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Group would have
to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds
necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset
in a similar economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the
Group “would have to pay”, which requires estimation when no observable
rates are available (such as the Group that does not enter into financing
transactions) or when it needs to be adjusted to reflect the terms and
conditions of the lease (for example, when leases are not in the Group’s
functional currency). The Group estimates the IBR using observable inputs
(such as market interest rates]) when available and is required to make
certain entity-specific estimates [such as the Company’s stand-alone
credit rating).

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which the
losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based
upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profits together with
future tax planning strategies.
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LRE WS IREKME
4. REVENUE AND OTHER NET INCOME 4, WWASHAMKR AR
An analysis of revenue is as follows: WAZPHTT -
2022 2021
HK$ HK$
BT 7T
Revenue from contracts with customers EFE LA
Income from hotel operation HIEE WA 1,536,481 52,453,120
Building management income Pl EEBILA
- Management fee income —EEHBRKA 92,394,809 94,703,372
- Other facilities income — E iR A 30,835,496 22,333,087

124,766,786 169,489,579

Revenue from other sources B FNFZ WA
Rental income He WA
Variable lease payments that do not depend on HABURF RIS R 2
an index or a rate AJ AR A BT R 9,014,218 3,360,287
Other lease payments, including fixed payments HafARMAR - BEEEMAR 265,886,165 165,543,237
274,900,383 168,903,524
Car park fee income AT TR A 13,301,802 13,758,379
Other incidental income H b Z2 I A 3,848,621 93,834
292,050,806 182,755,737
416,817,592 352,245,316
(a) Disaggregated revenue information for revenue from (a) BEFEHAWAzD LKW ARE

contracts with customers

2022 2021
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Type of services RER
Income from hotel operation BIEEEHBA
- Room income —ZREKA 1,097,882 29,506,491
- Food and beverage income — R MR 438,599 22,946,629
Building management income Pl EIBUTA
- Management fee income —EBEIKA 92,394,809 94,703,372
- Other facilities income — E ik He A 30,835,496 22,333,087
Total revenue from contracts with customers BFAYWA BN 124,766,786 169,489,579
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4. REVENUE AND OTHER NET INCOME (continued)
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(a) Disaggregated revenue information for revenue from

contracts with customers (continued)

Geographical markets hIB 17
Hong Kong BB
Timing of revenue recognition L ON RN

Services transferred at a point in time

Services transferred over time

Total revenue from contracts with customers

The following table shows the amounts of revenue recognised in the
current reporting period that were included in the contract liabilities
at the beginning of the reporting period:

Revenue recognised that was included in contract

liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period: WA :

BEEERA

Income from hotel operation

(b) Performance obligations

Information about the Group's performance obligations is
summarised below:

Income from hotel operation

The performance obligation is satisfied over time when services are
rendered.

Revenue from food and beverages

The performance obligation is satisfied when the customer obtains
control of the promised goods, being at the point when the customer
consumes the food and beverages at the restaurants. Payment of
the transaction is due immediately at the point when the customer
consumes the food and beverages.

Management fee income

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as services are
rendered.

Other facilities income

The performance obligation is satisfied over time or at the point in
time as services are rendered.

Cyberport 2021/22 Annual Report
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4, WASHMWA ST (=)

(a)

TR AN EKERZRS
bEEs B 2 BRSS

(b)

BEFEHWA 2D KRR R ()

2022 2021

HK$ HK$

BT BT
124,766,786 169,489,579
19,126,223 35,197,606
105,640,563 134,291,973
124,766,786 169,489,579

TR TFAREHABINTARSEHYE
D firrh 2 WASH

BIMTARE B SR EGF 2

2022 2021
HK$ HK$
BT BT
1,460,345 2,528,683

BATE
BARAEHBHTRE 2 RRBLRLAT

BIEEERA
BATETIRHEIRS A BB AT RIIER M ETT -

R R

JBLITUE T &7 BRIS A 5% dh 2 42 1 A e (B
ERERIBERRM R ETT - B
FRmEIHNZAXNRZS -

B RIRA
BORETRERSH BB B HEBmETT -

H AR A
RAZTERE B RS RIHER K T RIERSEIETT -
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4. REVENUE AND OTHER NET INCOME (continued) 4.

(b) Performance obligations (continued)

WA SEMUW A (=)

(b) BAZRME(L)
F2022%3A318  DEREFRRBARE
(RIRBITHE D RIRBIT) 2R HNER

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the remaining
performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) which

amounted to HK$1,106,162 as at 31 March 2022 (2021: HK$1,554,816)

are expected to be recognised within one year.

HET -SRI -

1,106,162 7T (20214F : 1,554,81677T) + M

2022 2021
HK$ HK$
BT 7T
Other net income HAW A 28
Interest income from financial assets at amortised Z#M4EAK A5 K 2 & B A =2 F &
cost, net of amortisation of premium of WA - HBREMN 137,588
HK$137,588 (2021: HK$140,445) 70(2021% : 140,445 7T) 2,603,975 2,757,876
Interest income from investments at fair value BARNMEIT ARSI EZ
through profit or loss 2 A 15,049,857 19,213,670
Interest income on bank deposits RITHERZFBHWA 1,638,215 2,557,919
Services income from fellow subsidiaries (Note) EEIGIEVNGIPA T ES N D) 4,201,654 4,201,654
Net realised/unrealised (losses)/gains on BAANMEITARSEZ L EZERE
investments at fair value through profit or loss W/ RED(SH) WS 2T (28,552,189) 8,583,560
Foreign exchange differences, net SN ZEF SN 2,784,780 1,884,271
Reversal of impairment of trade receivables K B R K R 2 R E - 48,507
Government grants ez 2,684,200 2,358,000
Government subsidies on rental waiver e 2 BT RENEL - 96,394,713
Others Hib 5,956,140 3,876,051
6,366,632 141,876,221
Note: BSE -

On 24 May 2000, a portion of the Inland Lot No. 8969 at Telegraph Bay, Pokfulam (the
“Residential Portion”) was assigned to Hong Kong Cyberport (Ancillary Development) Limited
("HKCADL"), a fellow subsidiary, by Hong Kong Cyberport Development Holdings Limited
(the “immediate holding company”]. Pursuant to the services agreement dated 25 October
2003 entered into between the Company and HKCADL, fixed monthly services income of
HK$125,600 was received from HKCADL commencing from November 2003 for the provision
of services by the Company to facilitate the operation of the Residential Portion. The fee
was revised to HK$200,000 commencing from April 2006 and to HK$261,000 commencing
from May 2008. The total amount received during the year was HK$$3,132,000 (2021:
HK$3,132,000).

Pursuant to the services agreement dated 12 March 2005 entered into between the Company
and Skillful Limited, a fellow subsidiary, monthly services income was received for the
provision of information technology and telecommunications services to the Residential
Portion. The total amount received during the year was HK$$1,069,654 (2021: HK$1,069,654).

F20006F5A240 « EEURBELRERE AR (" EEE
BRAR")ARRHEAREEHREE(HELXR)ERAR
("HKCADL") #it HSE Bk AR 3t R 89695 Heh —#8 +
(EEES") o RIBAARSHKCADLETITIZ B 8352003
FI10ABBZBE M RRATREELD 2 EZRER
%+ B20034 11 B FF 448 A A HKCADLYKER 125,600/ 7T 2
ElERZUWA © 82006548 %2008F5A & + LTI ZE 5
BEAT ] A200,000 7T 261,000 7T © AN Z B M2 H
$13,132,000/8 7T (20214 : 3,132,000 7T) ©

RAEA LR SFE R KE 2 R Skillful Limited FT1T3Z B 85
2005F3A12B ZME M - AARFEEBH REF M
PR RBRRESMEARRRS KA - REEBER SR
1,069,654/ 75 (20214F : 1,069,654/ 7T) ©
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5. STAFF COSTS

An analysis of staff costs is as follows:

Salaries and allowances
Retirement benefit scheme contributions

Staff benefits and other staff costs

Analysed into:
Hotel

Corporate office

Public Mission Teams (note 10)

6. LOSS BEFORE TAX

140

Rental income less outgoings of
HK$14,986,883 (2021: HK$14,946,321)

Cost of inventories

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Lease payments not included in the
measurement of lease liabilities

Auditor’s remuneration
Impairment of trade receivables

Impairment of other receivables

Reversal of impairment of trade receivables

Loss on disposal of items of property, plant

and equipment, net
Finance costs:

Interest on lease liabilities

Cyberport 2021/22 Annual Report

FoRRN
RRRE R R R

RTAEFFIE A R TRCA

6.

The Group's loss before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

FASUWABRFF 14,986,883 7T
(20214F : 14,946,321787T)

TSR
Pl - Hl2sRik&IE

B A E =718
At AERE AR I ENE TR

e Uliln

B YRR 2 BE
HoAth B WK IUZ R B
1% B R R 2 BB

HEY - B RIEEWE 2
= A

W52

MERBZHE

2022
Notes HK$
BE BT

(259,913,500)

2,339,220

13 152,612,032
14(a) 2,473,581
14(c) 516,685
346,080

17 29,625
8,497,518

17 =
84,848

RITEAE
RIRAZAIT -
2022 2021
HK$ HK$
BT BT
106,622,749 127,248,326
4,854,533 5,637,175
846,120 4,271,485
112,323,402 137,156,986
19,552,360 42,597,092
52,224,989 51,881,197
71,777,349 94,478,289
40,546,053 42,678,697
112,323,402 137,156,986
BRBLET 5

AEFAZBRBEISRENR, QA THME :

2021
HK$
BT

(153,957,203)
9,637,808

147,055,454

2,045,700

210,781
336,000

1,292,484

(48,507)

6,800,860

120,095
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FEMSIREKME
7. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 7. EEME
The emoluments of the Directors of the Group disclosed pursuant to BIEBEBAREMEINERAR(HEEEFH

section 383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of RERD AL 2BHRBE2AEHAEEHESWT :
the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors)

Regulation are as follows:

2022 2021
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Directors’ fees EEHE — =
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EMEEYEF = =
Discretionary bonuses [l =preas - -
Retirement scheme contributions BRI R FR = -
8. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 8. hEZEHER

Details of the remuneration of the five non-director highest paid employees FEFEERFEAZHMSIFENT :

are as follows:

2022 2021
HK$ HK$
BT 7SI

Salaries and allowances e REM
(Including discretionary performance bonuses) (BEBISSEMEL) 17,395,237 16,561,617
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RGBT RIEE R 180,000 180,000
17,575,237 16,741,617

The number of the non-director highest paid employees whose MENTFAUATERZFESESFRAZHER
T

remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

2022 2021

HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 72 %3,000,000% 7T 1 2
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 723,500,000/ 7T 2 2
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 7L £ 4,000,000/ 7T 1 =
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 7% 4,500,000/ 7T 1 1
) 3

B 2021/22 F1R
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RAMSRERME
9. GOVERNMENT RENT AND RATES 9. WHEREM
An analysis of government rent and rates is as follows: AR ZEMZ ST
2022 2021
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Hotel BE 706,000 1,228,000
Corporate office NR) I ELE 14,986,883 14,946,321
15,692,883 16,174,321
Public Mission Teams (note 10) INAXE AR EBA (FE10) 353,439 430,985
16,046,322 16,605,306
10. PUBLIC MISSION ACTIVITIES EXPENSES, NET 10. DX EWE 2 H
All direct and indirect expenses incurred for the primary and dominant MAREH N EEB KN REEVSRENE1ETAR
purpose of public mission and that contribute to the successful running of BRI IR RSB IE N4 2 FTE B R A5
public mission activities as described in note 1 to the consolidated financial XHEHFEANAREREDZE - BAZHBLE -

statements are considered as public mission activities expenses. Such

expenses comprise:

2022 2021
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Staff costs RIS 40,546,053 42,678,697
Information technology facilities maintenance fees &IMBHIIE B RFEFEH 24,751,347 28,245,175
Financial assistance to industry start-ups ALl R a1 3R A BY 92,323,480 93,501,733
Programme expenses [seminars, trainings, T (it s - 851 ERER -
competitions, workshops and exhibitions) THEHRRR) 16,134,043 13,797,925
Government rent and rates b FE K Z 1 353,439 430,985
Public mission communications NN AR 4,336,536 6,731,163
Operating expenses ZELZMH 16,503,206 10,400,182
Government project expenses AT B &2 H 76,797,334 28,396,883
Recovery of direct expenses (including government Y E B 7 (BIEH TN &
grants of HK$79,856,461 (2021: HK$30,517,815)) 79,856,461 70 (20214F -
30,517,815/ 7)) (88,928,095) (36,653,209)
Interest income on redemption of Rinlink I Bl Z T B A B WA (2,334,269) =
Fair value losses on debt investments at fair value QA MMEITARZEZ
through profit or loss, net RERARANER SR 138,781 6,494,109

180,621,855 194,023,643
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11. INCOME TAX

Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the Group did

not generate any assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the year

(2021: Nil).

A reconciliation of the tax credit applicable to the loss before tax at the

Hong Kong statutory rate to the tax amount at the Group’s effective tax rate

is as follows:

Loss before tax

1. FriE8t

Fa

55 MK BT

BT AEEAREEH T T EE ™ EER ARG
A - BHATHEBRSTIEHRE(2021F : ) -

BRTREBZEERERITE ZRHA 5 R BB
HeSRASERGREUTE Z R Z KA T

Tax credit at the Hong Kong statutory tax rate of 16.5% & BEERK16.5%1TE 2 HTHK R

Income not subject to tax

Expenses not deductible for tax

Tax losses not recognised

Tax amount at the Group’s effective tax rate

12. DEFERRED TAX

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows:

At 1 April 2020

Deferred tax (credited)/
charged to profit or
loss during the year

At 31 March 2021 and
1 April 2021

Deferred tax (credited)/
charged to profit or
loss during the year

At 31 March 2022

F2020F4H1R

FHFREGTA),
kR 2 BT

F202143A31B &
202144 A1H

FAFHREOTA)
0FR 2 3BEHB

F202243A31H

2022 2021
HK$ HK$
B IT T
R ET S 0 (219,273,108) (212,787,639)
(36,180,063) (35,109,960)
BANRT 2 WA (12,422,667) (1,948,887)
A2 IF 2 11,441,673 1,739,798
RFIA 2 BRI 1R 37,161,057 35,319,049
RAREASERB R ITE 2 Ban > =
12. % FERL T
BIERBE 7= RAGZ AT -
Losses Depreciation
available in excess
for offsetting of related
against future depreciation
taxable profits allowance
AMEAEIRSE WIREBHBX
AR R IRBE IR & Others Total
i AR | 2B Hitb BEat
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
(149,992,946) 150,000,950 (8,004) =
(15,190,501) 15,183,782 6,719 -
(165,183,447) 165,184,732 (1,285) =
(12,182,248) 12,187,136 (4,888) =
(177,365,695) 177,371,868 (6,173) =
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N

12. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Deferred tax assets are not recognised for temporary differences arising

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

144

from tax losses carried forward due to uncertainty of realisation of the
related tax benefit through the future taxable profits. As at 31 March 2022,
the Group had unrecognised tax losses of approximately HK$2,818,000,000
(2021: approximately HK$2,593,000,000]). The tax losses have no expiry date

and are yet to be agreed by the Inland Revenue Department.

Cost
At 1 April 2020
Addition

Disposalfwriten off

At31 March 2021

Addition

Disposal written off

At31 March 2022
Depreciation and impairment
At April 2020

Depreciation charge for the year

Disposal/written off

At31 March 2021
Depreciation charge for the year

Disposalfwriten off
At31 March 2022

Net book value

At31 March 2022

At 31 March 2021

ik
FANERIR
&
e/
FUNEIRNE
g

e /48
FNNFIRNA
fiARAE
FUNELRIB
EnfER%
e/ 1
FUNEIRNIE
ERfRRR
e/
FUNEIAN

KAE
FUnEIR A

TnE3A318

12, BB
F T T A 18 T RE A5 38 0 AR 3R B2 IR B A AR BUAR X
BRUINE WA ERRM TR~ 2 G E
PRI ER IR 7= 202253310 » ~"&H
ZARBIABII S #0149 792,818,000,0005% 7T (2021
F ¢ £92,593,000,0007 7T ) © BN S 45 H 7L B
B BAaFHSREIA -
13. ¥l - HBERIRE
Building
services
andsupport  Information
Buildings Hotel facilities ~ technology Leasehold  Furniture and
held for rental building BT facilities Centres ~ improvements  equipment Motor ~ Construction
i) BE f55 RABE  equipment B K5 vehicles  in progress Total
#F BF  XERE i iR & i1% B RRIE &t
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
A AT A A A o A A AT oo
[note i)
(i)
SOTINBTE  LASYINL 12676940 MR 60886206 200299806 24590799 930,137 - 530323428
0158707 4,193,001 13756787 181057 - - T2
(13926660 (19.5147) (220137) - (33014700
SSTABT  24INN2 1316895021 247973381 60886254 200129933 24k 186,851 710,000 - 5902,843,228
46,698,207 3,360,563 35,086,727 1.179.889 - M35 338268868
(25433,133) (6,757,054 = S YAL/AL
SSTANTIG  24ITNT 1363593328 205918791 60886254 235214600 245,209,862 70000 245325528 6,20819,929
1200028 9928036 LTSN 230426 408B6296  TRIL3T  1%ATOAYT To4470 - 3005308 84
T1142,965 590033 1438389 5417817 19236663 716779 142,000 - 167055454
830880 (1831959 (220,137) - [860600]
1309423251 101260478 1191523786 230720563 6088625 87138160 161932683 686,333 - 145,553,688
11142985 590033 17amen 671,12 009809 2489924 23667 - 162012082
- (B (6,757,054 = SR YAV/AL
1386566,210 107,196,012 1209465457 213868522 6088625 107,236,199 180,074,873 710,000 - 3265973533
2170507560 161741900 154147871 12,060,269 127,978 461 65,136,809 - M35 29409663
LUTI00RL  1TBATBE 1253130 15,200,638 1MW 80.29,168 23,667 - LT57.289,540
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

On 22 May 2000, the Government of the HKSAR granted the Inland Lot No. 8969 at Telegraph
Bay, Pokfulam to the immediate holding company for a term of 50 years at a lump sum initial
premium of HK$1,000 and an annual rent of an amount equal to 3% of the rateable value of
the said Lot from time to time.

On 24 May 2000, the Company entered into a sub-lease agreement with the immediate
holding company whereby a portion of the Inland Lot No. 8969 at Telegraph Bay, Pokfulam
(the “Cyberport Portion”) has been sub-leased to the Company from the immediate holding
company at nil rental.

The buildings are situated on the leasehold land granted.

Centres equipment represents equipment of Entrepreneurship Centre and Technology Centre
funded by government grant and used for the purpose of the designated projects.

As at 31 March 2022, the fair value of the buildings held for rental (together with the
associated building services and support facilities) amounted to HK$6,747 million (2021:
HK$6,697 million). The aggregate carrying value of such assets amounted to HK$2,325 million
(2021: HK$2,373 million). The fair value of the buildings held for rental (together with the
associated buildings services and support facilities) as at 31 March 2022 was determined
based on a valuation carried out by Colliers International (Hong Kong) Limited (2021: Knight
Frank Petty Limited), an independent professional valuer.

The fair value of the buildings held for rental (together with the associated building services
and support facilities) falls within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy and is determined
using the income capitalisation approach by discounting the expected rental income using a
capitalisation rate adjusted for the quality and location of the buildings.

RAMSIRKRMDE

13. ¥k - HBERiRE (%)

BE <

(i)

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

F2000F5 4228 - EARXBUTREZERA AL — 18
AL F RN B N HhER 89695 2 L ith - —RMEFIREN N
1,000/ 7T « SEAEARS0F MEFNHESTHELY T LR
3 ER R B9 R 1R 2= 1A FA1ES% ©

T 20005 H24R » ARARASEEZERRRITL—H 5 A
W it AREMERZERA RS EERMM L MR
8969 S HA — My L ("HIBERL ") - BAXNESE -

ZEHETATHRMEE T L -

PR E T MBUR MBI A B B THEE M B 2 b xR
DB LZ1&% -

F202243A31H » HEFHAEFOERBEXZEFRSS
FIEIRHE) Z N RNMER67.4TIZHBTT(20214F : 66.97127
TT) o B R 2 IKE S A N 23251287 (20214F « 23.7312
FEIL) - REMELESRF ERBEX 2 BEFRE SRR
i) F2022463 A3 B2 AAMETIREM T T L 4E TS
HEBRYLE R (FE) BBRAR(20214F : RBMNEIHITH
BRARETZEEER

FEHEST(ERBRXZETRS SXERE) 220N
ERTARNEERTZE=F  HRARAESTAE
T HENRAEREAEFTZRERMRER IR AR
B TAES WAFTIIE -
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14.

146

LEASES
The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for office premises, office equipment,
information technology facilities, storage area and accommodation used
in its operations. Lease of office premises has a lease term of six years,
while office equipment, information technology facilities and storage area
have lease terms of five years, and an accommodation has a lease term
of two years. There are several lease contracts that include variable lease
payments, which are further discussed below.

(a] Right-of-use assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets and the

14. &
AERAEREEA

AEFAREEEZFEBNODREYL - PRER
& RABRRE #BEXREBRBITEERA
9 PREYPLOBEEHANRE - MHLXER
& RMMBOREAEFXOEARAANLF - £
BOEEHNRE - KAEFITERUEFEEA
THENKWERAY - RET X —Fiek -

(a) FEARA
RERWERRA =2 KEERFRELN

movements during the year are as follows: I
Information
Office Office technology Storage

premises equipment facilities area Accommodation Total

DAL PAERE  RRBRRE EEX (3] Bit

HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$

As at 1 April 2020 F202064R18 5,827,967 539,102 190,650 48,716 - 6,606,435

Additions NE = = = - 1,270,930 1,270,930

Depreciation charge  $7IRF % (1,554,121) (188,672) (95,325) (48,716) (158,866) (2,045,700)
Asat31 March 2021 F202143A318 %

and as at 1 April 2021 F202144A1H 4,273,846 350,430 95,325 - 1,112,064 5,831,665

Depreciation charge  #IBFFX (1,554,120) (188,671) 95,325) - (635,465) (2,473,581)

Asat31March 2022 F2022%3A31H 2,719,726 161,759 - - 476,599 3,358,084
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14. LEASES (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

(b)

(c)

Lease liabilities

Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

Fa

14. & (&)

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements during the

year are as follows:

Carrying amount at 1 April
New leases
Accretion of interest recognised during the year

Payments
Carrying amount at 31 March

Analysed into:
Current portion

Non-current portion

F4R1B 2 KEE
AT
FRIAZ T SILIE
NE7S

T3A318 ZKE{E

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note 30(a) to

the consolidated financial statements.

The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases are as

follows:

Interest on lease liabilities
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets

Expense relating to short-term leases

(included in public mission activities expenses)

Variable lease payments not included in the
measurement of lease liabilities (included in
other operating expenses)

Total amount recognised in profit or loss

ArEMERS N

(FARRERFEFZ L)

MMEABRAFRITEZ AT
HENFOATARMEE

TSP HRIAZ BEM

AREERAEREMA (L)
(b) FEEMME

(c)

55 MK BT

HEAGZIKEERFRNZHOT

2022 2021
HK$ HK$

BT BT
6,067,535 6,896,540
- 1,270,930

84,848 120,095
(2,617,920) (2,220,030)
3,534,463 6,067,535
2,254,797 2,533,072
1,279,666 3,534,463
3,534,463 6,067,535

HEAGZIBOTESZE M SRR E

30(a) N HEEE -

FiRah A AL SFnT

)

2022 2021
HK$ HK$
BT BT
84,848 120,095
2,473,581 2,045,700
37,688 32,413
478,997 178,368
3,075,114 2,376,576
RS 2021/22 F1R 147
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14. LEASES (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

(d)

(e)

148

Variable lease payments

The Group has a lease contract for an office equipment that contains
variable payments based on the meter rate of additional printout. The
term is negotiated by management for the office equipment that is
used to print without steady usage. Management's objective is to align
the lease expense with the additional printout. The following provides
information on the Group’s variable lease payments, including the
magnitude in relation to fixed payments:

Fixed rent Eifaizhen
Variable rent only WNENAAEHEE
Fixed rent & E 78
Variable rent only WA E

In addition, the Group leased a warehouse which contains a variable
lease payment term that is based on the Group’s storage per carton
box in the warehouse. The amount of the variable lease payments
recognised in profit or loss for the current year for the lease is
HK$455,917 (2021: HK$97,776).

The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in note 25(c) to the
consolidated financial statements.

Cyberport 2021/22 Annual Report

14. & (&)

RERAFENEMEA (L)

(d) AIEBERRR
REFITE—HHAAERENHEEEY - &
FEERFEHIMT NN EE BT EH AT E
[ - ZEFERERERBIETEMEHT
BEAENTAZTREATE EBEEZAH
EEARXESHMIMTENEEIIR o F&RIEE
HEXAEANAIEEENRZ AR - B
BREENRZIEE

2022
Fixed Variable
payments payments Total
&K CIESEEA Bit
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
156,000 - 156,000
- 23,080 23,080
156,000 23,080 179,080
2021
Fixed Variable
payments payments Total
& € 53K AJ TR Bt
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
156,000 - 156,000
- 80,592 80,592
156,000 80,592 236,592
thoh - AEFABER - - EEOB SR
BEAESAER AN EBEBTEMITED
AEBEMNROZR - RAFENER
Mam R IIA 2 AT M TR 455917 8 T
(20214 : 97,776 7T) °
e) EEMIMERE SMELEEMSIREME

25(c) KR EE -



14. LEASES (continued)
The Group as a lessor

The Group leases certain buildings (note 13) in Hong Kong under operating
lease arrangements. The terms of the leases also require the tenants to
pay a security deposit. Rental income recognised by the Group during the
year was HK$274,900,383 (2021: HK$168,903,524), details of which are
included in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.

At the end of the reporting period, the undiscounted lease payments
receivable by the Group in future periods under non-cancellable operating
leases with its tenants are as follows:

Within one year —ER
After one year but within two years —FEEMERN
After two years but within three years AEFE=FR
After three years but within four years =FEEEFRN
After four years but within five years MEFERFR
After five years hFE

Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements
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14. & (&)

AEAEREHBEA
AEABRBELERATHEREEE TRF(HE
13) - MARRNERBLAZHRIES - ZERAT
FERFHINZ AL WA N274,900,38358 7T (20214 :
168,903,524 L) » AR FBHTHRAMSIRE
ML

TIHREMR - ARARIESHESITZH AT B
ZEBRRTAKBR LKA RFTIE T FHAT -

2022 2021
HK$ HK$
BT BT

197,919,217 204,224,981

101,600,930 129,987,428

39,316,311 40,486,359
15,112,133 20,923,132

9,580,804 14,527,258
29,633,651 39,799,330

393,163,046 449,948,488
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15.

150

CYBERPORT MACRO FUND INVESTMENTS

Equity investments designated at fair value

BRARE
—F ETEARR

through other comprehensive income
- Unlisted equity investments, at fair value

Debt investments at fair value through
profit or loss

- Unlisted debt investments, at fair value —FLETHRSEE -

The above equity investments were irrevocably designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income as the Group considers these
investments to be strategic in nature.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group did not recognise any
dividend income (2021: Nil] from the equity investments held at the end of
the reporting period.

The above debt investments were hybrid contracts consisting of a bond
and an embedded derivative. They were mandatorily classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss as their contractual cash flows
are not solely payments of principal and interest.

To further extend the Group's entrepreneurial support to scalable start-
ups, the Group has launched the CMF for Hong Kong-based digital
entrepreneurs in 2017. With an initial size of HK$200 million, the CMF
aims to provide Cyberport’s start-ups with early financing and promote
the development of venture capital ecosystem in Hong Kong. In April
2021, Cyberport has committed to inject an additional amount of HK$200
million into the CMF and extend the scope to cover Series B and later stage
investments.
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BASMET ABRB 2 HFRAE

BARME

15. HBARAULESRE

EERAANMETAREERE 2

2022 2021

HK$ HK$

BT BIT
263,803,894 139,467,740
9,465,721 9,550,052
273,269,615 149,017,792

BT AKEIANZERABRBIET - B KA
AR HESEEEAANEITARMLEE

Wz -

HE202263A31BIEFE - AEHAFHLHINKE
RE R A NIRRT 2 ERAR B WA (2021
F:x) -

ERRSEANBRSFRRARTETRAKZ
RABY - KR o ENRAANEIT ARE
ZEMAFT  REANEEANSREHENNL
NAESRFE

R —FIMARAREE AT ‘A6 E b 2 610k 32
F o REFAT2017F 3 EBHIG0)0 K B 3 AT
BRAVLES - HIEABRACLESMHRE
MAMAZET - EEN BB IO B AL R F 5
BAFEATEOMNRERESIENRR © T
2021547 - BB B AR EIEER A L ESH
SNERBAZAETT » HY REBRREHMIRA -
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16. INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES 16. IEH R
2022 2021
HK$ HK$
BT P8 IT
Non-current assets RN E =
Financial assets at amortised cost LKA 2 & B R e = 49,108,104
Current assets Ve R
Financial assets at amortised cost B IK 2 € B8R~ 49,384,925 35,041,864
Investments at fair value through profit or loss BARMEIT ARSI ZIZE 643,010,512 723,397,807
692,395,437 758,439,671
Total Bt 692,395,437 807,547,775
(a) Financial assets at amortised cost (a) TMHEEATIKZ SRR
2022 2021
HK$ HK$
BT 7SI
Listed fixed interest debt securities in Hong Kong ~ &#&_ LW EEF B HRSIEH 49,384,925 84,149,968
The net book amount is analysed as follows: TKEREDTOT
Maturing over one year F—F LA EFI|HE - 49,108,104
Maturing within one year F—ERNEH 49,384,925 35,041,864
49,384,925 84,149,968
Market value of listed debt securities THHEEILAEZTE 50,088,633 86,052,761
(b) Investments at fair value through profit or loss (b) BRAARNEITTABMBZRE
2022 2021
HK$ HK$
BT 7SI
Listed fixed interest debt securities: LEWEERSHEFIUES
- In Hong Kong —BBEN 215,922,704 252,865,574
- Outside Hong Kong —EBEIN 331,857,123 361,417,256
Unlisted but quoted fixed interest debt securities JE ETEE RN EEFERFIES 95,230,685 109,114,977
643,010,512 723,397,807
R 2021/22 E1R 151
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TRADE RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables Rz 5K

Impairment BIE

The credit period given to customers is generally 0 to 30 days. The Group
seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables to
minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior
management. The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancement over its trade receivable balances. Trade receivables are
non-interest-bearing.

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade receivables
are as follows:

At beginning of year F1))
Impairment losses recognised (note 6) WIAVRES R (HHE6)
Impairment losses reversed (note 6) REDRES R (HHE6)
At end of year FR

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a
provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The provision rates are
based on days past due for groupings of various customer segments with
similar loss patterns (i.e., by geographical region, product type, customer
type and rating, and coverage by letters of credit or other forms of credit
insurance). The calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome,
the time value of money and reasonable and supportable information that
is available at the reporting date about past events, current conditions
and forecasts of future economic conditions. Generally, trade receivables
are written off if past due for more than one year and are not subject to
enforcement activity.
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17. N UK =X

2022 2021
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
20,065,753 21,695,668
(1,322,109) (1,292,484)
18,743,644 20,403,184

BTEPZERH-RINOEI0K - AEALE™
T 1l EL R Wi [B] 2 R YR 10 BA 6 1 BT U B B 2 A
K- BRERHSRERZERFTH - AEHAH
70 3 B R UK TR 48 AR 15 B A AT SR 9 o Sl T EL A
ESURTHEH - MUK N RS

MWK FORES IR R -
2022 2021
HK$ HK$
BT BT
1,292,484 48,507
29,625 1,292,484
- (48,507)
1,322,109 1,292,484

AEATERS HHACRRBEEHEITHED
- MITEMBERSHR - REXDREAFX
U= RES (BB A B - =i - FPRE
RIFFURERIEREME A ZEERRZES

SEE)Z2ZNEF 9 BAR 2 BBMRBEE - 1%t
HRBEEMRER - EheENERETHRS
BHAREERSEEM - TR RRRERF
RATN 2 BRI ERM - —RWME -+ KRIKK
e BRI —F BN SRBINITRZME - 0T LA

o
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17. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 17.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the

Group’s trade receivables using a provision matrix:

As at 31 March 2022

Expected credit loss rate
Gross carrying amount (HK$)

Expected credit losses (HK$)

As at 31 March 2021

Expected credit loss rate
Gross carrying amount (HK$)

Expected credit losses (HK$)

ALY ENED

Fa

55 MK BT

LA 2051 o A SR ] ST K R R R = AB B 2 15

IR R AL

T2022%3H31H

Past due
B
Less than  One to three Over three
Current one month months months
BN ER LF-1A SE=1IH BE=1A
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
TEERSRE 0% 8.49% 12.03% 16.19%
TKE 28 (FB7T) 9,473,535 2,765,246 4,320,134 3,506,838
MEERSM(ABT) - 234,636 519,833 567,640
F202163H31H8
Past due
Less than One to three Over three
Current one month months months
BNER SF-=1A =Z =4 BE=1MA
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
MEERSIRE 0% 12.99% 15.59% 10.03%
K S E(ETT) 11,374,385 2,779,584 3,143,450 4,398,249
MEERESHBT) = 360,979 490,208 441,297

Total
Bit
HK$
BT

6.59%
20,065,753

1,322,109

Total

Bit

HK$

ST
5.96%
21,695,668

1,292,484
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FEMSIRAE
18. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18. MR - LS R E AR
2022 2021
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Prepayments U FRIN 18,725,252 9,087,783
Lease incentives A= 11,451,646 32,773,812
Prepayments and deposits paid for the purchase BRWAL - NEERIRETA X2
of items of property, plant and equipment TR RIS 3R & - 23,650,198
Deposits paid for premises leasing RYLARZ N2 RE 685,008 685,008
Government grants receivable 7 YA #1 B & 5T = 5,500,000
Other deposits Hipize 1,544,830 2,394,600
Other receivables H i 57 U Zam 28,369,592 6,695,691
60,776,328 80,787,092
Impairment BE (8,497,518) _
52,278,810 80,787,092
Analysed into: DR
Non-current portion FEm RS 5,163,496 36,488,433
Current portion mohEb 47,115,314 44,298,659
52,278,810 80,787,092
Impairment of deposits and other receivables R R HAMNWRI 2 RE
The carrying amount of deposits and other receivables approximated to F2022F 20213 A31H © &4 K E M N UK
their fair value as at 31 March 2022 and 2021. Provision for impairment on MZKEESEAANERS - e REMMNY
deposits and other receivables is measured as either 12-month expected FMZ RER R 12D AMBERS R EHm
credit losses or lifetime expected credit losses, depending on whether HERSHRITE  WEETEXKRE T SHIAAEK
there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. RAKBIEINME ° WSR2 =N B 7]
If a significant increase in credit risk of a receivable has occurred since SR ARG I - MR ER S BB ERS
initial recognition, then impairment is measured as lifetime expected RitE - TGRS R E M8 W F IR 2 71 BR{E 57
credit losses. In assessing the expected credit loss of deposits and other SHE - EREZEZMAE - flmERIKE
receivables, management considers various factors such as the ageing of EAGFEUY  EHSEIANRRN  5XHNH
the balances, existence of disputes, recent historical payment patterns, 1= BB x N E T H b 7] 15 % BHA K A iE 1 R
any other available information concerning the creditworthiness of e BREFNARLERHRAERLDANL
counterparties and forward-looking information. Management uses this ERXRGHASIBKREBRUSHRERANETRS
information to determine whether a provision for impairment is required WHZERIERRER S - 2022638318 -
either for a specific counterparty or for certain counterparties’ balances H b &7 USRI 2 R (B 3k % 98,497,518 T (2021
that have similar loss patterns overall. The provision for impairment of F:E)e

other receivables at 31 March 2022 was HK$8,497,518 (2021: Nil).
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LREMSIRETME
19. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 19. e RAEEZETA

2022 2021

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Cash and bank balances & RBITER 143,841,606 104,902,248
Non-pledged time deposit with an original maturity FIREBEREEHEN P F=AA2

of less than three months when acquired THLARE BATF R 125,560,941 253,818,241
Non-pledged time deposits with original maturity of F3RERREHBN=ZAAN L

more than three months when acquired TR E B 24,932,864 25,259,195

294,335,411 383,979,684

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit BITISIRIES B RITE S = LAY 2 F & B ER
rates. Time deposits are made for varying periods of between one month FE o THEZNTERERY NN ERT
and one year depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group, T EXBBENTE—NAE—ETZE - HURE
and earn interest at the respective time deposit rates. The bank balances T EEESFIEREF 2 - RITEEREBRESR
and time deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent BARSH T BY IR A EER T RT -

history of default.

20. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 20. H At S7 44 R R it 2% A

2022 2021

Notes HK$ HK$

ipzS BT BT

Contract liabilities ENRMGR (a) 1,106,162 1,554,816
Other payables E A N7 <RI (b) 4,127,448 1,816,708
Accruals Miit%E A 152,187,006 135,340,048
Receipt in advance IR FRIN 5,638,205 6,606,703
Government grants BF«NB & 61,824,524 117,501,104
Provisions %% 8,163,792 13,163,792
Retention payable MR & 2,876,000 =

235,923,137 275,983,171

Notes: BE <
(a)  Details of contract liabilities are as follows: (a)  AHRFFEOT
2022 2021
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Short-term advances received from customers 1B R Z R B2
Income from hotel operation BIEEERA 1,106,162 1,554,816
The decrease in contract liabilities in 2022 was mainly due to the decrease in short-term F0256 690 RS EBHTARTF KR Z BBHARTA
advances received from customers at the end of the year. FEERRDAHK -
(b)  Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average term of three months. (b) HimFmARS  FHHEN=NA
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21.

22.

23.

156

RENTAL AND OTHER DEPOSITS

Included in rental deposits are amounts of HK$36,327,156 (2021:
HK$80,473,935) which are not expected to be settled within one year.

DEVELOPMENT MAINTENANCE FUND

It represents a fund received by the Group in accordance with the terms
of a project agreement entered into among the Company, the immediate
holding company, HKCADL, Pacific Century Cyberworks Limited (now
renamed as PCCW Limited) and Cyber-Port Limited on 17 May 2000
(the "Project Agreement”). Pursuant to the Project Agreement, the
purpose of the fund is for upkeep and maintenance of the common
telecommunications, media and information technology facilities available
to the tenants and visitors (the “Shared Cyberport facilities”).

Upon acquisition of relevant assets for replacements, the costs of the
acquired assets will be transferred from the Development Maintenance
Fund (the "DMF”) account to the Capital Reserve account in accordance

with the Group's accounting policy.

During the year, the Shared Cyberport facilities of HK$8,545,780 (2021:
HK$3,247,467) were acquired and funded by the DMF. Accordingly, this
amount has been transferred from the DMF to the Capital Reserve

account.

SHARE CAPITAL

Issued and fully paid: ERITRHR

538,000,002 (2021: 300,000,002) ordinary shares 538,000,0020%

(20214F : 300,000,0020% ) ¥ @A

A summary of the movements in the Group's share capital is as follows:

At 1 April 2020 and 1 April 2021
¥R AT (HHE)

New issues (Note)

At 31 March 2022 F202243A31H

Note: On 1 September 2021, 238,000,000 ordinary shares were issued at HK$1 per share to the
existing shareholders of the Company, which resulted in proceeds of HK$238,000,000.
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21.

22.

23.

F2020F4 H1A R20215F4 1R

HEkEMRE

HeEZsBREMHATST AN ZHM
36,327,156 70 (20214F : 80,473,935 7T) °

KREBES
ZMESRASHAREBEHALR  AEERA
Al * HKCADL « BRIz W B R A Al (BRI
BRAERAR) R INAERARF200065 717
B AT AT 2 BRAS A i RIS C I R ") Z &K
FTER 2 & & o BRI - ZIES A ER
FRESHBFARINEEAZ EXABIM - HER
FANBHR IS HE (" BRI AR -

RIEASAZ 2TBE - TWEMBRR > AEE
wE EMBERAFZRAMNRREERES(CTRE
BEES KT EERERREEKS -

FWN - £ 78,545,780/ 7T (20214 : 3,247,467
BI)ZHBAELRREEAKRECESWEH
RERE Bt ZEXMEMNEREEESH
RERKEZKS -

[EN
2022 2021
HK$ HK$
BT BT
538,000,002 300,000,002

RERPAZ AT

Number of
shares
inissue  Share capital
ERITROEE R AR
HK$
BT
300,000,002 300,000,002
238,000,000 238,000,000
538,000,002 538,000,002

MT - T20215F9 810 - BERUETTHNMERAALRIERKR R
7238,000,000A% Ei@AR + 3RS FT1S 3 M 238,000,000/ 7T °



24. RESERVES

25.

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein for the
current and prior years are presented in the consolidated statement of

changes in equity.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS  25.

(a) Major non-cash transactions

Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

RAMSIRKRMDE

24, R
$$l$$¢F&LE¢fZ% R E A
25 FamEEDE -

(a)

During the year, the Group did not have non-cash additions to
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities (2021: HK$1,270,930 and
HK$1,270,930), respectively, in respect of lease arrangements for

accommodation (2021: accommodation).

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities (b)

At 1 April 2020

Changes from financing cash flows
Government grants receivable
New lease

Realisation of government grants
Interest expense

Interest paid classified as operating cash flows

At 31 March 2021 and at 1 April 2021
Changes from financing cash flows
Realisation of government grants
Interest expense

Interest paid classified as operating cash flows

At 31 March 2022

F2020F4 318
BANERELS
BIAR BT A B 2 5R
iR

B By& L
FEXH
NENZENEREZEMNNE

T2021%E3A31RRT202154A1R
AN S RERD

BTN B & 28T

MEXZH
AENZERNLREZENHE

T2022%3H31R

SFENEREBRME

FEFRAERS
TER - AEAHTHER(2021F : E8)

ZHAZESBBBEEANES 2N &
NE RFETMME(20214F : 1,270,930 T &
1,270,930787T) ©

BRE S T E AR

Government
grants included
in other payables

and accruals Lease
AR RRIR liabilities
Rt 8 A 2 BUFH B & MRS
HK$ HK$

BT BT

2,555,800 6,896,540
238,715,832 (2,099,935)
5,500,000 -

- 1,270,930

(129,270,528) =

- 120,095

- (120,095)

117,501,104 6,067,535
32,237,246 (2,533,072)
(87,913,826 =

- 84,848

- (84,848)

61,824,524 3,534,463
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25. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(continued)

(c) Total cash outflow for leases

The total cash outflow for leases included in the consolidated
statement of cash flows is as follows:

BEAERDNA
ERFARINA

Within operating activities

Within financing activities

26. COMMITMENTS

The Group had the following capital commitments at the end of the

reporting period.

Contracted, but not provided for

EATAERK &

27. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

(b)

(c)

158

The Company is wholly owned by the Government of the HKSAR via The
Financial Secretary Incorporated. In accordance with revised HKAS 24
Related Party Disclosures issued by the HKICPA, government-related
entities and their subsidiaries, directly or indirectly controlled, jointly
controlled or significantly influenced by the Government of the HKSAR
are defined as related parties of the Group. On that basis, related
parties include the immediate holding company and its subsidiaries
(other than the Company), government-related entities and their
subsidiaries, other entities and corporations in which the Group is
able to control or exercise significant influence and key management
personnel of the Group.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, approximately 4% (2021: 3%)
of the Group's revenue was rental income, building management
income and other facilities income derived from the Government of
the HKSAR. All these services are conducted in the normal course of
business and in accordance with the Group's pricing policy.

The balances with the immediate holding company and fellow
subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

Details of the compensation of the key management personnel of the

Group in respect of their services rendered to the Group are disclosed
in notes 7 and 8 to the consolidated financial statements.
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(c)

25. ZREUNESHRERME (w0

HRZASRE M
TAZEHeRBRZEARAS T LM
™

26. AH

2022 2021

HK$ HK$

BT BIT

601,533 330,876

2,533,072 2,099,935

3,134,605 2,430,811
NERTIREH KRB U TELRELR o

2022 2021

HK$ HK$

BT BT

799,836,652 184,945,240

(a)

(b}

(c)

27. RBRBER 5

ARBAREBFX BTSSR E & +OER
L2RAE - REFE2UMDR MM 2EE
TBRBLIENE 265X EL #EZHE -
ReFEESXBFER S BT - KRE
3 5 H B R R 2 B AR ok SRk B BB
KA WRENKAEFHAZREKTT - RIFIZE
i KRBT BEERERQFAREME LA
(RAFESN) - RFEXXEREMEA
Al AEFRESRAEMERT N2 Hi
KEREWARAEAZ EEERAR

HE202F3ANALEFE  kEEBRFKX
B ZHSBA - BFEBRKA K&
WALN EAREFRWAZ4% (20214 : 3%) ©
FEZERSHEED IS IREFIRAER
ZEMBERHAT ©

SEEERATARARMEAR ZERAN
TR - BB RIRERIZIE -

REREBEEA R MAERIRERS TR
S 2 B ) I T 4R A M SRR MM T R
BHTE o



28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments at

the end of the reporting period are as follows:

31 March 2022

Financial assets

Financial
assets

at fair value
through other

Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

RAMSIRKRMDE

28. XK TN ERMTA

20225 3A31H

%AW TATRESRZ WEEDT :

comprehensive
income
BARNME Financial assets at fair value
ITAHMEE through profit or loss
Wiz SR BARNMET ARG Z
B’ SRR
Financial
Mandatorily assets at
designated amortised cost
Equity as such Debt R ERA
investments SEHIEEN investments 5k 2 &5 Total
BAE R 73R RERR B BT
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT
Deferred rental receivables #E A4S - - - 10,453,908 10,453,908
Cyberport Macro Fund BB RS ESE R
investments 263,803,894 - 9,465,721 - 273,269,615
Investments in securities IFAR A - 643,010,512 - 49,384,925 692,395,437
Trade receivables RUOKER - - - 18,743,644 18,743,644
Financial assets included it AFUSEI -
in prepayments, ’E REfNR
deposits and other FO @A~
receivables - - - 22,098,154 22,098,154
Amounts due from fellow R4t ZHE 2 B Z0R
subsidiaries - - - 1,938,909 1,938,909
Cash and cash equivalents & kI ¢ SEVE - - - 294,335,411 294,335,411
263,803,894 643,010,512 9,465,721 396,954,951 1,313,235,078
Financial liabilities ESRAG
Financial liabilities
at amortised cost
BB ARSI K 2 & B i
HK$
AT
Trade payables RIS FR 45,531,974
Financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals AR MR LT A2 ERAGR 161,787,716
Rental and other deposits e REMIRE 94,287,294
Amount due to the immediate holding company IVERR=E3 Al ONCTE 254,303,568
Lease liabilities TR 3,534,463
559,445,015
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28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued)

160

I 55 3K B E

31 March 2021

Financial assets

Financial
assets

at fair value
through other
comprehensive

28. REFNIPHER T A ()
2021%3A31H

income
RARNME Financial assets at fair value
AR LE through profit or loss
Wiz &/ BRARMET ARG Z
Financial
Mandatorily assets at
designated amortised cost
Equity as such Debt RIHHA
investments BHIEE A investments 50k 2 &8 Total
RAER %A RERR RF= Bt
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT
Deferred rental receivables & &R YA 4 - - - 13,295,348 13,295,348
Cyberport Macro Fund  HESERZOLEESRE
investments 139,467,740 - 9,550,052 - 149,017,792
Investments in securities IFARA - 723,397,807 - 84,149,968 807,547,775
Trade receivables RIBUKER - = = 20,403,184 20,403,184
Financial assets included it ATAFTFUR «
in prepayments, R REMNYK
deposits and other HIZ SRR~
receivables - - - 15,275,299 15,275,299
Amounts due from fellow R4z A Z bt & 22 BIZR
subsidiaries - - - 2,041,992 2,041,992
Cash and cash equivalents R4 RIEEEMA - - - 383,979,684 383,979,684
139,467,740 723,397,807 9,550,052 519,145,475 1,391,561,074
Financial liabilities ERR
Financial liabilities
at amortised cost
TR PSR AN K 2 2 B A5
HK$
BT
Trade payables IVERLLSA 50,240,157
Financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals it AE bR {5830 & b it 8 2 & B fix 147,528,830
Rental and other deposits HekHEAMmES 95,430,483
Amount due to the immediate holding company R B BAR AR R BRI 254,293,578
Lease liabilities HARR 6,067,535
553,560,583
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29. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL 29.
INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group's financial instruments,
other than those with carrying amounts that reasonably approximate to fair
values, are as follows:

RAMSIRKRMDE

ERMIAZAANERDIANEER

AEHEMTAZKEERAANMETKEES S
AMESEEEZSRIARINMAT :

Carrying
amounts Fair values
KE{E N RME
2022 2021 2022 2021
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT 7T
Financial assets ol
Equity investments BERARNEIT AR
designated at fair SHE W 2 RAR R
value through other
comprehensive income 263,803,894 139,467,740 263,803,894 139,467,740
Debt investments at fair value &Z2 AR MEIT AR Z
through profit or loss RFRR 9,465,721 9,550,052 9,465,721 9,550,052
Investments in securities IEHIER 692,395,437 807,547,775 693,099,145 809,450,568

965,665,052 956,565,567 966,368,760 958,468,360

The Group has assessed that the fair values of deferred rental receivables,
trade receivables, financial assets included in prepayments, deposits
and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents, balances with fellow
subsidiaries and the immediate holding company, trade payables, financial
liabilities included in other payables and accruals, and rental and other
deposits approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the short
term maturities of these instruments.

The fair values of the financial assets and financial liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation
sale. The following method and assumptions were used to estimate the fair
value:

The fair values of the lease liabilities have been calculated by discounting
the expected future cash flows using rates currently available for
instruments with similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities. The
changes in fair values as a result of the Group’s own non-performance risk
for lease liabilities as at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021 were assessed
to be insignificant.

REFABITABENKHES - MBKR - AR
MFHT - B2 REMRKKRZEBRA> AL
kA& EEYE  SREMEARRERERL
B2 4R~ RAIKER T AE AR SRR R it
TRZeBRAG HeREMREZAANES
HRHERS  TZHTZEIATRPREE -

ERMAFRERARZAANEATETEEGE
BRBZHERINHIT LR HHRBT AN
SHANK © THTERBIRA T BT AROME

HRERABZ R ANELE BRI TS 8 A LMUF
o ERNRERRTFHOTAZFIE - B
KERIASREFAMITE - AARKHRH F2022
F3A318 KX2021E3 831 ARARAGABENT
BARKM=ERN AR NEZDRITENTERK °
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RAMSRERME

N

29.

162

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The fair values of three [2021: six] unlisted equity investments designated
at fair value through other comprehensive income as at 31 March 2022
and 31 March 2021 have been estimated using the market-based valuation
technique based on assumptions that are not supported by observable
market prices or rates. The valuation requires the Directors to determine
comparable public companies (peers) based on industry, size, leverage
and strategy, and to calculate an appropriate price multiple, such as price
to sales ("P/S”) multiple and enterprise value to sales ("EV/S") multiple,
for each comparable company identified. The multiple is calculated by
dividing the enterprise value of the comparable company by sales measure.
The Directors believe that the estimated fair values resulting from the
valuations carried out by an independent professional valuer, which are
recorded in the consolidated statement of financial position, and the
related changes in fair values, which are recorded in other comprehensive
income, are reasonable, and that they were the most appropriate values at
the end of the reporting period.

The fair values of thirteen (2021: seven) unlisted equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income as at 31
March 2022 and 31 March 2021 have been estimated using the recent

market transaction prices.

The fair values of two (2021: two) unlisted debt investments at fair value
through profit or loss as at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021 have been
estimated using either the market-based valuation technique or binomial
tree pricing model based on assumptions that are not supported by
observable market prices or rates. The valuation requires the Directors
to make estimates about the expected future cash flows discounted at
the interest. The Directors believe that the estimated fair value resulting
from the valuation carried out by an independent professional valuer,
which is recorded in the consolidated statement of financial position, and
the related changes in fair value, which are recorded in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, are reasonable, and that they were the most
appropriate values at the end of the reporting period.

The fair values of listed debt investments are based on quoted market

prices.

During the period, the Group disposed a certain percentage of an
investment at a fair value through other comprehensive income with a net
proceed of approximately HK$4.6 million. Accordingly, a gain had been
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Subsequent after fiscal year ended on 31 March 2022, the Group disposed
of an investment at a fair value through other comprehensive income with
a net proceed of approximately HK$14.5 million and a realised loss will be
recognised in other comprehensive income during next fiscal year ended
31 March 2023.
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2. EHMITEZAAMEBERAANESR

(&)

F202243A318 K%20214%3A318  fEERA
AMEIT AR E RS2 ZT(20214F © <)
FELTRABRZ AANEE XA UATS HEE
HERD  BREHFHINETNRBEIFZ
BALH AT o HITHEN  ESMERIET
Al ~ AR - ATAT R SR B SR B T8 AT LR A k2 &) (A
) - HBEEENR B AT LR A Rl E A BRI MG
B (BT HEEHRRELNERSR) - ZERT
BRATL R A R AN ER A E T E T m it
HoBFRIAN  TIREVREHIRY T L HEID
WEZETARNMEATASREVSRAR) KA
AMEBEZHEXZIOTAEMLELR)EESE -
HAZEENNE -

F202243A318 K202143A318 @ F8EERLA
MET AR ML E RS2 1351(20214F + £B)3E
EWRAR R 2 AR NMER KA IAK RN
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AR 2 AI(20214F : AB) I LHHRSFIE
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FEHZE2022F3ANBUEMBFER - AEFALE
RARMET AHMEERE 2RE - FTE RN
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29. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL 29. €T EZAANMERAANEBEEER

INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to the valuation of

financial instruments together with a quantitative sensitivity analysis as at

31 March 2022 and 2021:

As at 31 March 2022

Valuation Significant
technique unobservable input
fh{ET % EXRTARER ALY
Unlisted equity Valuation P/S multiple of peers
investment multiples
I EHRRAR R (YRR N

Discount for lack of
marketability

Bz mizmd iz ik

Amount

HE

3.5x

3.51%

20%

20%

The discount for lack of marketability represents the amounts of premiums

and discounts determined by the Group that market participants would

take into account when pricing the investments.

(&)

AT R F2022F K2021E3 831 BN/ T AR

DI

T2022%3A31H

Sensitivity of fair value to the input

NANEXNMALE 2BRE

1% increase/decrease in multiple would

BEZERTANEGARERRERTEGRE

result in increase/decrease in fair value

by HK$13,000/HK$13,000

B EF/ THRI%ESH AR NER I,
13,0007 7T,13,0007 7T

1% increase/decrease in discount would

result in decrease/increase in fair value

by HK$66,000/HK$66,000

Wik B/ TERI1%ESBRARNERD
#N66,0007%7T,66,0007 7T

R mBE TiLEARAEEm 7S 5%

EREREND EZRAEN RITLLEE] -

B 2021/22 F1R
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29. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL 29. €T EZ AANMERAANEBEEER

INSTRUMENTS (continued)
As at 31 March 2022 (continued)

164

Unlisted equity

Valuation
technique

fhES %

Option model

investment pricing model
FEEIRAER HREMIER
Unlisted equity Recent

investment transaction
F EHRAIR R TR 5
Unlisted equity Probability
investment weighting
method
FEETRAER (RSN

Unlisted debt
investment

FEMHRFRE

Binomial tree
pricing model

Z U EHNE

Cyberport 2021/22 Annual Report

Significant
unobservable input

ERTANE @ ALSE

Volatility

LR

Risk free rate

To B A &

P/S multiple of peers

GRSy

Discount applied to the
transaction price
pending completion

REKRHMI&ZHrik

Percentage change of
market capitalisation

MEBEDLED

Risk free rate

To LB A ==

(&)

2022538318 (&)

Amount

i

64.7%

64.7%

2.3%

2.3%

5x

5f&

50%

50%

(0.58%)

(0.58%)

0.5%

0.5%

Sensitivity of fair value to the input

NAMMENWARE 2 BRE

1% increase/decrease in volatility would
result in increase/decrease in fair value
by HK$56,000/HK$56,000

WHREF TERI%ESEHARNME
#90,/ 7056,0005 7T /56,0008 7T

1% increase/decrease in risk free rate
would result in increase/decrease in
fair value by HK$56,000/HK$56,000

TR FIR EF TK1%E S BA R NME
0,8 /56,0005 7T, 56,0003 7T

1% increase/decrease in multiple would
result in increase/decrease in fair value
by HK$96,000/HK$96,000

T FBI%E S B N R
96,000 7T,96,0007% 7T

1% increase/decrease in discount would
result in decrease/increase in fair value
by HK$600,000/HK$600,000

Wik bR TERI%ESB LA NERD
1#H1600,00077T,600,0007% 7T

1% increase/decrease in risk free rate
would have no impact to the result

FTREFIE EFTERI%ET 2 S RERME
i

1% increase/decrease in risk free rate
would have no impact to the result

TRERE EFTHI%E T2 S B
(ECEA)
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RAMSIRKRMDE

29. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL 29. €T EZAANMERAANEBEEER
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

As at 31 March 2021

Unlisted equity
investment

FEETRARR

Valuation
technique

fh{E %

Valuation
multiples

AEREY

Significant
unobservable input

ERTANE @ ALSE

P/S multiple of peers

() sll 7 £ 5 2

Discount for lack of
marketability

Bz mizmd iz ik

EV/S multiple of peers

[l b ANE S

Discount for lack of
marketability

BRZ mipmaE i ik

Amount

HE

2.9x

2.91%

20%

20%

4x

A

20%

20%

The discount for lack of marketability represents the amounts of premiums

and discounts determined by the Group that market participants would

take into account when pricing the investments.

Unlisted equity
investment

FE EmARAR

Unlisted debt
investment

FLEMHESER

Valuation
technique

fh{E 7%

Recent
transaction

Binomial tree

pricing model

Z IR ENE

Significant
unobservable input

EXTAREHALSE

Discount applied to to
the transaction price
pending completion

RIERZHNIBZ 1L

Risk free rate

TE R FI %

Amount

HEn

50%

50%

0.045%

0.045%

(&)

T2021%3A31H

Sensitivity of fair value to the input

NANENMARE 2BRE

1% increase/decrease in multiple would
result in increase/decrease in fair value
by HK$68,000/HK$68,000

B EF/ THRI%ESH AR NER I,
68,0007 7T, 68,0007 7T

1% increase/decrease in discount would
result in decrease/increase in fair value
by HK$17,000/HK$17,000

Wik R TR % B S BARNERD
124017,00087T,17,000% 7T
1% increase/decrease in multiple would

result in increase/decrease in fair value
by by HK$56,000/HK$56,000

BEHEF THRI%ESB AR NME
# 0,/ @i.56,0007 7T 56,0005 7T

1% increase/decrease in discount would
result in decrease/increase in fair value
by by HK$14,000/HK$ 14,000

Wik EF/ TEI%ESERARNE
b/ hN14,000 7T, 14,0007

REZmmBE L EAEHEEm 22 5%
EREHENR 2ERAEN RITLLED -

Sensitivity of fair value to the input

NAMENWARE 2 HRE

1% increase/decrease in discount would
result in decrease/increase in fair value
by HK$100,000/HK$100,000

it EF TEI%E SR AR NE
Wb,/ H#A1100,0005% 7T,100,0005 7T

1% increase/decrease in risk free rate
would have no impact to the result

TRBEFE LT/ THI%E T2
(E=CIEA
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29. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL

166

INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Fair value hierarchy

Group’s financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:
As at 31 March 2022

Equity investments BERAANMELTA
Hih 2 m a2

BAR A

designated at fair
value through other
comprehensive income

<

CMETT AR

151%

Debt investments at fair value &2

Sh
N

through profit or loss Z

\9

Investments in securities IEAIER

Cyberport 2021/22 Annual Report

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of the

2. EHMITEZAAMEBERAANESR

(&)
NANEER
TRERFREHACRIAZ RAANEITESR
BRAARNMETEZR™
F202243A318
Fair value measurement using
NAMMERAUT FIMitE
Significant Significant
Quoted prices observable unobservable
in active inputs inputs
markets (Level 2) (Level 3)
(Level 1) BEAAME BATAWE
SEERT RN BALIE BALIE Total
(B—R) (B=R) (E=4) Bt
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
- 227,270,824 36,533,070 263,803,894
- - 9,465,721 9,465,721
547,779,827 95,230,685 - 643,010,512
547,779,827 322,501,509 45,998,791 916,280,127
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RAMSIRKRMDE

29. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL 29. €T EZAANMERAANEBEEER

INSTRUMENTS (continued) (%)

Fair value hierarchy (continued) NARMESER ()

Assets measured at fair value: (continued) BARMETTEZ R (%)
As at 31 March 2021 F20214€3AR31H

Fair value measurement using

NAMERBATEDITE

Significant Significant
Quoted prices observable  unobservable
in active inputs inputs
markets (Level 2) (Level 3)
(Level 1) BAAMER BARAIMER
JEERTTIA RN BABTE BATE Total
(B—4R) (=) (B=R) Bt
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
&I BT &I T
Equity investments BERAANELTA
designated at fair Hit Ml
value through other FRAIR 7
comprehensive income - 116,255,771 23,211,969 139,467,740
Debt investments at fair value ZA R MEIT ARZE
through profit or loss ZHRFER = 8,367,107 1,182,945 9,550,052
Investments in securities AR R 614,282,830 109,114,977 = 723,397,807
614,282,830 233,737,855 24,394,914 872,415,599
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements FA - REeRMATME F-REBE_RZEH
between Level 1 and Level 2 for financial assets (2021: Nil]. The movements TEBAAMEITE(2021F : ) - F=ZHNZ
in fair value measurements within Level 3 are as follows: NANEITEEHWOT
2022 2021
HK$ HK$
BT 7T
Financial assets at fair value through other RARNMEIT AR EES iR
comprehensive income or profit or loss: SRVEFE
At 1 April FT4R1H 24,394,914 10,281,340
Transfer from Level 2 during the year FREHE L 37,201,654 21,344,675
Transfer to Level 2 during the year FREAE R (16,433,390) =
Total losses recognised in the consolidated FHRAMBIRAINAZ 5B
statement of profit or loss (84,334) (6,711,749)
Total gain/(loss) recognised in other TEMEEREINZ
comprehensive income Wz, (S5H) B 919,947 (519,352)
At 31 March F3A31H 45,998,791 24,394,914
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29. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)
Liabilities measured at fair value:

As at 31 March 2022
The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair value as at
31 March 2022.

As at 31 March 2021
The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair value as at
31 March 2021.

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 for
financial liabilities (2021: Nil).

30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(a) Financial risk factors

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise investments
in securities, equity investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income, debt investments at fair value through profit
or loss and cash and cash equivalents. The main purpose of these
financial instruments is to finance for the Group’s operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are
credit risk, equity price risk, liquidity risk and currency risk. The Board
reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and they
are summarised below.

Credit risk

All the Group's cash and cash equivalents are held in major financial
institutions located in Hong Kong, which management believes are of
high credit quality. The Group has policies in place to evaluate credit
risk when accepting new business and to limit its credit exposure to
individual customers.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum exposure
to credit risk based on the Group's credit policy, which is mainly
based on past due information unless other information is available
without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging classification as at
31 March. For listed debt investments, the Group also monitors them
by using external credit ratings. The amounts presented are gross
carrying amounts for financial assets.
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29.

30.

EMIACAANERDIANESTR

BANEFER(L)
BARNMETBZ A
F2022463 318

AEMTF202283 31 AHEERMBE AR NEITE
ZEmAE e

F202143H31H
AERTF2021F3A31 AHEERMBEARNEITE
ZEmAE e

FR - REMARME  F—REF_HzEHF
TEBAANEITE  TEEARBREHE=H
(20214 : F&)

W55 KB B B AR R IRER

(a) MEXEEZE
AEAZEBSBTABFESRA &L
AMEUA RS TS 2 RARE - BA
AMEUTAREZESRAXRAS KOS
SEMA - RELBIAZIBEMNRNE
EHAZEERHEAS

ARASBIAFEZ EERBNEHA
i RO R RSREEKT R -
EERFERNEERSTEXRS 2K
% - BOEMT ©

(ER
AEHAMBNE RIS EEMBEHERTE
BRUANNERRAERFZBEIEZESHN
1 e REFACHEREK - AITHEEAI LS
B2 EE RS & R B BTSSR B AR
ZETERBS

REMERFRDB RS
TRERETAEAGRBRZERRER
EeERAR(EZRESHASFH K
FEMEMBAN BT ZKARE AR IR
%) ARTIABNBZERDHEDE - 3
ErtRSEAME - AEEAITMERIEBER
WRHAITHEE - TENHTNE/A T~ 20K
HEE -
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30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES 30. WS AKEEERREEE (&)

(continued)
(a) Financial risk factors (continued) (a) MHEMBEEZE (L)
Credit risk (continued) EETXE (£8)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging [continued) RSN RFRDBER K (4)
As at 31 March 2022 F202243A31H8
12-month
ECLs
124 B Lifetime ECLs
BHRTH S HMEBERESM
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
MER— MEz= ME= fEfb % Bit
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT
Investments in securities &R A" 49,384,925 - - - 49,384,925
Trade receivables* MBS - - - 20,065,753 20,065,753
Deferred rental e IINE Gtk
receivables” 10,453,908 - - - 10,453,908
Financial assets included 1THATN R ~ &R
in prepayments, Hot R ORI 2
deposits and other SRR
receivables” 22,098,154 8,497,518 - - 30,595,672
Amounts due from fellow 57U R KB 2 BFIR
subsidiaries
- Not yet past due — AR & HA 1,938,909 - - - 1,938,909
Cash and cash equivalents Hl& RIS ZEHE
- Not yet past due —HARE 294,335,411 - - - 294,335,411
378,211,307 8,497,518 - 20,065,753 406,774,578
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30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES 30. MEAKEEERREE (&)

(continued)
(a) Financial risk factors (continued) (a) WEREEZE (L)

Credit risk (continued) fEDT KBS (£2)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging [continued) RSN RFRDBER K (4)

As at 31 March 2021 F202143A31H

12-month
ECLs
124> AT ER Lifetime ECLs
EHR5H 2 HMEAERE SR
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
MhER— ME= MEE= A% Bit
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT
Investments in securities IF &R A" 84,149,968 = = = 84,149,968
Trade receivables* RS 3R = = = 21,695,668 21,695,668
Deferred rental B FE R S ¢
receivables” 13,295,348 - - - 13,295,348
Financial assets included AN FI - &
in prepayments, R E A R R 2
deposits and other ok
receivables” 15,275,299 - - - 15,275,299
Amounts due from fellow  RU R RKIE A B1FIM
Subsidiaries
- Not yet past due — A R Ia R 2,041,992 = = = 2,041,992
Cash and cash equivalents Hl& RIS ZENE
- Not yet past due — A AR AR 383,979,684 = = = 383,979,684
498,742,291 - - 21,695,668 520,437,959

& For trade receivables to which the Group applies the simplified approach for * ARERBECREEZ MRIKAT = - RIBRE
impairment, information based on the provision matrix is disclosed in note 17 to the FEMFIT R Z AR TR A M S IRERMDE 175 E -
consolidated financial statements.

# The credit quality of the financial assets is considered to be “normal” when they are ¢ ERAFZERREEN RG]  BEHATARETS
not past due and there is no information indicating that the financial assets had a A 7= 2 5 LR B B W25 B0 IA AR 08 3 e 454
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality CIERT - BNE AT ZERRER N AR -
of the financial assets is considered to be “doubtful”.

Details in respect of the Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from BRAEANKIERZERNEE Z1#E - F

trade receivables are disclosed in note 17 to the consolidated financial SAEMSIHRRME17TIRE -

statements.
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30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

[continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (continued)

Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

RAMSIRKRMDE

30. MENEEBEBERREE (&)

(a) MEREEEZE ()

Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity securities
decrease as a result of changes in the value of underlying individual
securities. The Group is exposed to equity price risk arising from
individual equity investments classified as equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income (note
15) as at 31 March 2022.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every 10% change
in the fair values of the equity investments to which the Group has
significant exposure at the end of the reporting period, with all other
variables held constant and before any impact on tax. For the purpose
of this analysis, the impact is deemed to be on the fair value reserve.

A& KBS

A& AN KBS #5 AR ANIE 35/ Fo B A o< A BUIE
FZMBELZ MR KB o F202243 A
31A - REABENZBRN KKK E D ENIE
ERA R METT AL 2 EE 2 R R
ZABIRRAIR R (BTSE15) -

TRERTHREBRAEEAFAEEARL Z
BARAERANMEEED 0% (AAEHEMEES
FREAZ BRI AEMRSZ W) 2 BE
B o Bt n s - BXEMEARSTAA
NEFERX

Carrying
amount of Change
investments in equity*
RAWEE BTz *
HK$ HK$
BT BT
As at 31 March 2022 F202243A31H
Unlisted equity investments: 3 ETRAIRR -
- Equity investments designated at fair value —EEERARNEIT AL MEE
through other comprehensive income Was 2 BRAIR R 263,803,894 26,380,389
As at 31 March 2021 F202143H31H
Unlisted equity investments: EETRAIRE :
- Equity investments designated at fair value —EERAANEITAEMEE
through other comprehensive income W as 2 BR A4 139,467,740 13,946,774

* Excluding accumulated losses

* TRERITTH
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30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

(continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (continued)
Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group is unable to meet its current
obligations when they fall due. Prudent liquidity risk management
includes maintaining sufficient cash and the availability of funding

through operating cash flows and advances from the immediate
holding company.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its current and expected
liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves
of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as at the end
of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted
payments, is as follows:

30. MEREEBEBRREEE (&)

a) WMERREE (L)
mANAE TN
AR & MR HE AN G FIR B = b B H 2 AN AR
5Kk - FEZRDEENREIR B
BENEENeRERERIERARZBNRE
FRUWASRAHDBRS -

AERzBRZEMES B I RIEZ R
REFBR  BREFSEBIASHES - HR
HESRHRDIAESHER -

AEATHREPRRRESHRFTIUENRZE
BAGRSERAT

172

2022
Repayable on
demand/less
than 1 year 1to Over
REREE, 2 years 2 years Total
—FUT —ZWF PE L Bit
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Trade payables R AR 3R 45,531,974 - - 45,531,974
Financial liabilities T AE R4 3R K&
included in other Nt Az 2/ R
payables and accruals 161,787,716 - - 161,787,716
Rental and other deposits & kEMmiZS 57,960,138 16,011,924 20,315,232 94,287,294
Amount due to the NATEEZR R /I
immediate holding
company 254,303,568 - - 254,303,568
Lease liabilities HERMGR 2,254,797 1,279,666 - 3,534,463
521,838,193 17,291,590 20,315,232 559,445,015
2021
Repayable on
demand/less
than 1 year 1to Over
BREREL 2 years 2 years Total
—FUT —ERF FEMN L Bt
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Trade payables IVERRLEN 50,240,157 = = 50,240,157
Financial liabilities T AE A R 30 K&
included in other IRRE: 35 o= ik ox
payables and accruals 147,528,830 - - 147,528,830
Rental and other deposits & kEMIES 14,956,548 6,100,243 74,373,692 95,430,483
Amount due to the R BB IR R BRI
immediate holding
company 254,293,578 - - 254,293,578
Lease liabilities Fizhgilon 2,617,920 2,302,760 1,291,320 6,212,000
469,637,033 8,403,003 75,665,012 553,705,048

Cyberport 2021/22 Annual Report




Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

(continued)

(a)

(b)

Financial risk factors (continued)
Currency risk

The Group's functional currency is HK$. The Group is exposed to
currency risk primarily through investments in securities that are
denominated in another currency, being primarily United States
dollars ["USD"). As the HK$ is pegged to the USD, the Group considers
the risk of movements in exchange rates between the HK$ and the
USD to be insignificant.

Capital management

The primary objective of the Group's capital management is to
safeguard the Group’'s ability to continue as a going concern in
order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce
the cost of capital. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or
processes for managing capital during the year.

Capital of the Group comprises all components of shareholder’s
equity. Management reviews the capital structure periodically and
manages its overall capital structure if necessary. As at 31 March 2022
and 2021, the Group was in a net cash position.

31. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 14 July 2022, 446,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company of HK$1
each were issued and allotted to the immediate holding company of the

Company in consideration of the injection of an aggregate sum of HK$446

million into the Company.

RAMSIRKRMDE

30. MENEEBEBERREE (&)

(a)

(b)

55 KBS R 2= ()

MR

RERZINEERT NAETT « REHEFEZ &
MR EERBARMBE D (EERET(E
TUDIMEZIER R - BT ETSERTE
7 AREINRETSETZEMNLRED)
RBERAK -

RAEE
FERARAER 2 X EB IR NREAEHRF
SRE 7R - M ARk QIR R E
R EHEHRMNE - HEFRIEB 2 AARLE
o AR BRARAE - FH - AAEERZ B
bR BRERKARFFHLAEMRED ©

RERZRRNBERENGZZIERD - &
BEFEHRITAAEN  HELEFNFER
BAEARERN o NEFF20229F K 202143
A31AHAFIE KR -

3. REMBEEM
F2022F 7R 148 « AARMEEEEZERAR AT
FFBE % 446,000,000 F R EE 1B TH LB -
ERRAARA BTN BELLAZFETTHRAN ©
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32. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the Company at the

32. ARAMSFRIRFK
RRBMFPRRRTIRERRZ AT -
end of the reporting period is as follows:

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment

FERDE

Pl - HlesRkikE

2022 2021
HK$ HK$
BT BIT

2,942,946,396

2,757,289,540

Right-of-use assets ERRRF= 3,358,084 5,831,665
Deferred rental receivables 1% R 7 WA & 10,453,908 13,295,348
Investments in securities AR - 49,108,104
Investment in a subsidiary NGRS 1 1
Prepayments and deposits WA RIS 5,163,496 36,488,433

Total non-current assets

FRAE = DI

2,961,921,885

2,862,013,091

CURRENT ASSETS B RF=

Inventories T 171,488 212,200
Trade receivables 7 U =k 18,743,644 20,403,184
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TR FRIN - 32 B E A R WK 36,109,606 44,298,659
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries R YRR Z BB A BRI 1,938,909 2,041,992
Amounts due from subsidiaries oSN 80l 177,671,684 134,347,156
Investments in securities AR 692,395,437 758,439,671
Cash and cash equivalents Y& KIleEEmE 294,250,365 383,895,966

Total current assets

1,221,281,133

1,343,638,828

CURRENT LIABILITIES TN

Trade payables IVl 45,531,974 50,240,157
Other payables and accruals H b S - FRI K R 1t % R 235,783,289 275,983,171
Rental and other deposits He hEMire 94,287,294 95,430,483
Amount due to the immediate holding company VAR A NG el 254,303,568 254,293,578
Lease liabilities HERNE 2,254,797 2,533,072
Total current liabilities e R EER 632,160,922 678,480,461
NET CURRENT ASSETS MR E 589,120,211 665,158,367

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES
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3,551,042,096

3,527,171,458




32. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY 32. RAFWEMRE (&)

(continued)

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Development maintenance fund

Lease liabilities
Total non-current liabilities
Net assets

EQUITY
Share capital

Reserves (Note)

Total equity

Simon CHAN Sai-ming
MR 4R ER
Director

BE

FERB T
RRECES
HE R

FRBDAGLI

Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

Fa

55 MK BT

2022 2021

HK$ HK$

BT BT
379,206,407 387,752,187
1,279,666 3,534,463
380,486,073 391,286,650

3,170,556,023

3,135,884,808

538,000,002

2,632,556,020

300,000,002

2,835,884,806

3,170,556,022

3,135,884,808

lvy CHEUNG Wing-han

Director

BE
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RAMSRERME

N

32. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

32. ZRAMFRIR TR (%)

(continued)
Note: B3 -
Movements of the Company’s reserves are as follows: RARERZEHOT ¢
Capital  Accumulated
reserve losses Total
BARER Zit5H Bat
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT

At 1 April 2020
Loss and total comprehensive loss for

T202064H1H
FATRREE SR

5,374,246,757

(2,336,478,892)

3,037,767,865

the year = (205,130,526) (205,130,526
Transfer from development maintenance  HAREBESHKERAK
fund to capital reserve g% 3,247,467 - 3,247,467

At 31 March 2021 and at 1 April 2021

Loss and total comprehensive loss for

F20214F3A31H K% 2021648
1H
FASHREEE SRS

5,377,494,224

(2,541,609,418)

2,835,884,806

the year = (211,874,566) (211,874,566)
Transfer from development AARAEBESHERERAN
maintenance fund to capital reserve g% 8,545,780 - 8,545,780

At 31 March 2022

F202243A318

5,386,040,004

(2,753,483,984)

2,632,556,020

33. APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the Board of Directors on 26 October 2022.

33. RAEFEMFRR

FAWMSEIRK T2022F10 A26 BRE S BAZEH
WA & °
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